Pacioli 20 Complex farms and sustainability in farm level data collection





Pacioli 20

Complex farms and sustainability in farm level data collection

Hans Vrolijk (ed.)

LEI Proceedings 13-054 May 2013 Project code 2275000572 LEI Wageningen UR, The Hague

LEI is active in the following research areas:



Pacioli 20; Complex farms and sustainability in farm level data collection

Vrolijk, H. (ed.) LEI Proceedings 13-054 ISBN/EAN: 978-90-8615-634-4 237 p., fig., tab., app.

The international Pacioli network shares knowledge on the management and use of agricultural microeconomic databases (such as the Farm Accountancy Data Network in Europe). Each year, LEI Wageningen UR organises a Pacioli workshop in close cooperation with a local organiser. The 20th Pacioli workshop took place in Rome, Italy, in October 2012.

Photo cover: Hans Vrolijk

Orders

+31 70 3358330 publicatie.lei@wur.nl This publication is available at www.wageningenUR.nl/en/lei

© LEI, part of Stichting Landbouwkundig Onderzoek (DLO foundation), 2013 Reproduction of contents, either whole or in part, is permitted with due reference to the source.

LEI is ISO 9001:2008 certified.

Contents

	Preface				
1	Introduction	9			
	 1.1 20th Pacioli workshop 1.2 Programme of the 20th Pacioli workshop 	9 9			
2	Economic performance and profitability of organic farms in Estonia	12			
3	Cross country comparison of farm performance	18			
4	Analysis of Productivity Change in German Dairy Farms	26			
	 4.1 Introduction 4.2 Method and data 4.3 Results 4.3.1 Development of productivity referring to a reference farm 4.3.2 Variation of TFP 4.3.3 Variation of standardized TFP 4.3.4 Comparison with income 4.4 Conclusions 4.5 References 	26 26 27 28 29 30 32 34 34			
5	Distribution of performance and factors associated with better efficiency				
6	Lithuanian dairy farms business - evaluation of the economic performance indicators 4				
7	Challenges in Collecting Data from Complex Farm Operations: Review of Perspectives from International Conference	n an 51			
	 7.1 Introduction 7.2 Background 7.3 Uses 7.4 Causes and Characteristics of Complexity 7.5 Broad Implications of Workshop Appentix A. Abstracts of presentations made at the 2011 International Workshop 	51 52 53 57 58			
8	How to deal with large complex farms in Denmark	64			
9	The use of data for policy analysis and the measurement of sustainability	71			
10	The effect of environmental sustainability on the economic cost of farm milk and wheat	76			
11	Econometric estimation of fertilizer use for wheat and other crops	81			
12	Using FADN data to estimate agricultural GHG emissions at farm level	86			
	 12.1 Introduction 12.2 Agricultural GHG Emissions 12.3 The Methodology 12.3.1 Enteric Fermentation 12.3.2 Manure management-methane 	86 87 88 90 90			

5

	12.3.3 Manure management-Nitrous oxide	91		
	12.3.4 Rice cultivation	92		
	12.3.5 Agricultural soils	92		
	12.3.6 Energy	95		
	12.3.7 LOLOGE. an example with grassiand	90		
	12.5 IT Tools	99		
	12.6 Concluding Remarks	100		
	12.7 References	101		
13	Sustainability in the Pig sector	103		
14	Investments in dairy farming	109		
15	Machinery and equipment in Italian agriculture	116		
	15.1 Introduction	116		
	15.2 The methodology and the database	116		
	15.3 Results	118		
	15.4 Some conclusions	125		
16	Impact of diferences in applying the SO-typology on FADN-farms in FADN and in FS	S for the		
	weighting of farms	126		
17	Random sampling - does it really improve representativity?	130		
18	Farm Data and Monitoring System in Azerbaijan	134		
19	Development of FADN in Turkey	140		
20	Status of FADN in Kosovo	145		
21	EU conformity of the Croatian FADN			
22	FADN in Macedonia	157		
23	Changes in the EU farm return	162		
24	Cost and profitability analysis for wheat, barley and maize	169		
25	Economic analysis with Turkish FADN data	173		
26	Spouse's involvement - effects on net income and family income	179		
	Abstract	179		
	26.1 Introduction	179		
	26.2 Data Source and Methodology	180		
	26.3 Results	180		
	26.3.1 Working hours larmer and spouse - development from 1991 to 2010	180		
	26.5 Effects on farm net income and family net income related to working hours of the spo	ouse and the		
	farmer	184		
	26.6 Conclusion	187		
	26.7 References	187		
27	Exploring agricultural data using self-organizing maps	188		
	27.1 Introduction	188		
	27.2 Profitability bookkeeping data	188		
6				

	27.3	Self-organizing map	189				
	27.4	Results	190				
	27.5	Conclusions	191				
~~	27.0		192				
28	Farm profile - system for improving management and farm database						
	28.1	Introduction	195				
	28.2	Organizational structure of the NEA for farmer's availability	195				
	28.3	Communication and relationships between the advisor and the farmer	196				
	28.4	Cycle of stakeholder participation in maintenance of the sub-system Farm profile	197				
	28.5	Integration of existing subsystems	198 Iduicare				
		28.5.1 SEMPA - Subsystem for evidence, monitoring and planning activities of the NEA a	100				
		28.5.2 PRA - Subsystem for Particinative rural appraisal	190				
		28.5.3 FMS/FADN - Subsystem for farm monitoring/Farm accountancy data network	200				
		28.5.4 FAM - subsystem for analysis and farm monitoring	200				
	28.6	Application of new technologies for data collection and their integration in the system	202				
		28.6.1 Mobile application for farmer data entry 'in situ' (Using PC tablet)	202				
		28.6.2 SMS info	204				
	28.7	Types of analyzes, reports and benefits	205				
		28.6.1 Benefits from reports and analyses	207				
	28.8	Conclusion	209				
29	Web-	tool for modelling farm subsides and income in CAP 2014-2020	210				
30	Statis	stical testing of differences of means in EconomyDoctor internet service	215				
31	Open	source solutions in Hungarian FADN: data collection and income modelling	220				
32	Deve	Developing a common open source platform for internal/external FADN services					
33	IT too	ols and target users of the Italian RICA data	228				
	33.1	Objectives	228				
	33.2	Italian RICA and IT management	228				
	33.3	GAIA: aims, functionalities and utilities	229				
	33.4	BDR Web	231				
	33.5	Challenges	233				
	Parti	cipant list	234				

Preface

For the 20th time, LEI organised the yearly Pacioli workshop. This year it took place in Rome, Italy, from 30 September to 3 October 2012.

There were a record number of 48 participants from EU countries, non-EU countries such as Switzerland and Norway, candidate countries and from international organisations such as OECD, USDA, FAO and the European Commission. They discussed innovations and developments in the collection and use of farm level data. Important topics were the measurement of sustainability indicators, the specific problems of collecting information on large complex farms and the use of data for policy analysis and research.

The Italian research institute INEA hosted the meeting and took care of the local organisation. LEI was responsible for organising the content of the programme and chairing the meetings. We thank Concetta Cardillo and Antonella Bodini for the local organisation of the workshop.

L.C. van Staalduinen MSc Managing Director LEI Wageningen UR

1 Introduction

1.1 20th Pacioli workshop

In cooperation with INEA, LEI part of Wageningen UR organised the 20th pacioli workshop which took place between the 30th of September and the 3rd of October 2012, in Rome.

1.2 Programme of the 20th Pacioli workshop

Sunday, 30th of September 2012

21.00 Get together for informal drink

Monday, 1st of October 2012

08.45	<i>Opening</i> Italian welcome by prof. Alberto Manelli, General Director of INEA and Dr. Luca Cesaro, Head of Unit 1 (RICA/FADN)
09.15	Introduction Workshop by Hans Vrolijk <i>Paper Session I</i> Performance analysis
	Eduard Matveev - Economic performance and profitability of organic farms in Estonia
	Shingo Kimura - Cross country comparison of farm performance
	Werner Kleinhanss - Productivity and efficiency of dairy farms
	Andrew Woodend - Distribution of performance and factors associated with better efficiency
11.00 11.30	Rima Daunyte and Arvydas Kuodys - Lithuanian dairy farms business - evaluation of the economic performance indicators Break <i>Paper Session II</i> Complex farms
	Mary Ahearn - Challenges in Collecting Data from Complex Farm Operations: Review of Perspectives from an International Conference
	Henrik Pedersen - How to deal with large complex farms in Denmark
12.30 13.45	Valdat Bratka - Impact of large complex farms on the design of a representative sample. Lunch <i>Paper Session III</i> Sustainability
	Thia Hennessey - The use of data for policy analysis and the measurement of sustainabil ity
	Lech Goraj - 'The effect of environmental sustainability on the economic cost of farm milk and wheat

	Nathalia Dalama . Econometric actimation of fartilizer use for wheat and other crons					
	Nathalie Delame, - Econometric estimation of rentilizer use for wheat and other crops					
	Silvia Coderoni - Using FADN data to estimate agricultural GHG emissions at farm level					
15.45 16.00 17.30 18.00 - 19.40	Hans Vrolijk - Sustainability in the Pig sector; analyses with FADN data Break <i>Workgroup Session I</i> How to deal with large / complex farms in FADN Break <i>Paper Session IV</i> Assets in Agriculture					
	Pieter Willem Blokland - Investments in dairy farming					
	Concetta Cardillo - Machinery and equipment in Italian agriculture					
	Sampling and typology					
	Ann-Marie Karlsson - Impact of differences in applying the SO-typology on FADN-farms in FADN and in FSS for the weighting of farms					
	Andreas Roesch - Random sampling - does it really improve representativity?					
20.00 I	Dinner					
Tuesday, 2nd o 8.45	of October 2012 Paper Session V Development of farm data collection systems					
	Namig Shalbuzov - Farm Data and Monitoring System in Azerbaijan					
	Cemre Ozcanli- Development of FADN in Turkey					
	Hakile Xhaferi - Status of FADN in Kosovo,					
	Kristijan Jelakovic - EU conformity of the Croatian FADN					
	Alexander Musalevski - FADN in Macedonia					
10.45 11.00 12.30	Piotr Bajek and Eva Nagy - Changes in the EU farm return Break <i>Workgroup Session 2</i> Challenges in the development of FADN Challenges in collecting sustainability indicators in FADN					
13.30 -22.00	Excursion with dinner					

Wednesday, 3rd of October 2012

8.45 <i>Paper Session VI</i> Economic analysis						
	Stijn Jourquin - Cost and profitability analysis for wheat, barley and maize					
	Murat Aslan - Economic analysis with Turkish FADN data					
	Torbjorn Haukas - Spouse's involvement - effects on net income and family income					
	Mika Sulkuva - Exploring agricultural data using self-organizing maps					
10.25 10.45	Borje Dernulf - Farm profile - system for improving management and farm database Break <i>Paper session VII</i>					
	Use of FADN data with IT / Web tools					
	Szilard Keszthelyi - Web-tool for modelling farm subsides and income in CAP 2014-2020					
	Arto Latukka - Statistical testing of differences of means in EconomyDoctor internet service					
	Csaba Pesti - Open source solutions in Hungarian FADN: data collection and income modelling					
	Narve Brattenborg - Developing a common open source platform for internal/external FADN services					
12.45 13.30	Antonella Bodini - IT tools and target users of the Italian RICA data Lunch Departure					

2 Economic performance and profitability of organic farms in Estonia

Eduard Matveev



























¹ Sustainable farms defined on the bases of the Farm Net Value Added (NVA) produced on the farm per Annual Work Unit, Le. In order to be sustainable, an farm should produce NVA at least 80% of average labour cost per year in manufacturing sector. ² SOP – Support for organic production. Source: Own cAlculation laced on FADN bata.



CONCLUSIONS

- Organic farms receive on average higher subsidies per hectare than conventional farms. This is due to special support paid for organic production.
- Organic farms have on average a significantly lower income per AWU in comparison with conventional farms.
- The support for organic production are very important for the economic viability of Estonian organic farms.
- The share of subsidies in farm income is march higher for organic farms than for conventional farms.
- The sustainability of the organic farms depends greatly on the support for organic production.
- The analysis of farms by type of farming shows that only organic farms of grazing livestock type of farming produced more farm income than conventional farms.

3 Cross country comparison of farm performance

Shingo Kimura



- 1. Cross-country comparison of farm performance with harmonized methodology
- 2. Assessment of technological diffusion and resource allocation within the sector
- 3. Finding common characteristics of high or low performer



Outline

- 1. Description of data and methodology
- 2. Cross-country comparison of farm performance distribution by sector
- 3. Characteristics high/low performer
- 4. Cross-country factor analysis of high high performance
- 5. Conclusion



Data sources from 9 countries

- Germany, the Netherlands, Belgium (Flanders), Italy and Estonia : National FADN
- UK (England) : Farm Business Survey
- Australia : Broadacre and dairy farm survey
- USA : Agricultural Resource Management Survey
- Canada : Farm Financial Survey
 - Years are 2004, 2006, 2007, 2008 and 2009
- The data generally covers 90% of production value



Four Farm Performance Indicators

- (1) Output-Input Ratio
- Gross agricultural output cash expense ratio (2) Return to Labor
 - Gross margin per full-time farmer equivalent labour input
- (3) Return to Land
- Gross margin per ha of utilized area of land
- (4) Return on equity Gross margin per net worth

Output does not include payments



Sector coverage

Quartile information by each indicator is reported by the following sector

- All farms
- Field crop
- Fruits and vegetable
- Dairy
- Beef and sheep
- Non-ruminant
- Mixed farm
- Nursery/Greenhouses (only The Netherlands)



0.5







Farm characteristics

- 1. Farm size (Economic, Labour and Land)
- 2. Support
- 3. Off-farm activity
- 4. Operator's characteristics
- 5. Technological adoption and Investment

Cash input – output ratio is chosen as an indicator to define high/low performance group





High performer tends to be large in US, UK and the Netherlands





High performer tends to be large in US, UK and the Netherlands

In dairy sector, low perfomer tends to have higher labour input





- Low performer tends to be old except for Germany and Belgium
- High performer has higher educational attainment except for Belgium





High performer tends to have higher net investment



Cross-country factor analysis of high performance

Factor analysis is a statistical method to find a set of uncorrelated factors in a large dataset

Characteristics of high performers is normalized with respect to mean of the sector

Factor analysis is applied to find which factors are consistently explaining high performance across countries, across performance indicators and across years for a specific sector



Factors of high performance: Field crop farms

	Factor 1	Factor 2	Factor 8	Uniqueness	Average factor score by country
Variance	3.25	1.30	0.82		(mean-ree)
Proportion in total variance	0.58	0.23	0.15		Australia Belgium Germany Netherland UK USA
Factor load ings					
Gross agricultural output	0.88	-0.07	0.08	0.21	1 180
Annual labor input	0.73	-0.37	-0.05	0.33	3 160
Utilized area of land	0.82	0.12	-0.06	0.30	0 140
Net worth	-0.03	0.74	0.13	0.43	3 120
Net Investment	-0.10	-0.20	-0.51	0.70	
Total support	0.92	0.12	0.09	0.14	
Age of the main operator	-0.47	0.27	-0.08	0.70	
Education of the main operator	0.35	0.36	0.52	0.47	,
Share of less favored land	-0.26	-0.30	0.47	0.62	2 40
Adoption of organic technology	-0.01	-0.49	0.16	0.74	4 20
Fadoroharaderístics					
Factor 1 Large far msize					
Factor 2	Factor 2 Lower Indektedness			Taxa dana da Lavar la dabia das ar Linha duratia a	
Factor 3 Hoheducation			sangen anna sa sanar in brots ann ar Migh a ducada n		

 Farm size factor account for 58% of the total variance and it is the least relevant in Australia, followed by USA

• Education factor is important in Belgium. UK has the lowest score, meaning that high education factor is not relevant factor of high performance



OECD Trade and Agriculture 21 Directorate





4 Analysis of Productivity Change in German Dairy Farms

Werner Kleinhanss

4.1 Introduction

The development and change of productivity, as well as its influencing factors, is of interest in economic research. Analysis is usually done at the global or sector level. An assessment of productivity changes at the micro level is one of the activities of the OECD working group on 'Farm Level Analyses'. While searching for different measurement concepts and programming tools, we gained access to a software package provided by CEPA. The programme allows the calculation of well known Total Factor Productivity (TFP) indexes, i.e., Laspeyres, Paasche, Fischer, Lowe, Malmquist, Hicks-Moorsteen, and the Färe-Primont Index. However, the free-of charge version used is limited to the calculation of the last mentioned tree indexes. In this study we use this programme for productivity analysis for a balanced sample of dairy farms in the North of Germany. Method and data is briefly described, and then results on productivity changes are explained and compared with income indicators.

4.2 Method and data

The developer of the software package DPIN, O'DONNELL (2011), argues that the 'Laspeyres, Paasche, Fisher, Malmquist-hs, Malmquist-it and Hicks-Moorsteen indexes all fail the transitivity test and can generally only be used to make a single binary comparison (i.e., to compare two observations). Only the Lowe and Färe-Primont indexes are economically-ideal in the sense that they satisfy all economically-relevant axioms and tests from index number theory, including an identity axiom and a transitivity test. This means they can be used to make reliable multi-temporal (i.e., many period) and/or multi-lateral (i.e., many firm) comparisons of TFP and efficiency'. A further advantage of the Lowe and Färe-Primont Index is that prices for input and output are not required, and shadow prices derived from the Linear Programming solution are used instead. Especially input prices are often lacking at the farm level. As the Lowe index can only be calculated with the professional version, we focus on the Färe-Primont index, which can be calculated with the free-of charge version of DPIN. Although shadow prices cannot be listed by the free-of-charge version, they are internally calculated.

The Färe-Primont defined by O'DONNELL (2011) is composed of two indexes developed by FÄRE and PRIMONT (1995, p. 36, 38):

$$TFP_{h_{2},it} = \frac{D_O(x_0, q_{it}, t_0)}{D_O(x_0, q_{h_2}, t_0)} \frac{D_I(x_{h_2}, q_0, t_0)}{D_I(x_{it}, q_0, t_0)}$$

'The Färe-Primont TFP index is quite general in the sense that it doesn't require any restrictions on the production technology apart from those that might be necessary for the distance functions to be well-defined' (O'DONNELL, 2011). The calculation of this index is calculated in following steps:

- Calculation of output and input distance functions in solving LP's

$$(55) \qquad D_o(x_0, q_0, t_0)^{-1} = \min_{\alpha, \gamma, \beta} \left\{ \gamma + x_0'\beta : \gamma t + X'\beta \ge Q'\alpha; q_0'\alpha = 1; \alpha \ge 0; \beta \ge 0 \right\}$$

(56)
$$D_{I}(x_{0}, q_{0}, t_{0})^{-1} = \max_{\phi, \delta, \eta} \left\{ q_{0}' \phi - \delta : Q' \phi \le \delta t + X' \eta; x_{0}' \eta = 1; \phi \ge 0; \eta \ge 0 \right\}$$

- Calculation of aggregate output and inputs

(61)
$$Q_{ii} = (q'_{ii}\alpha_0)/(\gamma_0 + x'_0\beta_0)$$

- (62) $X'_{ii} = (x'_{ii}\eta_0)/(q'_0\phi_0 \delta_0)$
- Calculation of shadow prices

(88)
$$p_0^* = \partial D_O(x_0, q_0, t_0) / \partial q_0 = \alpha / (\gamma + x_0'\beta)$$

(89)
$$w_0^* = \partial D_I(x_0, q_0, t_0) / \partial x_0 = \eta / (q_0'\phi - \delta).$$

Limitations of this index are:

- It is calculated referring to a reference farm (to be determined) in the base period. In the following we alternatively recalculate the indexes for the remaining farms.
- The model only solves with rescaled data, which might influence the results. An alternative solution would be to exclude outlying observations. As we already dropped outlying observations, we didn't go forward in this direction.
- Shadow prices are handled as 'black box'. Results might be biased by zero values. This aspect could only be proved with the professional version of DPIN.
- The number of observations is limited to 5000, which might be not enough in running the model for all dairy farms in Germany.
- Weighting of observation, which is usual in using representative farms of FADN, is not possible in the model.

After first tests with a sample of 40 farms we selected a balanced sample of 170 dairy farms for 15 periods (1996/97 - 2010/11) from the national FADN. Farms are located in the North of Germany (Lower Saxony and Schleswig Holstein). Only farms with more than 30 dairy cows in 2009/10 and with milk production in each period are included. Furthermore, a few observations with outlying data are excluded. For the model we used a rather aggregated set of variables;

- 3 outputs: milk (\in), other returns (\in), subsidies (\in)
- 5 inputs: variable input of crop production (€), livestock (€), other costs (€, excl. land rentals and hired labour costs); UAA (ha), AWU

For further differentiation of results we use tree size classes (dairy cows): 1: 30-60; 2: 60-100; 3: >100 and we included income indicators for the comparison of productivity development. Box plots are processed to summarize and to show the variation of results.

4.3 Results

In this chapter we show first results for one farm taken as example. Then we describe changes of productivity for groups of individual farms as well as the variation by farm size. Lastly, we compare these results with the development of income usually taken as main indicator for economic performance.

4.3.1 Development of productivity referring to a reference farm

The underlying farm (ID=10) has been taken as reference in the calculation of Färe-Primont index. Figure 1 shows the development (change) of productivity (dTFP) over the 15 year period, taking 1996/97 as reference. It is rather constant in the first three years, then moves down to 0.89 in 2000/01, which might be an effect of the BSE crisis. It moved up to around 1.17 in 2001/02 and 2004/05 to 2007/08. Periods with negative productivity change (<1) were in 2002/03 and the following year, as well in 2008/09. The highest level was reached in 2010/11. Therefore productivity increased by 0.37 during this 15-year period. Change of this index is the result of change of aggregated output referring to aggregated input. A high level of aggregated output is a sign for rather high milk prices.

Beside these indicators the model also calculates other economic measures, of which only changes of technical efficiency (dTech), changes of output-oriented technical efficiency (dOTE) and change of output-oriented scale mix efficiency (dOSME) are shown. dOTE is restricted to 1; it is less than 1 in the first periods indicating a low output-oriented efficiency change. Development of dOTE and dOSME are related to dTFP, but with time lags and reaching lower levels in 2010/11.



Figure 1 Level and decomposition of Färe-Primont Index (Farm 10)

To get insights in the variation of different TFP indices we also calculate Hicks-Moorsteen and Malmquist-hs (it) indices (Figure 2). All indexes show a strong decrease in 2002/03 and 2008/09. Development and level of the Hicks-Moorsteen index is similar to Färe-Primont, while the Malmquist index differs between the firm specific (-hs) and the period specific (-it). The selection of an appropriate index is therefore a challenge.



Source: Own calculations based on BMELV-Testbetriebe (Kleinhanß, 2012)

Source: Own calculations based on BMELV-Testbetriebe (Kleinhanß, 2012)

4.3.2 Variation of TFP

At first we discuss non-standardized Färe-Primont indexes. The box plot in Figure 3 shows the level (Median) and variation (50 % of farms between 1st and 3rd Quantile, as well as minimum and maximum TFP's and so-called outliers (o) and extreme values (*)). In 1996/7 the Median is less than 1 (referring to the reference farm, 50 % of farms shows TFP's between 0.85 and 1.1; TFP varies between 0.6 and 1.4. In 2010/11 it increased to about 1.15 (Median). 50 % of farms show TFP form 1.05 to 1.3 and the spread between min and max becomes larger; furthermore a few outliers are indicated. This shows a positive development of TFP.



Figure 3 Level and variation of Färe-Primont index in 1996/97 and 2010/11

Development of TFP over the whole period is shown in Figure 4. TFP successively increased until 2000/01, followed by a period of lower productivity until 2006/07. Highest TFP was reached in 2007/08 due to favourable price levels especially for milk. In 2008/09 - due to lower prices - TFP was even lower than in the first period. TFP moved up in 2010/11 to almost the same level as in 2007/08.



Figure 4 Development and variation of Färe-Primont index

4.3.3 Variation of standardized TFP

As mentioned above, the Färe-Primont is expressed for all periods and farms referring to the first period of the reference farm (ID=10); in Annex Table A, an example for farm (10) and (71) is given. With regard to the reference farm, productivity of farm 71 is only 0.81 in the first and 0.97 in the last period. For the comparison of farms we standardize TFP's =1 in period 1. Therefore the TFP of Farm 71 moves to 1 in period 1 and to 1.21 in period 15. The change of productivity over the whole period is therefore lower than of the reference farm.

Figure 5 shows the development of standardised Färe-Primont index for the 10 % of farms with lowest TFP (mean over all years) - in comparison to average TFP. Average change of TFP is less than those of the reference farm; it is rather low until 2006/07, rising to 1.2 in 2007/08 and 2010/11 under conditions of high milk prices. Most farms included show less than average TFP indices and some less than 1, indicating a negative development of productivity.



Figure 5 Development of standardised TFP of 10 % of farms with lowest average TFP (over all years)

Source: Own calculations based on BMELV-Testbetriebe (Kleinhanß, 2012)

The situation is much better in the 10 % of farms with highest TFP (Figure 6). TFP increase to about 1.2 until 1999/2000 and stay at this level until 2006/07. It significantly increased in 2007/08. Beside this trend there is a significant variation between farms with some extreme values on a positive and negative direction.





Source: Own calculations based on BMELV-Testbetriebe (Kleinhanß, 2012)

The development and variation of standardized TFP between all sample farms is shown in Figure 7. Due to standardization TFP becomes 1 in the first period. The general trend of TFP is similar to Figure 4 but with a slightly higher level. TFP was highest in 2007/08; nevertheless there were farms with TFP less than 1.



Figure 7 Development and variation of standardised TFP (index)

Figure 8 shows the development and variation between small (30-60 dairy cows) and large (>100) farms. The picture looks similar in most years but with a slightly higher level of the large farms. However, there are a few differences:

- The variation of TFP between min and max is higher in small farms

- TFP of large farms is more sensitive wrt price changes; in the year of crisis (2008/09) the TFP level on average was considerably lower than in small farms.





4.3.4 Comparison with income

In the following we compare development of TFP with income. We use Family Farm Income (FFI) expressed in \in per farm as income indicator. Figure 9 compares the development of TFP and FFI relative to the base year (= 100). As already mentioned, changes of TFP are rather low; in most of the years it is close to 1 and only in 2007/08 and 2010/11 does it move up to around 120. The development of FFI is more significant; it increases to 150 in 2000/01, and then goes down to near 100 in 2003/04 and the succeeding year. In 2007/08 it switches to its highest level of 270. In the year of crisis (2008/09) it drops again to close to 100. It recovers to 230 in 2010/11. This indicates that the variation of income is much higher than the development of TFP.



Source: Own calculations based on BMELV-Testbetriebe (Kleinhanß, 2012)

Absolute levels of FFI and its variation for all farms are given in Figure 10. Income in 50 % of farms (between Q3 and Q1) was less than 50 k \in in the first 4 years. A first high was reached in 2000/01, and it then fell again in the following 3 years. It reached 2000/01 levels in the years 2004/5 to 2006/7. The highest level was reached in 2007/8 with 50 k to about 100 k \in .



Figure 10 Development and variation of Family Farm Income (€/farm

Farm size has a significant impact on the income level; Figure 11 compares FFI for small and large farms. In the group of small farms (30-60 dairy cows) FFI in 50 % of farms (between Q1 and Q3) was less than 50 k \in in all years; only in 2007/08 and 2010/11 did it increase significantly. For the large farms (>100 dairy cows) a significant share reached income levels >50 k \in in ten years. Income almost doubled in 2007/08 or increased by two-thirds in 2010/11. However, the overall variation of income is larger than in small farms.

It is also of interest to look at the so-called outliers (o) or extreme values (*):

- Farm 99 had negative incomes in 3 years
- On the other hand, Farm 101 reached its highest income levels in 6 years.

It would be of interest to analyse causes for high income levels, but this is out of the scope of this paper.



Figure 11 Development and variation of Family Farm Income in small (30-60) and large farms (>100 dairy cows) (€/farm)

4.4 Conclusions

The changes of TFP (Färe-Primont) are rather low. In about half of the years TFP it is close to 1, while it increased significantly in years of favourable milk prices (2007/08 and 2010/11). The rather low changes of TFP can be explained by the milk quota system which restricts farm growth. Another factor is the implementation of the milk market reform since 2003.

As is well known, that there is a significant spread of TFP (and income) between farms. Farms of the lowest decile show TFP levels less than 1, indicating negative TFP growth. Farms belonging to the upper decile show TFP levels greater than 1 up to a maximum of 1.5.

The development of income is more pronounced than TPF changes. Income was rather low but more stable until 2006/07. It became rather volatile in the succeeding years with the highest level in 2007/08, mainly determined by favourable milk prices.

4.5 References

Fare, R and D. Primond, 1995. Multi-output production and duality: theory and applications. Kluwer, Boston.

O'Donnell, C., 2007. 'Estimating the characteristics of polluting technologies.' In: *51st Annual conference of the Australian Agricultural and Resource Economics Society*. Queenstown, New Zealand.

O'Donnell, O., 2010. 'Measuring and decomposing agricultural productivity and profitability change.' In: *Aust J Agric Resour Econ* 54, pp. 527-560.

O'Donnell, C., 2012a. 'An aggregate quantity framework for measuring and decomposing productivity change.' In: *J Prod Anal.* (doi:10.1007/s11123-012-0275-1)

O'Donnell, C., 2012b. 'Nonparametric estimates of the components of productivity and profitability change in U.S. agriculture.' In: *Am JAgric Econ* 94, pp. 873-890.
5 Distribution of performance and factors associated with better efficiency

Andrew Woodend



The Farm Business Survey (England)

- The Farm Business Survey (FBS) is an annual survey providing information on the financial position and physical and economic performance of farm businesses in England.
- Around1,900 farm businesses, covering all regions and all types of farming, with data collection on-farm, including interview with the farmer.

defra

- · Results are weighted so as to represent the whole population.
- Sample 'represents' around 60,000 farm businesses in the population. Very small farms are excluded - vast majority of the farms have enough cropping or stocking to occupy the farmer for at least half their time.

Average farm business income (£000s) by farm type, England 2010/11 and 2011/12



Distribution of Farm Business Incomes by farm type in England, 2010/11

Distribution of Farm Business Income by farm type, 2010/11, 2010/11 prices



Source: Farm Business Survey, England 2010/11

defra





Cereals General Cropping Mixed Horticulture Single payment scheme Diversification out of agriculture Agri-environment and other payments Agriculture



Proportion of wheat produced on basis of production costs (£/tonne) 2010/11



iource, Farm Business Survey, England 2010/11

Proportion of milk produced on basis of production costs (pence/litre) 2010/11



Source: Farm Business Survey, England 2010/11

Gross Margin Mapping: Dairy at county level



 Many counties have fewer than 5 observations so have been suppressed

defra

defra

- All county level gross margins within the range £788-£1,215 per cow
- Lowest is Cumbria, highest is Gloucestershire
- Relatively big differences between neighbouring counties (Norfolk/Suffolk, Devon/Cornwall)

Gross Margin Mapping: Winter wheat at county level





Farm business performance: consistency over time

defra

Over half of farms stayed in

Very few moved from high to

low or vice versa within one

Note: middle column

performers than high

represents 50% of farms

More persistency in low

same band

performers

year



Note: based on performance within farm types, unweighted data, excludes unpaid labour

Farm business performance: consistency over time

defra

defro

Correlation between 2010/11 and 2009/10 performance percentiles, split by farm type

Farm Type	Correlation
Dairy	75%
Poultry	73%
Pigs	73%
Low land Grazing Livestock	71%
LFA GrazingLivestock	67%
Mixed	66%
All types	66%
Horticulture	58%
Cereals	57%
Generalcropping	49%

Note: based on performance within farm types, unweighted data, excludes unpaid labour

a)

Drivers of Efficiency - Overview

Strong positive correlation for all farm types, suggesting consistent performance in both years

Most consistent for Dairy, least consistent for General cropping

Correlation of 100% would represent no change between years

What do we mean by good performance?

- b) How does performance vary from farm to farm?
- c) What do we think, based on the evidence so far, drives performance?

defra

- Two studies have been completed by the Defra Observatory looking at the variation in economic performance between farms.
- One looks specifically at cereal farms, the other looks at grazing livestock farms.

The published reports are available at:

- <u>http://www.defra.gov.uk/statistics/files/defra-stats-foodfarm-environ-obs-</u> research-arable-cereals-110505.pdf
- <u>http://www.defra.gov.uk/statistics/files/defra-stats-foodfarm-environ-obs-</u> research-cattle-grazingrep-120308.pdf

Grazing Livestock Farms: Study

defra

The grazing livestock study used FBS data for England over the period 2003 – 2009. 545 farms were included in the sample.

The study looked at the extent to which variation in economic performance could be explained by:

- · Large scale geographic factors
- · Year to year variation
- · Internal differences such as management ability



Grazing Livestock Farms: Results

defra

Factors that help to explain the variation in efficiency between livestock farms:

•Debt (-) •Tenure and farm age •Land area (+) •Specialisation (+) •Diversification (+) •Farm assurance (+) •Unpaid family labour (+) •Contract work (+) •Livestock type •Organics •Size

Grazing Livestock Farms: Results

defra

defra

The grazing livestock study also found that some business management practices are linked to economic efficiency.

High performing businesses are more likely to:

- · use management accounting practices, including benchmarking
- · have a PC and use the internet for submitting forms electronically
- · use business management exercises to plan ahead
- · put in practice actions to bring about environmental improvements
- · show a high level of interaction with customers
- adopt risk management strategies
- · use technical advice obtained from events and demonstrations

Cereal Farms: Results

Factors that help to explain the variation in efficiency between cereal farms:

•Debt (-) •Tenure (+) •Farmer age •Land area (+) •Specialisation (+) •Diversification (-) (for agriculture) •Farm assurance •Unpaid family labour (+) •Contract work (+) •Organics •Size (+)

defra

defra

This section of the FBS was run for the first time in 2007/08.

- Data was collected on business management practices from a sub sample of farm businesses. Completion of the management practices section was voluntary. Around 1,450 farm businesses completed returns.
- The information collected covered practices, techniques, skills and qualifications that farmers use to make business decisions.





Source: Farm Business Survey, England 2007/05



What drives economic performance?

defra

- Enterprise
- Innovation
- Competition
- Investment (Physical capital)
- Skills (Human capital)



6 Lithuanian dairy farms business - evaluation of the economic performance indicators

Rima Daunyte and Arvydas Kuodys



		2	010 compared to
Indicator	2004	2010	2004, per cen
Dairy cows, heads	451054	380205	84
Farms with cows	193391	92804	48
Milk production, t	1848.7	1736.5	94
Share of milk output in the total output, per cent	21.8	20.4	94
Share of milk product export in the total agro export, per cent	25.7	14.4	56









			-0					
Number of dairy cows	Assets UA/	per 1 ha A, Lt	Liabiliti ha UA	esper 1 A, Lt	Solver (TL/TA), cen	per t	Liquid (CA/ShT time:	ity 'D), s
	2004	2010	2004	2010	2004	2010	2004 2	010
≤ 10	4173	9243	47	167	1	2	32	35
11-25	4485	7276	157	743	3	10	9	8
26 - 50	5595	8306	529	1245	9	15	5	6
> 50	6786	10433	1572	2121	25	20	4	4
Average	4687	8731	267	829	6	9	9	8

Lithuanian institute of agrarian economic

Number of dairy	FNVA per 1 dairy cow,	FNI per 1 ha UAA, per	ROA, p	er cent	Vitality opportunit	(FNI / ty costs)	Profitability net investr	(FN nent
cows	per cent	cent	2004	2010	2004	2010	2004	201
≤ 10	92	121	6	0.5	1.16	0.78	-	7.
11 - 25	128	159	14	15	2.04	2.17	20.3	2.3
26 - 50	112	140	19	17	3.82	2.69	6.7	2.
> 50	133	128	21	18	5.05	3.86	2.0	6.
Average	115	142	15	9	2.13	1.46	15.4	3.















7 Challenges in Collecting Data from Complex Farm Operations: Review of Perspectives from an International Conference

Mary Ahearn

7.1 Introduction

The increasing organizational complexity of farming establishments offers both opportunities and challenges for improving the accuracy of statistical estimates and policy data sets. These complexities can affect data collection, accuracy of estimates, and the use of data, e.g., in multivariate and policy analysis, disclosure, and dissemination of estimates. Recognizing that this situation is commonly faced by statistical agencies across the globe, an international workshop of economists and statisticians engaged in the development and use of economic statistics for agriculture and rural development was convened 26-28 June, 2011 to share experiences and lessons in collecting high-quality farm-level data. The shared goal of the participants was to contribute to the improvement of statistical estimates and data bases for policy purposes.¹

The meeting began by discussing the uses of the data bases and statistics and the current data collection challenges associated with the increasingly complex agricultural and food sectors. The meeting then addressed the current innovations and potential approaches for future improvements. Organizers and participants expected this to be an ongoing discussion. It is in this spirit that I will describe the issue and progress made at the 2011 workshop at this 20th Pacioli workshop.

7.2 Background

At the same time that economists are demanding harmonized data sets across countries, the structure of agriculture is changing rapidly as the march towards an integrated international marketplace continues. Worldwide small family farms dominate the landscape. In developed countries, however, agricultural production is increasingly concentrated on a small share of farms. For example, in the U.S., in 2007 there were 2.1 million farms. Most of these are small family farms and are vital to rural development strategies. However, only 32,886 of these farms (or 1.5%) account for half of the value of production. The situation is highly similar in other major agricultural producing countries, like Canada, Brazil, and many European countries. In contrast, in many developing countries, small farms dominate production. Complexities in agriculture structure and diversity of structure across countries raise many interesting economic and policy questions addressed by economists worldwide. However, analysis of contemporary agricultural issues is

¹ The workshop was jointly sponsored by the Economic Research Service and National Agricultural Statistics Service of the U.S. Department of Agriculture, Agricultural and Agri-Food Canada, Statistics Canada, and the Farm Foundation. The planning committee was: Mary Ahearn (co-leader), Kevin Barnes (co-leader), David Culver (co-leader), Sheldon Jones (co-leader), Jeffrey Smith (co-leader), Koen Boone, Flavio Bolliger, Bill Iwig, Ashley Leduc, Jaki McCarthy, Jim MacDonald, Joe Parsons, Krijn Poppe, and Daniela Ravindra. Besides the sponsoring institutions, other statistical organizations participating were: the U.S. Census Bureau, Eurostat, the Organization for Economic Cooperation and Development, Food and Agriculture Organization of the United Nations, the Institute for Ministry of Economic Affairs, Agriculture and Innovation of the Netherlands, and the Instituto Brasileirode Geografia e Estatistica of Brazil. In addition, participants included experts from universities and agribusiness, as well as farmers.

hampered by the challenges in collecting and assembling country-specific data on farms and farm households.

The number and organizational structure of farming establishments varies across and within countries.¹ Some organizational attributes of a farming establishment present challenges and new opportunities in the development of agricultural and rural statistics and data bases. These attributes can affect data collection, accuracy of estimates, and the use of data, e.g., in multivariate and policy analysis, disclosure, and dissemination of estimates. We refer to establishments² as 'complex' when they pose a high level of these types of attributes in the process of developing statistics and research/policy data bases representative of the target populations.

It is not possible to precisely define a complex establishment or the degree of complexity of an establishment, especially since establishments evolve over time as they optimize their objectives, plus effective complexity may vary by the environmental context. Nevertheless, I will attempt to provide a common understanding of the population of complex farming operations in light of the missions of federal statistical agencies³, including (1) the uses of the data bases and statistics and (2) the causes of complexity in farming establishments and identification of the organizational attributes of farming establishments that could be considered as 'complex' based on quantifiable characteristics of the establishments. While this paper will make no attempt to describe the challenges posed in the context of systematically managing statistical agency goals and responsibilities, they are certainly an important factor and vary by institution. These agency considerations might include: production and/or management occurring across geopolitical boundaries, disclosure complexity, list frame construction and maintenance, and the use of administrative data that does not perfectly align with data collection procedures.

7.3 Uses

Farm survey and census data contribute to a multitude of end uses, too numerous to describe here. Two general classes of products developed from survey and census data, estimates and data bases. Surveys and censuses are the key information sources for critical production and economic *estimates* developed and periodically released, sometimes by economic class of farm, and often times for standard disaggre-gated geo-political units, e.g., states or provinces. An important part of the value of statistical estimates is that they are part of a long time series which place the current situation in context. The second type of product developed from survey and census data are *data bases* for policy analyses. Policy analyses are often focused on distributional issues, e.g., they address questions about how current policies have affected economic performance or how proposed policies affect economic performance for certain subpopulations, as well as the aggregate population. For example, what factors influence farmers' decisions about adoption of new technologies, many of which are related to larger household issues? Policy makers must understand farmer decision making in order to institute policies that promote the farmer behaviors they are interested in encouraging. For policy purposes, therefore, it is important to have complete farm-level data because responses to policies will vary by farm and farm household characteristics and the subpopulation of focus will vary depending on the issue.

Experience in the U.S. shows that the average or mean of many indicators mask differences that matter. For example, of the 70 thousand farms with milk cows in 2007, the average dairy farm has 133 cows, but 2.3 percent of farms with 1000 cows or more produced 42 percent of all dairy product sales. Similarly, in Brazil, 40 percent of the largest farms (with 26 hectares or more) account for over three-quarters of total grain, oilseed, and meat production. Ignoring the distribution of economic activity can lead to unin-

¹ There are approximately 2.1 million farming establishments in the U.S., 230 thousand in Canada, 4.8 million in Brazil, and 14.5 million in the EU-27.

² We use the terms establishment, farm, and operation interchangeably.

³ We have a broad definition of statistical agencies, to include economic agencies.

tended consequences for a policy to provide assistance to small farms and fails to provide information about the extent of the farm population in vulnerable financial positions.

Important policy issues in today's world are broad and encompass not just food production, but the rural economy, household incomes and environmental issues such as water quality, water availability, and climate change. Given the complexity of these issues, they often require that data from agricultural surveys and censuses be linked to other data sources, i.e., on communities and natural resources. Hence, farm data should have the capacity to be georeferenced or otherwise linkable to relevant data sets.

7.4 Causes and Characteristics of Complexity

Causes and characteristics of complexity include:

- production contracts
- marketing contracts
- vertical integration
- dispersed asset ownership, management, and returns
- use of farmland
- output sales discovery for open market sales

Many complexities are associated with the size of establishments. Large farms, in particular, are more likely to have more complex organizational structures than traditional, midsized family farms. In the U.S., a long-running trend of increasing concentration of production is expected to continue and this is expected to lead to increasing challenges in future data collection activities. There were 5,541 farms in the U.S. 2007 Census of Agriculture that sold more than \$5,000,000 in the census year. All but two states (Alaska and Rhode Island) had farms of this size. The majority of farms in this group produced livestock or special-ty crops, and produced more than 25% of the total value of agricultural production. Across all specialties, 449 operations produce 10% of total agricultural products, and 4,009 operations 25% of the total. (See Appendix table for information on the number of farms accounting for certain shares of commodity categories.)

Furthermore, the data collection challenges are heightened for a concentrated industry because estimates from surveys that rely on stratified sampling often require complete enumeration of the largest operations. The levels that qualify an operation as a 'largest' operation vary by survey. In some survey estimates, only a handful of operations may produce a large percentage of the total estimated amount. Maintaining the cooperation of the very large operations in data collection activities is essential to providing accurate estimates, and these are the very operations that must be contacted often for a number of surveys.

Many of the most important policy issues relate to the people engaged in agriculture, and the majority of people in agriculture operate small farms. Extremely small farm sizes can also pose challenges in data collection. Of course, the extent of this issue varies across countries, in part, because of differing definitions of a farm or holding. In the U.S., approximately 25 percent of all farms are point¹ farms. Although some small farms may be start-ups seeking to build their production over time, it is likely that others intend to stay extremely small farms for other financial reasons, such as to lower local property taxes, in-

¹ In the U.S., if a place does not have \$1,000 in sales, a 'point system' assigns dollar values for acres of various crops and head of various livestock species to estimate a normal level of sales. Point farms are farms with fewer than \$1,000 in sales but have points worth at least \$1,000. Point farms tend to be very small. Some, however, may normally have large sales, but experience low sales in a particular year due to bad weather, disease, changes in marketing strategies, or other factors. For farms with production contracts, the value of the commodities produced is used, not the amount of the fees they receive. Changes are made to the point system over time. For example, beginning with the 1997 Census of Agriculture, operations receiving \$1,000 or more in Federal government payments were counted as farms, even if they had no sales and otherwise lacked the potential to have \$1,000 or more in sales. And, for 2002, a farm that had \$500 point value and \$500 in government payments is considered a farm.

come tax management, and realization of capital gains on their farmland. The major data collection challenge for the extremely small farms comes, primarily, in their identification as a farm and, secondarily, in the separation of business and household expenses.

Production Contracts

A production contract is a contract in which a producer produces, cares for, or raises commodities not owned by the producer, using land, equipment or facilities owned or leased by the producer, in exchange for payment. A production contract specifies, in detail, the production inputs supplied by the contractor (processor, feed mill, other farm operation or business), the quality and quantity of a particular commodity, and the type of compensation to the grower (contractee) for services rendered. Almost all broilers in the US are produced under production contracts, as well as the majority of hogs, and other livestock sectors. Production contracts are less common in crop production.

For establishments with production contracts, data collection for some items is a challenge because other parties may contribute inputs to the production and the operator may not be able to accurately report either the amount, the cost of inputs, or quality variations provided by others. Similarly, they may not be able to report the value of production. This lack of information seriously hampers the ability of a data user to understand differences in productivity and returns across operations. In addition, because of the competitive nature of the industries involved, there are sensitivities on the part of both contractees and contractors in providing detailed contract information. Even if it were the practice to contact the contractor for follow-up, some values may not be known to them because many contractors are vertically integrated establishments.

Farm establishments can also be the contractor in production contracts with other farms. For example, a livestock operation may contract with another operation to feed/raise livestock it owns and markets. For accurate accounting of net returns, the livestock sales will be included with the returns of the operation and any expenses paid by the operation for this service must be included in expenses.

On the other hand, some single data series, particularly inventory data, may be easier to collect when production contracting is adopted. If one entity owns the livestock raised on a number of contract operations, it is necessary only to contact the owner of the livestock to estimate inventories, not the person raising each barn of chickens or hogs. Production contracting is one type of complexity that is related to farm size—large farms are more likely than small farms to engage in production contracting.

Marketing Contracts

Under marketing contracts a producer enters an agreement with a downstream handler to deliver a specified commodity, with specified qualities, at a certain time period, for a specified price or pricing mechanism. Since the producer retains control over production decisions he or she is able to provide information on production decisions, including input prices. Hence, marketing contracts do not pose the same data collection challenges as do production contracts. However, data collection challenges in marketing contracts can arise when the final output prices are not known at the time of data collection due to a complex pricing mechanism or lags in marketing that occurs over multiple periods.

Most of the production marketed through marketing contacts is on relatively large farms, but a small, and increasing number of small farms, use marketing contracts. For example, marketing through community supported agriculture (CSAs) or having a predetermined arrangement with a restaurant to deliver product are types of marketing contracts.

Vertically Integrated Operations

Vertical integration combines successive stages in the production and marketing process under the ownership or control of a single establishment or firm. Vertical integration poses challenges in data collection because some data items, most notably commodity prices, may not be defined, as they are in open markets. For example, production prices are usually defined at the farm gate. If an operation controls production from the field to the retail chain, a farm gate price may never exist. For example, a livestock slaughterhouse acquiring a cattle operation to better manage their supply target for slaughter is a case of vertical integration.

Individual establishments may engage in multiple marketing channels, further complicating data collection and estimation. For example, an operation that grows grapes for wine may sell some grapes on the wholesale market, and keep a portion of the crop to make into wine (i.e., downstream vertical integration). The value they receive for the wholesale grapes may not be equivalent to the value for grapes kept for value-added processing if the operation chooses to keep higher or lower quality products for in-house activities.

Most of the product produced by vertically integrated firms is from relatively large firms. However, some small farms engage in a type of vertical integration, such as an apple orchard that produces and sells its own cider. The sales of the cider are treated as income of the farming operation, i.e., farm-related income. This also implies that there must be a clear understanding of when a processed or value-added product should be considered as income of the farming operation.

Dispersed Asset Ownership, Management, and Returns

There are many reasons why an establishment might have multiple asset owners and managers for farming operations. For one, the start-up and expansion costs in farming can be quite high, especially given the price of land. Just like in any business, a farm producer may seek investment partners, some of whom participate in some or all of the management decisions. Since a priority use of data for policy purposes is the development of well-being estimates for farm operator households, if all operators are part of the same household, contacting the farm business can also allow for farm operator household information to be collected. When a farm has multiple operators who do not share a household, developing well-being estimates for all farm operator households requires a follow-up to the farm operators who are not principal operators to determine their households' nonfarm income, net worth, and household characteristics. (The additional contacts have never been made in the U.S.)

Since farmland has historically been a very sound investment, it attracts outside investors, who do not participate in the management of the operation. Sometimes these investors invest in land management companies, contracting out the land management activity, and the companies then rent out farmland. Additionally, farming across the globe is generally a family business and is often left to multiple heirs. Oftentimes, heirs will sell their shares to the principal operator, but not always. For example, among Black farmers in the U.S. it is not uncommon for small farming operations to have many non-operator owners, all of whom are descendants of an earlier land owner. This is sometimes referred to as fragmentation. Data collection for non-operator landowners requires a follow-up visit—last done in the U.S. in the 1999 Agricultural Economics Landownership Survey.

Another cause of dispersed, and complex, farm ownership patterns is the result of government farm programs that set certain limits on the types of farming organizations that can participate in programs, such direct payments programs. In the U.S., corn producers receive the greatest share of direct payments and cotton producers receive the greatest per-acre payments. Although effective payment limits are quite generous to producers, some of the largest producers choose to reorganize their businesses so as to avoid the limitations. The effect of payment limit avoidance is to produce more organizational complex establishments with more sharing of ownership, management, and returns, thereby complicating data collection efforts.

Similarly, the organization of farming establishments may become more complex through the increase in owners and managers as a result of owners' motivations to (1) reduce tax burdens resulting from income tax laws and inheritance provisions and (2) reduce legal liabilities. This has implications for how farm operators and owners receive income from the farm establishment. For example, operators of C-corporations do not receive the net income of the farm as a sole proprietor would, rather they might receive dividend income or wage and salary income and might chose to retain some of the earnings with the farm business.

If an operation has many operators and/or many owners, data collection can be difficult for a variety of reasons. In the U.S., an operator is defined as the person(s) making day-to-day decisions for the farm operation. While the existing definitions of operators and operations facilitate the current approach to list building, the current concepts may no longer be reasonable concepts for some complex farms. For example, a complex operation may consist of multiple enterprises (perhaps in multiple locations) with separate managers for each enterprise. For example, a dairy farm that produces its own crops might have a crop manager and a cow manager. It may also have an accountant or bookkeeper, who manages business records, a human resource manager who controls information about employment and a marketing manager, who makes decisions about pricing and sales, as well as a general manager with overall control of the operation. For a given survey, it may be difficult for a single respondent to provide data for the operation and difficult to identify which respondent can respond to different data items for an establishment. Different persons involved in the operation may even provide alternative responses to survey questions. In addition, the contact person might change more often than a smaller operation with a single owner/operator. Perhaps most problematic, when there are multiple owners and managers, is tracing the net returns of the farming establishment that accrue to each of the parties. This is further complicated by the fact that data collection efforts in very complex establishments sometimes rely on fairly low-level staff to complete survey instruments, while most educational outreach efforts are geared at farm managers, farm owners, or high-level professional staff.

Use of Farmland

Land management companies rent out land to farm establishments, offer services to farmland owners, and have varying degrees of involvement with agricultural land. If some of the land they manage is managed by them as a place that qualifies as a farm, they are part of the farm population to be sampled. For farmland that is rented out or managed in some manner for multiple farmland owners, a land management company may be the best contact for some information that is collected on surveys and censuses of farms.

Some farm establishments rent-in grazing land on a per-head basis from private and public organizations. In this case, a farm operator may not know and be able to report how many acres are being used exclusively for their purpose; the best source for the acreage information may be the entity renting-out the grazing rights. Land rented on a per-head basis can be rented from public or private agencies, industrial corporations, grazing associations, and from individuals under a short-term grazing arrangement. Knowledge of acres rented on a per-head basis is critical for land use statistics. Accuracy of land use statistics has increased in its importance because of international concerns regarding climate change and potential climate change mitigation policies. For farm financial analysis, being able to accurately measure farmland as a production input is essential.

Output Sales Discovery for Open Market Sales

Collection of the value of sales for commodities sold on the open market is a basic economic data item for any farm survey or census. However, there is some evidence that the ability to collect this basic item varies by commodity and region. This is because, for some commodities in some regions, the value of sales may be net of marketing expenses, rather than gross of marketing expenses. Given that there may be variation across establishments about how best to collect sales (and marketing expense) information, the preferred approach is not clear. This question has been a long-running question for ERS and NASS experts in the U.S. Currently, the two major U.S. farm data collection efforts, the quinquennial Census and the annual ARMS, take differing approaches.

Some establishments market their output through grower cooperatives. It is not uncommon for producers in cooperatives to not have final sale information for their product at the time of data collection due to a lag in sales. Payments for product sales can come in the form of cooperative dividends. (The lag in information on commodity sales under a cooperative is not unlike the situation for sales under marketing contracts.) In the case of some commodities, e.g., rice, the cooperative receives the government farm payments on behalf of the grower and government payments are transferred by the cooperative to the grower along with dividend payments. In some situations, cooperatives do not attempt to separate out the source of the returns between product sales and government payments. Clarification of the sources of cooperative payments would require direct contact with the grower cooperative or administrative records.

7.5 Broad Implications of Workshop

Appendix A provides a brief abstract of each workshop presentation, and full papers are available upon request for many presentations. General conclusions from the workshop include the following:

- The opportunities and challenges for improving the accuracy of estimates and policy data sets in an increasingly complex agriculture will depend on the use and type of data required. For certain items in sectors dominated by production contracting, for example, inventory data may be relatively easy to collect. One contact with the contractor may be enough to collect individual inventory data for many contractees. Similarly, collecting acres rented on a per-head basis for individual farms and ranches may be collected by contacting public and private grazing agencies.
- There is considerable interest in adopting data collection approaches that target important and complex observations in the statistical universe and tailor data collection approaches to jointly consider the requirements of both the respondent and data collector.
- Data collection from administrative sources, while minimizing respondent burden and data collection costs, may increase the cost associated with the coordination of the process to link these data to individual farm records. For policy analysis purposes, accurate data must be available at the farm-level because flexible distributional information is essential.
- Increasing complexity generally means collection of farm financial data will be more difficult. For example, with production contracting, a price may be impossible to obtain at the farmgate, since the contractor owns the livestock until sold to retail markets. Or, for whole farm financial accounting, when multiple parties have an economic stake in the operation, it may be necessary to make multiple contacts to ascertain the full picture of the economic health of the farm. Increasing concentration in production also implies that contact with the very largest operations be managed strategically and systematically across surveys.
- Complex farms are not all large farms and while production is increasing concentrated on large farms (especially bound for export markets or further processing), in many countries, the number of small farms is increasing. Examples of complexities that may arise in data collection from small farms includes financial and use information for sharing of large, expensive farm machinery, increased home use or bartering, diversity of production mixes and input management, and diversity of marketing channels. By their nature, small farms are more difficult to identify for list-building purposes, as well.

Identifying improved data collection approaches is a dynamic process because complexities are continually evolving. Continual sharing of learning experiences among economic and statistical agencies will allow for the development of recommendations for improved data collection and better position agencies to inform the important decisions of the day. Moreover, this will lead to improved capacity to harmonize data sets across the globe, something that is at the core of the Pacioli mission, and likely to be of increasing importance in the future.

Appendix A. Abstracts of presentations made at the 2011 International Workshop

US Perspective: Daniel Sumner, Professor, University of California, Davis and the Director of the University of California, Agricultural Issues Center, previously Asst. Secretary for Economics, USDA

Abstract: Agricultural establishments are and have long been complex in many dimensions. Relevant data and analysis must develop in ways consistent with complexities for the analysis to be relevant to current and future agricultural issues.

Increasingly economists are turning to specialized sources collected to help determine important parameters. The presentation reinforces the main points through a series of examples of quite different data collection efforts: animal welfare; hedonic pricing and identification of willingness to pay for product

attributes; supply elasticities for corn and soybeans incorporating rotations and spatial heterogeneity. Often data analysts are driven by supply chain, environmental and other issues which mean linking farm data up the marketing chain and back down to resource use.

The Netherlands Perspective: Krijn Poppe, Chief Science Officer at Ministry of Economic Affairs, Agriculture and Innovation and LEI Wageningen, UR, The Netherlands

Abstract: Policy research seldom needs yearly census data; yearly income and other data from a panel is enough in The Netherlands. The presentation provides numerous suggestions for the building of data sets including: Using econometrics as a substitute for data gathering, collaborating with industry (and their datasets), the use of IT to get electronic data, the use of standard definitions (in the 90% of the cases where this is possible), and develop those standards where needed. The presentation emphasized the importance of showing distributions of data and clearly defining the farm unit and how it is integrated into the food chain.

Developing Country Perspective: Naman Keita, Food and Agriculture Organization, United Nations *Abstract:* The recent food crisis and food market volatility have led to a renewed recognition of the critical importance of the agriculture sector as source of economic growth, food security and poverty reduction and improvement of the livelihood of a large proportion of the population in many developing countries. For policies to be effective, they need to be grounded in factual evidence about the sector and make systematic and rigorous use of statistics. However, in many developing countries, the agriculture sector is very complex and evolving rapidly with the simultaneous presence and inter-linkages of several farming systems. This paper reviews the special challenges to data collection in developing countries where there is a wide range of farms, from subsistence family farms to large, modern, market-oriented and highly mechanized systems.

Canadian Perspective: Dave Freshwater, Professor, University of Kentucky and Dave Culver, Chief, Farm Performance and Structure, AAFC

Abstract: Agricultural policy has been unusual in that it has specified the ongoing existence of a desired production unit, the family farm, as a policy objective. But, despite decades of policy intervention, the majority of Canadian farms no longer meet the common definition of a family farm. Yet, for the most part, the data collected on farming seems trapped in the use of the older and simpler concept of the family farm. The paper reviews these issues, emphasizing different challenges depending on the farm size. Both large and small farms have complex organizational structures. Managers of data systems cannot simply focus on doing a better job of understanding how large farms behave, although they certainly must do this, if only because large farms account for the majority of commodity production. Small farms, while less significant for the production of commodities, play an important role in resource use and in generating political support for agriculture.

Discussant: Catherine Moreddu, Senior Economist, Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD)

Abstract: The discussion comments focused on four main points: 1) changing priorities in data demand; 2) cost of information; 3) increasing complexity; and 4) distributional issues. As agri-environmental and rural development policies gained in importance in recent decades, more complex information has been needed to evaluate them. These new types of information are at once more local, complex, multidiscipli-

nary and integrated. Recent price movements, however, have prompted renewed interest for market information to analyse price formation and transmission along the food chain, and to identify the causes and consequences of price variability in agriculture. We are all convinced of the need to look at the distribution of variables, but it is not easy to convey distributional information in a printed graph. The comments also ask: Is the household still the unit of analysis for complex farms?

Canada: Jeffrey Smith, Director, Agriculture Division, Statistics Canada

Abstract: The paper presents the challenges facing Statistics Canada in two parts: those challenges faced generally when collecting data in business surveys; and those faced more specifically in collecting data from agricultural operations (surveys of agricultural operations are classified as business surveys at Statistics Canada). Increasing the use of administrative data already provided by agricultural operations appears to be a direction that must be pursued to substantially reduce the amount of survey-ing. While reduction of survey response burden was acknowledged as a good and worthy goal, it appeared that among the large and/or more complex operations, there is an equally strong (or even stronger) desire on their part for the data collector to 'get it right', that is, to take the time with them to properly understand the operation so that the data which are collected are correct, meaningful and useful. Greater use of technology (e.g., to allow sharing of information, to allow pre-filling of information and only getting updates on changes, etc.) and innovative methods on the part of the statistical agencies would be welcomed by respondents.

Brazil: Flavio Bolliger, Coordinator, Agriculture Division, Instituto Brasileirode Geografia e Estatistica (IBGE)

Abstract: The types of complex establishments that raise major challenges for data collection and making records compatible with the information required in Brazil are related to (a) corporations operating in more than one activity and (b) those with a large number of physical operating units. Special attention should also be paid to cases of large corporate agricultural establishments or absentee individual producers, for which the relevant information should be collected from different places in far-off urban centers and even in a different federative state. The sugar-ethanol sector is the largest example of complex establishments in agricultural statistics in Brazil and so the paper uses this supply chain as an example of the challenges. In the Agricultural Census the information from the sugar-ethanol sector had a special collection procedure. The plants have several agricultural establishments spread over several sectors, making it unfeasible to collect at the census level, causing impacts on planning the sample surveys. In the industrial surveys, this agro-industry still has characteristics that result or may result in overestimating intermediary consumption and underestimating the added value, consequently underestimating the sector's participation in the GDP.

Eurostat's Farm, Agro-environment, and Rural Development Statistics: Marcel Ernens, Head of Unit *Abstract:* There is a recognized need for modernization of EU Agricultural Statistics, in part because of the new demands for data on rural development, agro-environmental indicators, and food safety statistics. The presentation reviewed the plans to modernize statistics relating to agriculture in the major areas of (1) primary statistics, like crop and livestock surveys, (2) derived statistics, like economic accounts, and (3) the broad category of related indicators on land use and cover, food safety, rural development, and agri-environmental indicators.

DG Agri's Farm Accountancy Data Network: Thierry Vard, Team Leader Economic Analysis, Microeconomic Analysis of EU Agricultural Holdings

Abstract: The Farm Accountancy Data Network (FADN) was established in Europe in 1965 with an objective to measure farm income and conduct a business analysis on agricultural holdings. This paper describes the characteristics of the FADN and the challenges faced by data collection in the FADN as agricultural establishments become more complex. There remains a focus on income distribution and an increasing interest in measuring competitiveness (e.g., costs of production and productivity), making the representativeness of FADN an issue since FADN is voluntary.

U.S.: Joe Parsons, Senior Research Statistician, NASS, USDA

Abstract: In the U.S., data collection from large, complex farms is handled on an individual basis by the decentralized NASS field offices. In order to gain a better understanding of the approaches that these offices employed and found to be most successful, NASS conducted a survey of local offices to collect views about (1) the challenges and (2) their responses to those challenges. (See also Jaki McCarthy's presentation, based on data from this survey.) This presentation identified a great deal of variation among the local offices in both regards.

Aspects of Complexity: Current and Emerging Issues in Agribusiness, Moderator, Sheldon Jones, Vice-President, Farm Foundation

Abstract: This session featured the unique insights of three agribusiness representatives: George Muehlbach, John Deere; Tom Wegner, Land O'Lakes (presentation posted); and Dewayne Goldmon, Monsanto. Each presentation emphasized the importance of government data on agriculture to agribusiness, e.g., in helping them price their products, and also recommended that government data collection agencies consider utilizing administrative data available from industry sources as a means of reducing burden on farmers. There was also agreement that burden could be reduced by government agencies sharing data amongst themselves.

Aspects of Complexity: Producers Voices on Complexity and Government Data Collection Needs/Approaches, Moderator, Kevin Barnes, NASS

Abstract: This session featured the unique insights of four farmers, each with a different type of business complexity: Kevin A. Green, Cash Grain Producer, Greenview Farms, DeWitt, Iowa (see presentation); Craig Yunker, Vegetable, Mixed Grains, and Sod Producer, CY Farms & Batavia Turf, Elba, NY (see presentation); Beth Kennett, Dairy Producer and Agritourism, Liberty Hill Farm, Rochester, VT; and Stewart Skinner, Hog Producer with Direct Marketing, Stonaleen Farms, Ontario, CA. The farmers kindly shared the details about how their farms are organized, emphasizing the challenges that they would face in responding to standard questionnaires, as they attempt to cooperate with government data collection agencies. For example, Kev-in Green's operation makes use of multiple legal entities that separate asset ownership from production activities. Similarly, Craig Yunker's operation is highly complex, in part because of its multiple activities along multiple supply chains. The other two farmers, Beth Kennett and Stewart Skinner have smaller operations and yet their operations are complex in that they are engaged in niche direct marketing activities and nontraditional enterprises, like recreational services.

NASS/USDA's Practices across State Offices, Jaki McCarthy, Research Statistician, NASS, USDA *Abstract*: In the U.S., data collection from large complex farms is handled on an individual basis by the decentralized NASS field offices. In order to gain a better understanding of the approaches that these offices employed and found to be most successful, NASS conducted a survey of local offices to collect views about (1) the challenges and (2) their responses to those challenges. (See also Joe Parsons's presentation, based on data from this survey.) This presentation identified a great deal of variation among the local offices, as reflected in field office responses. The presentation drew on the social psychology literature to consider factors that affected response rates, i.e., persuasion, influence, and cooperation.

Administrative Data for U.S. Agricultural Estimates, Ginger Harris, Demographer and Statistician, USDA, NASS

Abstract: This presentation reviewed the current sources of administrative data used by NASS for enhancing and updating the list frame of farmers, including lists of establishments reporting farm income (from IRS, the U.S. Tax Agency) and death lists (from Social Security Administration). NASS has found that aggregate administrative data is most helpful for aggregate estimates (such as, corn acres planted in a certain state and/or county) and most are compiled by summing field level data so are not impacted by the complexity of the organization structure. Problems arise in use when either the definition or the boundaries of the entities do not match between the operational survey program and the administrative data source. The paper drew on the lessons learned from a project using administrative data on government payments. Currently, there is a department initiative to standardize data collection, so farmers only need to report once to USDA for program administration. However, it remains unclear at this point if this includes NASS as a statistical agency, or just the program administration agencies. **Canada's Enterprise Portfolio Management and Large Agricultural Operations Statistics (LAOS) Unit Approach**, Francine Lavoie, Chief, Enterprise Portfolio Management Program, Enterprise Statistics Division, and Steven Danford, Chief, Census of Agriculture, Agriculture Division, Statistics Canada *Abstract:* This presentation described the Statistics Canada system currently used to collect data from complex farm operations, the Large Agriculture Operation System, or LAOS. Through this program, the data collection for a farmer with a complex operation is coordinated by Statistics Canada so that the same information required on multiple surveys is collected only once. LAOS helps maintain a balance between the need for data and response burden. There was a great deal of interest in the challenges and opportunities of this system for application in other countries.

Lessons from the U.S. Census Bureau's Efforts on the Large Company Contact Program, Bob Marske, Chief, Product Development & Strategic Planning Staff/OEPI, U.S. Bureau of the Census *Abstract*. The Economic Census imposes a significant burden on the Nation's largest companies, which have hundreds of locations and must complete a form for each of them. These large companies, which comprise at least 35 percent of the U.S. payroll, are critical to the Census. Because large companies are critical to published data, the U.S. Census Bureau has developed an account manager (AM) program. This program appoints a single contact to help each large company meet its filing requirement. The goal of the program is to help companies understand the census, facilitate use of electronic reporting tools, and accelerate response. While the AM program has been in existence for the past three censuses, the 2007 Economic Census was the most effective in terms of timeliness and unit response. This paper presents background on the AM program, new strategies used for 2007, and plans for the next census.

Translation of Economic Theory into Practical Guidance for Data Collection from Farm Firms and Households: Defining the Target Population and Identifying Relevant Data Items, Jean-Paul Chavas, Anderson-Bascom Professor, Agricultural and Applied Economic, University of Wisconsin. *Abstract:* An integrated analysis of data availability, choices, survey cost, and statistical methods can improve the flexibility, precision and usefulness of data collection and analysis. This paper presents a brief overview of these issues, and reviews what statistical theory and econometrics offer as guidance in the process of collecting and analyzing data.

The paper also considers the optimality of data collection and analysis, recognizing the fact that investigators typically have incomplete experimental control. The paper includes a discussion of the definition of a 'farm' for data collection purpose, both from a statistical viewpoint and an economic viewpoint. Arguments are presented stressing the role of microeconomic dynamics, and the need for better panel data to help us assess the role of managerial ability and its effects on economic adjustments to changing market conditions and technology. Unfortunately, panel data are rather rare. Yet, having access to panel data can be quite valuable. At this point, some important issues remain poorly understood in large part due to a lack of annual panel data. This includes the role of managerial skills in technology adoption, the role of human capital in market dynamics, and the role of education in the current obesity epidemic.

A Business School Perspective on Agriculture, David Sparling, Professor and Chair of Agri-Food Innovation and Regulation, Richard Ivey School of Business, University of Western Ontario

Abstract: This presentation emphasized the difference in perspective between a business school and an economics perspective. In a business school perspective, profitability is key. It takes a first person, rather than a third person perspective. Therefore, the focus is on individual decision making and the importance of 'owning' your problem. This is consistent with the farmer's perspective. Both net income to the business units and capital appreciation are key. The paper advocates for a flexible approach to data collection. Because of the focus on individual decisions, a business school perspective finds great value in case studies.

Accounting Practices of Farming Organizations: How they Organize Business Information, Cathy Parciak, President, Quality Professional Accounting Corporation

Abstract: It is important to recognize that farmers will organize their data in ways that meet their needs. This includes their needs to provide data to financial institutions, tax officials, owners, Canada's Agristability/Agriinvest, and other government programs. It is also important to keep in mind that a goal of the farmer is to collect data that will lead to an outcome of producers paying their lowest legal taxes, e.g., many report income on a cash basis. It is very common in complex operations for the assets to be owned by multiple entities; however, they do not get separated out for financial statement purposes. Assets usually include equipment required for custom work, drying facilities, trucks, storage facilities, and even non-farm work. It is common for farms to buy the output of other producers. For example, there are very few large horticulture producers that do not buy other farmers products to ensure that they have enough diversified produce to sell at Food Terminals, etc. The speaker used case examples of farming organizations to explain the complexity of the organizations for data collection and their motivations for their organizational form, e.g., minimizing taxes.

The Role of Empirical Research for the Study of Complex Forms of Governance in Agroindustrial Systems: Lessons from Brazil, Maria Sylvia M. Saes, Guilherme Fowler A. Monteiro, Silvia M. Q. Caleman, and Decio Zylbersztajn, PENSA-USP

Abstract: This presentation discusses the role of empirical research in understanding the complex forms of governance in agribusiness. The authors argue that there are three fundamental levels of analysis: (i) the basic structure of the market, (ii) the formal contractual arrangements that govern relations within the agroindustrial system, and (iii) the transactional dimensions governed by non-contractual means. The authors take account of the impact of the concentration in the segments of the supply chains and business strategies. The article concludes by suggesting some indicators which could be collected by statistical agencies to improve understanding of the complex relationships among agribusiness segments.

Innovations Using Farm Records Systems, Allen Featherstone, Professor and Masters in Agribusiness Program Director, Kansas State University

Abstract: The paper begins by providing a background of the Kansas Farm Management Association and an overview of reasons leading to additional organizational complexity are discussed. The presentation examines two cases of the organizational structures of actual farms in the Kansas Farm Management Association to understand the depth of the complexity and how that complexity may be accounted for to fully understand the implications for data collection. Finally, the paper provides conclusions regarding managing the complexity associated with data acquisition and performance measurement to adequately capture the entire farming structure. To truly have an understanding of the farm management decision making process, the collection of data on the multiple entities, or super farm, of an economic agent is necessary. **New Trends and Challenges: Integrating Variables and Observations from Multiple Instruments and Experiences in the Exchange of Farmer's Financial Data among Accounting Offices, Fiscal Authorities, and Research and Statistical Agencies, Koen Boone, LEI Wageningen UR and Krijn Poppe, Ministry of EL&I and LEI Wageningen, UR, The Netherlands**

Abstract: The presentation argues that there is great potential for efficiency gains in data collection. The LEI at Wageningen utilizes many approaches to efficient data collection of complex organizations. Examples included exchanges of data with 5 accounting offices and other private sector firms in the building of the Dutch FADN. For farms for which there is full detail, data are collected from invoices for inputs, bank transactions, and through the linking with other data bases, based on the approval of participating farmers. The presentation also emphasized the importance of harmonizing of definitions, including basic definitions like the farm definition, in order to capture the potential of efficiencies in data collection from multiple sources. There is a large cost in coordinating across all parties to achieve these efficiency gains.

Future Agenda: Where do we go from here? Cameron Short, Acting Director General, Agriculture and Agri-Food Canada; Mary Bohman, Director, Resource and Rural Economy Division, ERS, USDA; Jeffrey Smith, Director, Agriculture Division, Statistics Canada; and Cynthia Clark, Administrator, NASS, USDA *Abstract:* The workshop closed with remarks from leaders participating from the four North American statistical and economic government institutions. A common theme was their interest in fostering the solid programs of each of their agencies, concerns about tight budgets, and their appreciation of the efforts of the workshop participants and their expectations that collaboration will continue in the future. **Cameron Short** (RAD, Ag Canada) raised numerous questions about how policy analysis should be conducted with the increasingly complex farm organizations. This is an important question to answer as solutions to the

challenges of data collection are addressed because it should be the major driver of solutions. He also mentioned the importance of looking at distributions, rather than simple averages. Mary Bohman (RRED, ERS, USDA) indicated that we must change our approaches to data collection continually as the structure of agriculture changes. Although ERS and USDA believe the whole range of data collection activities have value, her comments were focused on the ARMS. The core use of ARMS is income, but the breadth of the information lends itself to many uses. She indicated that ERS is engaged in a complementary activity focused on reviewing alternative approaches to developing financial statements which also must deal with the complex nature of many farm organizations. Jeffery Smith (Ag Division, Stats Canada) emphasized the importance of customized collections, such as with LAOS, and expects to expand that effort. The shift to customized collections shifts some burden from the respondent to statisticians in government agencies. He emphasized that administrative data are fragmented and we can not necessarily assume they are always accurate. There will likely be an increased reliance on Census data as surveys are reduced. There has been a recent initiative to expand access of data to researchers and for commercial applications, although micro data are limited. Cynthia Clark (NASS, USDA) reported that she had gained insights from the workshop that she believes have implications for many of NASS' programs. NASS currently is researching respondent burden and nonresponse bias, which is highly relevant to the complex farm issue. A major practice to reduce burden is sample manipulation across surveys by allowing field office leaders to not collect data from some organizations for some surveys. NASS currently does not have guidelines for how field offices should handle data collection for complex farms, and they are allowed to use their discretion to identify samples as office holds for a variety of reasons. She believes that NASS should be writing procedures on how best to handle these decisions. Procedures should be informed by research, for example, a study by business schools could be beneficial and a better understanding of the value of administrative data (e.g., cooperate with EPA in California).

8 How to deal with large complex farms in Denmark

Henrik Pedersen



- 'How to deal with' is understood as how we handle large **and** complex farms in a statistical FADN concept.
- Large farms are not a problem in themselves often we have bigger problems with small farms. They have a higher drop out ratio and often a not very specialized production.
- The problem or difficulty with large farms occurs when the organization of the farm changes from freehold to partnership or even a company structure.
- This presentation is about how we handle large farms in Denmark organized as partnerships or limited companies.



64

In historical time freehold, - the principle of one man one farm (family farm) - has been the back bone of Danish agriculture.

The problem with large and complex farms is increasing. Why?

- Because farmsize continues to grow to take benefit of economies of scale. This is aided by an ongoing liberalisation of the farm law which over time has allowed one man to own more property and area.
- The average size of farms and especially the average size of big farms is a challenge to the freehold family farm.
- There is a need of professional board of directors in these big farms and especially there is a large (and impossible) need for capital, when a young farmer wants to start on his own or in case of succession.
- The average assets of a Danish full time farm amounts to approximately 6 million Euros, and when we look at large dairy- or pigproducers the average assets amounts to between 10 14 million Euros.



Quite a large sum of money for a young farmer who wants to establish himself.

When you take a look at the Danish sample for FADN it is clear in a relative short period freehold has diminished and more farms are organized in some kind of a company. In 2011 we have 11 per cent in our sample as companies.

Type of ownership	Per cent	Avg. SO, Euro
Freehold	89	675.000
Partnerships	7	1.350.000
imited companies	4	2.450.000

When we look at the types of ownership in the 2011 sample

89% is freehold

7% partnerships

4% limited companies

The average size doubles from freehold to partnerships and also about doubles when we look at limited companies.

Type of farming	Avg. no. not freehold	-"- large holdings
Crops	7%	26% (>500 hectares)
Milk	9%	28% (>200 cows)
Pigs	7%	15-26% (>500 sows)
Horticulture	19%	-

Looking at the distribution of companies at different types of farming it is quite evenly spread, but look at the percentage of large farms: Almost one out of four is organized as a partnership or limited company.



In principle we have to different types of partnerships:

Joint ownership or

Separate ownership

In the first case the account has the desired amount of information and is not difficult to handle.

In the second case each of the partners owns land and buildings and rent it out to the partnership. In a construction like this it is always a question if the rent for land and buildings is market based or the rent is fixed due to other terms.

Because of this and because we prefer to show/have information on all of the farms assets and debts and cost of financing we use the following model.



In this case we have a partnership with separate ownership:

The farmers involved has separate accounts with rent from the partnership, agricultural assets, debts, cost of financing and pirvate consumption.

- When an account for a partnership reported to our FADN office we ask the local accountant for the private accounts.
- We then define the farmer as one of the partners and incorporate information from his private account.

- We also incorporate assets, liabilities and cost of financing for the other partners which is regarded as employees in the agricultural holding.

The result is a farm account comparable to other accounts for freehold agriculture. But it is a timeconsuming, difficult and manual proces!



Another situation is when for example 3 farmers with animal production creates a partnership with crop production on their land.

In this situation all farmers have their separate lot in the population and thus a chance to be selected to our sample.

Thus we do not make any attempts to merge them.



When it comes to even larger farms organized as limited companies it is getting even more complicated. This is an example from the real world, where a farmer through a holding company has 7 companies related to agriculture.

What is our agricultural unit? Actually in this case 5 of the companies is occupied with renting out of building or trade with vegetables and fruit. But two of the companies is occupied with organic and conventional vegetable production and is regarded as separate farm units.



When we look at limited companies there are some options that we should be better to take advantage of:

- They all have to deliver a public account by law.
- These accounts is accesible through public databases

The limitation is that the information in the account is on principal items so for example the details on output and costs are very limited.

But to get more secure estimates on net profit it could be an idea to collect these accounts on a systematical basis.



Just an example of public database with accounts for limited companies.

You can search by the identification number of the company or part of the name, adress etc. The most important sheets are with the corporate structure and ...

	Parts .		8					Contraction of the second	-
r helige Vo	Parcellar Publicher Harb								
100	service internet and a service of the			_					
	6						- No		
	Mart L Hose selen) - Hybrides							ALC: NO.	
	in the second se	_	-				green	S	
	The second second				10	-	ADDITION ADDITION AND ADDITION ADDITICO	TINN	
	W livers segar dal	# swith	an birtani	-	e del		and the second second		
							A WORKSHIP STREET		
	inside begerater ; ;	inden i mart	and states	-	10.40	-		third beaution in the	
	With a second second								
	Descention of Personality	All states of the second state				- PAL Miner	alarma 1 mone 1 fair	terrene () ()	
	s/s								
	Revealer	No. 10 March 10							
	Restant and a second	ergentasetala.							
	Revolution and a second	erpartasepata							
	Bertilde Beldekansende Brenageschaber M	erpartsonnials. I denomisand							
	Indikanande Bruregoskaber H 2011-2-21 2012-2-10 2012-2-10	erpertsensials I download							
	Environe Indokannade Brennynskaber H 2012-12-01 2011-12-01 2011-12-01 2011-12-01 2011-12-01	eyetsetsiat. Education							
	Environ Indokannade Branquickaber H 2012-3-2-81 2011-3	reportunentali. I demokrad							
	Accession Indicators for the second s	rya turnali I download 2011-12-2	N10 12- 2	008-13- 2	006 13	0007-12-			
	Egyttin Instelaanske Errengeskier S 1971-2-2	erenteete 1 deuestaat 2011-137-13 14	N15-17- 3 31	1009-12- 2 31	000 D	1007 LJ 31			
	Revelation Index as not a for example, the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the set of the Constant of	erentiset 1 douelead 1811-13-13 19	NI-0 12- 2 31	1008-13- 3 31	998-13- 34	2007-13- 31			
	revenue Telékonsek in Kornegoskaler M PERSON (See See See See See See Teleson (See See	2011-12-2 18 (1999)(1994) 2011-12-2 38 2019)	019 12 - 2 33 1/875	999-12-2 31	1000 LJ 314 21514	2007 U- 31 20072			
	Indikannak fi Arwayawakako M Indikannak fi Arwayawakako M Indikannak fi Arwayawakako M Indikannak fi Arwayawakako M Indikanaka M Indikanaka M Addynawaja	2011-12-2 30 2011-12-2 30 2010 4275	010 13- 3 33 17875 -7462	000-13-3 31 2+02 -7743	909 DJ 31 21554 7533	2007-13- 31 20072 -1019			
	Excellent Indicational de l'orcespondante et Indicational de l'orcespondante et Indicational de l'orcespondante Indicational de la construction Destanting Destante de la construction Destante de la construction	rya 'sarikali I demikad 2011-13- 1 31 2014 421 421	010 12 - 2 33 17875 - 7462 8662	009-13-2 31 24403 47540 1403	000 GJ 30 21554 -7633 -653	9997-13- 31 31672 4009 3154			
	Experience Indikasenade Everyngeschekker M Indikasenade Everyngeschekker M Indikasenade Everyngeschekker M Indikasenade Everyngeschekker Bereiten Bere	Provinces Freedomics 2011-12-1 31 2016 4213 4213 4213 4213 4214	010 12 - 2 38 1/875 - 5462 4652	999-13-2 38 29402 -1740 1403 -481	000 GJ 31 21554 (713) 4743 796	2007-13- 34 20072 4009 N34 N01			
	Automatic Annuales	2011-13-2 2011-13-3 2016 4275 4275 4213 2040	010 12 - 2 33 11273 - 1422 4022 4022 3006	000-12-2 33 20402 -7745 1413 -481	000 DJ 31 11554 (1155 6153 216 100	2007-13- 34 3073 4005 3034 3034 3034 3034 3034			
	Annual Second Se	Provinced all 1 Provinced 2011-15-13 10 20140 4015 4015 4015 4015 4015 4015 4015	010 12 3 33 1973 1983 4982 4982 306	999-12-2 31 2462 4745 441 441	1159 33 1159 -703 205 39 39	2007-13- 34 3073 4008 3034 3034 3034 3034 3034			
	Experience Addresses	2011-13-1 2011-13-1 3 2011-13-1 3 2010 4275 423 425 425 425 425 425 425 425 425 425 425	010 12 2 33 17873 -7462 8000 4532 3006	999-13-3 31 2463 -7745 -481 -481 -481	000 13 33 71554 7553 2553 2553 2554 355	2007-13- 31 20072 4009 1034 1049 1049			
		Persitantial Fermilian 1 Fermilian 1 Fermi	010-12-2 33 17873 17462 4552 4552 2006 57466	999-13-3 33 24403 -4740 -440 -440 -440 -440	000 13 33 21554 7933 4943 796 809 809	2007-13- 31 20072 4009 9034 9039 9039 1009 11009			

... the sheet with account information.

There is a standard table with account information for 5 years and it is possible to download the real account also for 5 years.

<section-header><section-header><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item><list-item>

- Large complex farms is a challenge to FADN both in context on voluntary participation and the ability to pay enough for the account information.
- Also we NEED big farms to estimate correctly.
- Therefore we need to look for smarter solutions: Use public database information, use of statistical information from single payment scheme, areas, husbandry etc.
- We could might use simulation af missing information.
- In the end (future) we could might provide a full dataset for Danish agriculture, thus making weights unnessary.

9 The use of data for policy analysis and the measurement of sustainability

Thia Hennessey



The Irish Agriculture and Food Development Authority



Thia Hennessy Teagasc, Ireland





The Irish Agriculture and Food Development Authority


Background

REDP

- · History of using FADN data for policy analysis
- · Emphasis has been on the economic impact of policy
- Changing greater interest in
 - the economic analysis of environmental policies
 - the impact of policy in general on sustainability
 - Important role for FADN
- Report results & experiences of a completed project – thoughts for further research



The Irish Agriculture and Food Development Authority

REDP

Broadening Interest

- Environmental policies becoming more important
- Greening of the Common Agricultural Policy
 - First universal and common policy
 - Very divergent impacts
- Greenhouse gas issues
 - Reduce by 20% by 2020
 - Important for Ireland
- Increasing demand to measure the impact of policy on sustainability
- How do we measure it?

The Irish Agriculture and Food Development Authority

REDP

Measuring Sustainability

- Three main elements
 - Economic, environmental and social
- Irish FADN data
 - Economic very good
 - Environmental good
 - Social poor but difficult to measure
- Developed Indicators for Ireland charted these historically and linked them to our policy models



Measuring Sustainability

REDP

REDP

Broad Areas	Indicators	Measurement
Economic	Viability	% of farms (binary)
	Reliance on Direct Payments	% of income
	Coupled Returns	€/ha
Environmental	Methane Emissions	Kg/farm
	Organic N	Kg/Ha
	Organic Phosphorus	Kg/Ha
Social	Demographic Viability	% of farms
	Isolation	% of farms



The Irish Agriculture and Food Development Authority

Measuring Sustainability

Coupled Returns € per kg of Methane







The problem of dissemination

- Over 20 indicators of sustainability
- Charted historically, modelled policy impacts and linked to policy models
- Show impact of milk quota removal on economic indicators, environmental and social
- Information overload
- Composite indicator??
- Used principal component analysis
- Problematic economic versus environmental



The Irish Agriculture and Food Development Authority

The way forward

REDP

REDP

- Currently re-examining our indicators with environmental specialists
 - Existing dataset
 - Broadening dataset
 - Checklist approach
- Use indicators to examine technologies are there win-win results?



The Irish Agriculture and Food Development Authority

Importance of FADN for reporting REDP

- Targets to reduce greenhouse gas emissions
- Research on abatement technologies
 - But must be recognised in "national inventories"
- Need national objective data source
- FADN will be useful in this regard
- Increase collection of "non economic" data



The Irish Agriculture and Food Development Authority

Conclusions

REDP

- Policy analysis is changing
 - more focus on environmental policies and measuring sustainability
- Crucial role for FADN in ex-ante analysis and ex-post monitoring
- Need to examine variables required
- Need to think about dissemination
 - we can measure sustainability but how do we explain it?



The Irish Agriculture and Food Development Authority

10 The effect of environmental sustainability on the economic cost of farm milk and wheat

Lech Goraj



2

3

The empirical basis of that analyses are 2010 farm data from farms which conducted accountancy for Polish FADN needs, classified according to their degree of environmental sustainability. For the analysis of unit costs of milk and wheat production an own developed method adapted to the accounting database of Polish farms has been used.

The analysis was conducted on the basis of data from 1,131 farms specialized in milk production, in which the share of milk in output was at least 80% and 683 farms specialized in field crops, in which the share of wheat was at least 50%.

In the present study, the method of measuring of environmental sustainability developed by Ms. Wioletta Wrzaszcz was used.

To determine the sustainability of the farm, she choose those variables, that reflect both the positive agricultural practices (within the adopted recommendations) as well as negative impacts on the natural environment.

5

The level of environmental sustainability has been defined by it as the average normalized value of six selected diagnostic variables:

a) the number of groups of plants grown on arable land (ST-stimulanta),

b) the coverage ratio of arable land vegetation in winter (ST),

c) the balance of organic matter in soil (ST),

d) the share of cereals in crop structure (DST-destimulanta),

e) the livestock density on the unit of area of agricultural land (DST),

f) the balance of nitrogen in the soil (NT-nominanta).



Structure of economic costs of wheat according to degree of environmental sustainability



Profit from wheat according to degree of environmental sustainability



78



Profit from milk according to degree of environmental sustainability



Conclusions

Analyzed economic results of farms specialized in wheat and milk production, with varying degrees of environmental sustainability differed significantly.

12

Conclusions

Calculations have shown that the economic cost of wheat production on farms with different degree of environmental sustainability were on the same level.

In milk production, is visible the clear trend of decreasing the economic costs with increasing farms sustainability.

13

14

Conclusions

Results of analysis indicate, that friendly to environment organization of farms oriented in milk is favorable to producer as well as to society.

That kind of benefits are not visible in farms oriented in wheat.

Conclusions

Subsidies obtained by all groups of farms had a significant impact on the level of income realized by three groups of dairy farms. They have changed a loss into a profit.

At the same time these subsidies significantly reduced differences between the economic performance of farms characterized by different degrees of environmental sustainability.

11 Econometric estimation of fertilizer use for wheat and other crops

Nathalie Delame



20th Pacioli workshop, Rome (september 30 - october 3)

Introduction

• Fertilizers represent an economic issue for farms. In France, fertilizers reach 15% of intermediate consumptions and up to 30% for farms specialized in field crops.

• Fertilizers are also an environmental challenge: increased yields but significantly challenged nitrates in groundwater pollution and GHG emissions.



Two questions about fertilizer use:

- How much (in value and quantity)?Where are they used?





Available data in France

Values, in euros

- UNIFA: French professional organization which groups fertilization firms. Every year, they publish statistics about fertilizer <u>sales</u>, available at the departmental level (France counts 101 departments).
- National account systems publish estimates of <u>expenditure</u> on fertilizer, available at regional level (22 regions in France).
- French FADN: purchased fertilizers, changes in stocks and then annual <u>consumption</u>; available at farm level and means are computed at regional level.

Quantities

 Surveys on farming practices : type of fertilizer and quantities by individual fields. Mean values are computed at regional level.

INRA

20th Pacioli workshop, Rome (september 30 - october 3)

Methodology for computing subregional data...

Fertilizer use (€/ha) for each crops French FADN fu₁.... fu₁....fuŋ

Land use in agriculture for each "Petite Région Agricole" (= little agricultural area) about 700 in France

Agricultural census 2010

arı,... arı,...arı

5

FU=(Fu1*ar1)+...(Fu1*ar1)+...(Fun*arn)

Estimation of fertilizer use, in euros, for each little agricultural area. This methodology has already been used to estimate pesticides use in France (Butault et alii, EcoPhyto R&D).



20th Pacioli workshop, Rome (september 30 - october 3)

Fertilizer use for each crops (FADN) Estimation by regression

 \circ Y_f = a₁. S_{1f} + ... + a_i. S_{if} + ... + e_f

List of crops i				
Common Wheet	SOLET			1.1.6 MR 6.6
Durum Wheet	35160	• WI	th Y = t	otal fertilizer of farm
Safey	SORGE		CHR	EN = AUTEN + FOUEN
Maise (min)	SMAIS			1. C. C. 1997 1. 1. 1. 1.
Other coreals	SAUTCER	• WI	tha _i : o	ost for fertilizer used to produce
Polatocs	SPOMT	1	ha of cro	ops i
Sugar beet	SECT			
700	37013	 WI 	tn S _i : a	rea for crops i
Sunflower	STOURN	~ Wi	th .e.	error term and f farm index
Oilscol rape	SCOLZA		un rep	chor term and marminuex
Other eilaceda	SAUTOL			
Other fields crops	SAUTOC			
Vince	SVIGNE	Forages	ii.	7 452 farms in 2010
Apple	SPOMP	Podder meize	SMAISE	
Other fruits	SAUTE	Fedder reels	5511	25 crops
Open ground field	SU637C	Lucome	3525_524	
Under shelter	SLEGVA	Grass soci	3571	
flowers	SPLEUK	Temponary grass	391	
Other permanent crops	SAUTOP	Formation1 pasture	SSTH	



Access to the French FADN database: different ways



http://agreste.agriculture.gouv.fr/enquetes/reseau-d-information-comptable/rica-francemicrodonnees/

- anonymous farm's number: no information about name, localisation (only region). The number is used only to find farms on each period, for panel data.

- for crops areas, livestock numbers, age offarmer, quota, ... real quantitiy is replaced by an interval. For instance, instead of 65 Ha, it is 12 (for Total area between 60 and 70 Ha).

- Individual data on a secure server (CASD)
 - quantity variables are available.

- BUT: it is a very long process to obtain access and also very heavy in use.

Question: Is it possible to use databases available on website in our regressions without damages ?

NRA

20th Pacioli workshop, Rome (september 30 - october 3)

Variation lost

- Intervals for crops areas are modified in a value: we have chosen the middle of the interval.
 - For example:
 - 12 for "between 60 and 70 ha" _____ 65 Ha 30 for "upper to 400 Ha"
 - 400 Ha

The maximum error between original value and approximate value is the middle of the interval. Example for common wheat: 2.5 Ha for areas less than 50 Ha, 5 Ha from 50 to 200 Ha, 25 ha from 200 to 400.

• In the last class, "upper to 400 Ha", error is unknown. It depends on the maximum value which is not available. In the last class, observations are few and, without limit, original values can be very dispersed.



20th Pacioli workshop, Rome (september 30 - october 3)

Variation lost

	Secure server (CA SD)			Web site		
	N	MEAN	STD	N	MEAN	STD
SBLET	4 171	30.1	30.8	4 171	30.2	30.5
SBLED	491	27.4	27.4	491	27.6	27.5
SORGE	2 921	15.9	17.7	2 921	16.0	17.8
SORGE	2 109	19.4	24.8	2 109	19.4	24.8
SAUTI	7 356	92.3	78.5	7 356	92.2	76.3

Source : FADN, Agreste - Calculs INRA

o Difference between the two databases are minimal because, for each variables there are a lot of intervals and intervals are small.

o Differences are more important for variables with observations in the last interval. Ex: SAUTI





First estimations of fertilizer use (€/Ha)

Estimation with 2 equations (AUTEN & FOUEN) - CASD

	SOLET	SMAIS	SORGE	SMAISP	SSTH
2001	137.65 (4.1326)	165.41 (5.1102)	171.55 (5.9529)	187.43 (5.1159)	27.09 (0.8089)
2002	105.14 (5.4894)	158.77 (5.2540)	158.43 (5.5078)	180.99 (5.5206)	29.12 (0.8008)
2003	105.58 (5.7755)	167.90 (5.3253)	147.90 (5.4115)	145.54 (2.6097)	31.22 (0.6699)
2004	100.57	173.70	138.48 (5.7416)	148.43	32.61 (0.6408)
2005	108.57	187.76	144.27 (5.4291)	146.99 (2.7617)	35.47 (0.6543)
2006	109.12 (5.7412)	190.42	149.68	145.51 (5.0056)	36.90
2007	109.59	204.15	162.47	161.35	36.44

All coefficients are significantly different from zero.

INRA

20th Pacioli workshop, Rome (september 30 - october 3)

First estimations of fertilizer use (€/Ha)

Estimation with 1 equation (CHREN) - CASD

	SOLET	SMAIS	SORGE	SMAISP	SSTH
	146.46	169.28	164.10	0.00	0.00
2001	(4.3605)	(5.0820)	(6.0197)		
1001	112.97	155.66	146.49	0.00	0.00
	(3.7054)	(5.2197)	(5.6027)		
	107.44	166.76	128.65	0.00	0.00
2005	(4.0656)	(5.2760)	(5.4995)		
1004	104.14	173.24	122.20	0.00	0.00
1004	(4.2215)	(3.4569)	(5.5656)		
	116.28	186.67	150.91	0.00	0.00
2005	(4.0191)	(5.3237)	(5.5434)		
1004	115.90	189.29	140.70	0.00	0.00
2000	(4.0763)	(5.5485)	(5.5720)		
	118.05	205.12	152.60	0.00	0.00
2007	(4 5555)	(5.6717)	(e. p.4.9.8.)		

Coefficients for forages are not significantly different from zero. Split fertilizer between crops and forages gives better results.



20th Pacioli workshop, Rome (september 30 - october 3)



First estimations of fertilizer use (€/Ha)

Estimation with 1 equation (CHREN)-Web site

	SOLET	SMAIS	SORGE	SMAISE	SSTH
2001	143.66	176.93	170.61	148.62	26.57
	(5.7004)	(4.3795)	(8.3323)	(8.7640)	(2.2477)
2002	113.16	164.49	155.27	146.30	51.57
	(4.7394)	(5.9967)	(7.2551)	(8.0778)	(1.9069)
	106.60	167.60	127.25	155.29	36.81
	(5.4347)	(4.3497)	(7.6280)	(5.1855)	(2.0060
1004	100.74	178.66	116.35	142.06	35.98
	(6.0548)	(4.9211)	(8.600Z)	(9.3473)	(2.1568
	102.99	187.55	159.69	129.45	35.36
	(5.5462)	(4.4166)	(7.7193)	(8.5712)	(1.9552
1004	112.85	185.76	151.45	152.44	36.06
2000	(6.0034)	(5.0345)	(8.2077)	(9.0428)	(2.0119
	122.75	204.15	152.25	124.15	36.84
2007	(e. control)	(* *****)	(******)	(margaret)	(2.2.2.2.6)

All coefficients are significantly different from zero.





First estimations of fertilizer use (€/Ha)

2007	SOLET	SMAIS	30835	SMAISP	SSTH
Estimation with 2 equations	109.59	204.15	162.47	161.35	36.44
(AUTEN & POUEN) - CASD	(4.2182)	(3.6950)	(5.9188)	(5.3751)	(0.7608
Estimation with 1 equation	118.05	205.12	152.60	0.00	0.00
(CHREN) - CASD	(4.5539)	(5.6712)	(6.0498)		
Estimation with 1 equation	122.75	204.15	152.25	124.15	36.84
(CHREN) - WES	(6.2911)	(8.3863)	(5.5155)	(9.5441)	(2.1126

Comparison for each year: example on 2007

For the quality of estimations, the split on fertilizer between crops and forages (Y) is more important than using original value or "middle of the interval" for areas (Si).



20th Pacioli workshop, Rome (september 30 - october 3)

Conclusion

- To avoid the problem of data access, it is possible to work with database on website.
- This work highlights that the lack of more specific variables (split on fertilizer between crops and forages) is more important than the use of « middle of intervals ».

If it is possible to include FOREN and AUTEN in the web site database, the work can be continued without damages.



20th Pacioli workshop, Rome (september 30 - october 3)

In the futur

- To improve estimations :
 - Add weights
 - Estimate coefficients for each region in order to choose crops in the equations
 - Use panel data

Work in progress...

Thank you for your attention.

nathalie.delame@agroparistech.fr



12 Using FADN data to estimate agricultural GHG emissions at farm level

Silvia Coderoni, Guido Bonati, Livia d'Angelo, Davide Longhitano, Mitia Mambella, Antonio Papaleo, Silvia

12.1 Introduction

During the last years, issues concerning agricultural greenhouse gases (GHG) emissions mitigation, have become an environmental concern, both at international and European level. At international level the Conference of the Parties (COP)¹, by decision 2/CP.17, requested the SBSTA to consider issues related to agriculture at its thirty-sixth session, with the aim of exchanging views and the COP considering and adopting a decision on this matter at its eighteenth session. At European level, mitigation policies, enshrined in the climate and energy package, have generated a complementary legislation, including the Effort Sharing Decision (406/2009/EC), which governs emission from sectors not covered by the EU-ETS (Emission Trading System), such as agriculture, by setting binding national targets for 2020.

Recently, the European Commission launched, under the Europe 2020 Strategy, the initiative 'A Resource efficient Europe' (European Commission, 2011), which contains, amongst others, the Communication 'A Roadmap for moving to a competitive low carbon economy in 2050' with the commitment to reduce EU emissions by 80 to 95%, within 2050, compared to 1990 levels (COM(2011) 112 Final). For this purpose the agricultural sector, if appropriate incentives are set, should contribute with a further reduction of its non-CO₂ emissions by between 42 and 49% (compared to 1990).² The facts set out in the Roadmap will be considered in the legislative proposals on the post-2013 CAP. In this regard, within the Commission communication on the future CAP (European Commission, 2010), climate change, has become a priority for adaptation and mitigation issues, related to the role of agriculture as a provider of public goods, including climate stability.

Moreover, recently, the Commission has prepared a proposal on Land Use, Land Use Change and Forestry (LULUCF) accounting (COM (2012) 93 final) in order to consider all land uses in an integrated manner and address them in EU climate policy.

Of course, monitoring of emissions of greenhouse gases has a key role in the tools and policies to address climate change. Therefore, trying to set up a methodology to estimate GHG is a key issue when dealing with climate change mitigation policies.

The aim of the present work is to identify a simplified methodology, using a small amount of data, in order to compute the carbon footprint at farm level, using data from FADN (Farm Accountancy Data Network). Starting from the methodology used in national inventory report to the UNFCCC, which follows IPCC (Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change) guidelines, this study adopts a cross-cutting approach, that combines the emissions related to different categories (agriculture, land use and energy/fuels).

The research project, using this methodology, aims at providing a tool for two different types of users: a 'generic' and a FADN one. The estimate of GHG emissions of for a FADN user can be computed only by providing the farm code. In the case of a 'generic user', not include within FADN, the estimation of farm

¹ The COP is the supreme decision-making body of the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change (UNFCCC).

² All this mitigation efforts, have been analyzed on a global scale, taking into account the need to ensure food security to feed the increasing global population, through: 'further sustainable efficiency gains, efficient fertiliser use, bio-gasification of organic manure, improved manure management, better fodder, local diversification and commercialisation of production and improved livestock productivity, as well as maximising the benefits of extensive farming' (European Commission, SEC(2011)289 final. pp.9).

greenhouse gas emissions, is provided only with the input of a few data in a web page (this service is currently under construction).

In this first phase of the research project, emissions for a pilot region (Veneto) have been estimated, to determine the practical feasibility of the tool and possible future implementations. This work will allow, once identified the limitations of the methodology, to propose improvements to FADN dataset in order to fulfil this kind of investigation on environmental impact and provide more robust estimates of emissions and removals of GHGs at farm level.

One of the main added values of this methodology, even in its very first version, is to focus the analysis on the individual farm, using an adaptation of the official IPCC methodology, with a crosscutting approach that combines three different sectors, which are treated separately in IPCC estimates.

12.2 Agricultural GHG Emissions

In order to fulfil the commitments made under the UNFCCC and the European Union's Greenhouse Gas Monitoring Mechanism, every Member State has to prepare the annual National Inventory of emissions and removals of GHG, which is the official tool to monitor commitments (Condor and Vitullo, 2010). The diversified nature of agricultural units is a major problem when estimating emissions, because the agricultural sector is characterized by an extreme variety of environmental and management systems. Therefore, several methods to estimate indirect emissions connected to the different production processes have been developed. Within the UNFCCC, the task of indicating a common methodology to estimate of emissions from all sectors was given to the scientific and technical body of the Convention, the IPCC, that should use simple and available data, because they have to be adopted all over the world for reporting purposes. In Italy, ISPRA (Institute for Environmental Protection and Research) provides the estimation and reporting of the National Inventory of greenhouse gas emissions, prepared using the IPCC Guidelines. According to the ISPRA inventory, the agricultural sector represents in Italy the second largest source of GHG emissions (with 7% of national emissions in 2010), after the energy sector (83%) (ISPRA, 2012).

Since the main objective of the research proposed is to inform and formulate sectoral analysis, and not to identify more sustainable consumption paths (in terms of GHGs emissions), we preferred to use a methodology that refers to the calculation of the carbon footprint (CF) at farm level estimating the emissions at 'farm gate', with a focus on the production processes associated with the farm (natural processes, methods of production, resource management) and not on the consumption of agricultural products. For this reason, the IPCC methodology, that follows a process-based approach, seems to be appropriate to the purposes to estimate emissions that occur within the 'farm gate' and on which the farmer has a 'direct' control. Nevertheless, the choice of adapting the IPCC methodology at farm level could be arguable, as there are many methodologies that allow to estimate agricultural GHG emissions even more accurately than IPCC guidelines. However, IPCC Guidelines represent a standard internationally recognized, are the reference in verifying the compliance with international commitments and provide a widely applicable default methodology, whose efficiency is recognized all over the world (De Cara et al., 2005). In fact, many studies dealing with agricultural GHG emissions estimations made the same choice (See, among others: De Cara et al., 2005; Dick et al., 2008; Perez et al., 2009). Besides, as specified in Dick et al. (2008) the IPCC methodology allows also to uniform accounting for emissions related to agriculture and forestry, which, at national level, have different purposes, can be done in different ways and be based on different indicators, with international level, were they are regulated by the aforementioned IPCC guidelines and follow almost uniform standards between countries.

Another important step, when estimating GHG emissions, also at individual farm level, is defining the system 'boundaries', which can lead to high differences in total emission estimation. Currently there is no international standard methodology to indicate which emissions have to be attributed to the producers and which to the consumers. The choice made for this project was to consider only the direct emissions up to the farm gate related to farm production phase, hence emissions caused by the production of inputs and

the transport of food and feed products, are not accounted for. As stated also in other studies (Dick et al., 2008), this approach to the 'farm gate' has the advantage of being able to encourage the use of best practices at every stage of production, to reduce emissions of which the farmer has direct control, and to allow the formulation of policies that are implemented at farm level in order to change farmers' behaviour.

12.3 The Methodology

The methodology proposed for this study, is based on an adaptation of the IPCC methodology (IPCC, 1997 and 2006) at farm level, using Italian emission factors, described in the official documents of ISPRA (various years; Condor et al., 2008) and activity data connected to the main agricultural activities, derived from national statistics. After the first phase of implementation of the methodology, the research project will provide a fine tuning of the estimates, based on the definition of 'farm specific' emission factors (EF), with local conditions and actual management practices.

Scaling down these guidelines at systems with narrower boundaries than national ones, has been done making particular attention to the fact that the object of the estimate are only emissions and removals of GHG that occur within the boundaries of the system (Dick et al., 2008).

More in detail, as regards the 'Agriculture' sector, according to the IPCC methodology, produces emissions mainly of two greenhouse gases: methane (CH_4) and nitrous oxide (N_2O), from six different categories listed in Table 1.

CATEGORY	SOURCE	GHG
4A	Enteric Fermentation	CH ₄
4B	Manure Management	N ₂ O, CH ₄
4C	Rice Cultivation	CH ₄
4D	Agricultural Soils	N ₂ O
4E*	Prescribed Burning of Savannas	N ₂ O, CH ₄
4F	Field Burning of Agricultural Residues	N ₂ O, CH ₄

Table1	Emissive sources of the agricultural sector.
--------	--

*emissions from category 4E do not occur in Italy

Source: IPCC, 1997.

The IPCC methodology, does not include in the 'Agriculture' category, emissions of carbon dioxide (CO_2) (from the use of machinery, buildings, agricultural operations and transport of agricultural products), that are accounted in the 'energy' sector. Besides, emission and removals of CO_2 from soils and biomass are estimated in the LULUCF sector (Land Use, Land Use Change and Forestry). Instead, with the methodology hereafter described, we have estimated GHG emissions from all sources listed in table 1 less 4E e $4F^1$, plus energy and a proposed methodology for LULUCF sector (figure 1). To express emissions in total CO_2 equivalent (CO_{2e}), different GHGs are multiplied by Global Warming Potentials (GWP), using the conversion factors updated over time by the IPCC. To date (ISPRA, 2012) Italy uses GWPs in accordance with IPCC Second Assessment Report, i.e. 21 for CH_4 and 310 for N₂O.

 $^{^{1}}$ Field burning of crop residues is forbidden in Europe and only Greece and Italy report emissions from this source category. However, CH₄ and N₂O from this source of emissions represented, in 2010, respectively only 0.08% and 0.02% of total GHG emissions for the agriculture sector. Therefore field burning agriculture residues have not been estimated in this study as they were not identified as a key source of emissions.

Figure 1 Emission sources accounted for.



Source: Authors elaborations on Wang et al., 2011.

The main value added of the methodology, even in this first version, with country specific EF, is to focus the analysis on the individual farm, using an adaptation of the official IPCC methodology with a crosscutting approach that combines three different sectors (Agriculture, LULUCF and Energy) that the IPCC estimates separately. Besides, the proposed approach, has the advantage to represent a standardized, easy collection of data on farm activities, that can be used for different agricultural practices for all types of agricultural farms all over the country and also at European level, through the use of FADN. Furthermore, the use of the FADN dataset allows to link GHG emissions to economic indicators, to evaluate emission intensity at farm level.

Generally speaking, IPCC methodology is based on a linear relationship between emissions and activity data. Activity data are mostly taken from FADN dataset and are listed in table 2, for each single source of emission. Country-specific emission factors for each source of emissions are used whenever available in 2011 national communication to the UNFCCC, done by the ISPRA; otherwise, the IPCC default values are used.

Emission sources	Activity data	Linked to
N ₂ O manure management	Animal numbers	Animal numbers
CH ₄ manure management	Animal numbers	Animal numbers
CH ₄ enteric fermentation	Animal numbers	Animal numbers
CH ₄ rice cultivation	Rice area	Rice area
N ₂ O agricultural soils		
irect emissions		
Use of synthetic fertilisers	N fertiliser application	Fertilisers consumed
Histosols	UAA	UAA
Manure application	N excretion by animals	Animal numbers
Biological N fixation	Production of N-fixing crops	N-fixing crop area
Crop residues	Reutilization of crop residues	Crop area
Animal production	N excretion by grazing animals	Animal numbers
direct emissions		
Atmospheric deposition	Total N application	Fertilisers and animal numbers
Leaching and run-off	Total N application	Fertilisers and animal numbers

Table 2 Summary of GHG emission sources accounted for in the model

Source: authors elaboration based on De Cara and Jayet, 2005.

The following paragraphs analyze the individual sources of emission, describing the methodology and the data used for each source category.

12.3.1 Enteric Fermentation

The enteric fermentation is the digestive process of herbivores by which carbohydrates are broken down into simpler molecules, to be absorbed by the animal. The amount of methane that is released depends on many factors such as type, age and weight of the animal, quality and quantity of feed and energy requirements. Ruminants (e.g. cattle and sheep) are the largest source of methane from enteric fermentation, while non-ruminants (e.g. horses and pigs) produce smaller amounts of methane (EEA, 2009).

Total methane emissions from enteric fermentation are obtained by multiplying the number of animals¹ by specific emission factors (EF), listed in table 3.

IEF (Kg/head ⁻¹ *year ⁻¹)
113,00
44,60
63,83
8,00
5,00
18,00
10,00
1,50
1,50
0,08

Table 3 Implied emission factor for methane emissions from enteric fermentation (KG/head-1*year-1)

Source: ISPRA

Though this simplified methodology doesn't allow to estimate some mitigation measures that can occur at farm level (like dietary changes or animal genetic selection), it can capture the flexibility of animal numbers that is important for abatement purposes, as changes in animal diet, if not combined with changes in livestock numbers, are likely to provide only limited abatement of emissions (European Climate Change Programme, 2003).

12.3.2 Manure management-methane

During storage and management of manure, CH_4 can be produced and emitted to the atmosphere. In particular the decomposition of manure under anaerobic conditions, through the methanogenic bacteria, generates CH_4 . This condition is more likely to occur when large numbers of animals are confined to a small area. The temperature and the retention time in the unit of storage have a significant influence on the amount of methane produced (EEA, 2010).

This category of emissions does not include emissions from combustion of manure and does not take into account the reduction of methane emissions related to the recovery of biogas. For calculating the emissions we consider a simplified method which consists in multiplying the number of animals per animal category, for country-specific emission factor. The following are the values to be assigned as the EF² for each head of livestock, to obtain an estimate of the emissions from enteric fermentation.

¹ In calculating livestock GHG emissions using FADN database, as livestock categories are different from those reported in the NIR, a reclassification has been made, in order to include all animal categories and to apply them their specific EF. Tables with the reclassification of animal categories to fit FADN with ISPRA cluster are available under request.

² Generally, the value of the EF reported by ISPRA is fixed from 1990 to 2009 (ISPRA, 2011), for the categories animals for which it varies over the years (other cattle, cows and buffalo) was considered the EF 2009.

Animal category	IEF	Animal category	IEF
	(Kg/head ⁻¹ *year ⁻¹)		(Kg/head ⁻¹ *year ⁻¹)
Sow	19,600	Male calves	8,750
Piglets	1,140	Female buffalo	15,250
Pigs 25-50 kg	3,480	Other buffalo	6,290
Pigs 50-80 kg	6,460	Horse	1,480
Pigs 80-110 kg	9,440	Donkeys and mules	0,840
Pigs > 110 kg	13,410	Sheep	0,220
Boars	19,860	Goats	0,145
Dairy cows	15,040	Rabbits	0,080
Other cows	10,660	Laying hens	0,082
Calves	6,220	Poultry meat	0,079
Females calves	7,240	Other Poultry	0,079

 Table 4
 Implied emission factor for methane emissions from manure management (Kg/head⁻¹*year⁻¹)

Source: Ispra, 2011.

12.3.3 Manure management-Nitrous oxide

During storage and management of manure, N_2O can be produced and emitted to the atmosphere. The term 'manure' is used collectively to include both dung and urine (i.e., the solids and the liquids) produced by livestock, as suggested by the IPCC guidelines (EEA, 2010). As for methane emissions, this source category excludes emissions that originate from burning of manure and emissions from manure deposited on pastures by grazing animals (reported under category 'agricultural soils').

Parameters used for the estimation were: number of livestock species, country specific nitrogen excretion rates per livestock category, the fraction of total annual excretion per livestock category related to a manure management system and EFs for manure management systems (IPCC, 1997). The estimation of N_2O emissions is based on the following equation (IPCC, 2000):

$$N_2 O_{4B} = \mathbf{\hat{a}}_{S} \mathbf{\hat{a}}_{T} (N_T * N e_{XT} * M S_{(T,S)}) * EF_S$$
(1)

where:

 $N_2O_{4B} = N_2O$ emissions from animal manure management;

 N_{T} = livestock population for livestock category T;

 Ne_{xT} = annual average nitrogen excretion per head and per livestock category;

 $MS_{(T,S)}$ = fraction of total annual excretion for each livestock species for the management system S;

 EF_s = factor of N₂O emissions for the management system S.

The methodology takes into account the nitrogen excreted in liquid and solid form, using specific values for the ratio kg N_2O -N/kg N, that is 0.001 for liquid systems; 0.02 for solid systems and other management systems (chicken-dung drying process system).

The following table shows factors excretion of nitrogen (N) for each animal category and other parameters used.

				kg N excr yea	eted (head ⁻¹ ar ⁻¹)*
	kg N excreted (head ⁻¹ year ⁻¹) housing	kg N excreted (head ⁻ ¹ year ⁻¹) grazing	Total kg N ex- creted (head ⁻¹ year ⁻¹)	Slurry	Solid Manure
Sows	28,13	0	28,13	28,13	
Other pigs	12,92	0	12,92	12,92	
Dairy cows	110,2	5,8	116,00	44	66,2
Other cattle	47,77	0,95	48,72	28,7	19,1
Buffalo	90,34	2,7	93,04	31,35	59
Horse	20	30	50,00		20
Donkeys and mules	20	30	50,00		20
Sheep	1,62	14,58	16,20		1,62
Goats	1,62	14,58	16,20		1,62
Rabbits	1,02	0	1,02		1,02
Poultry	0,53	0	0,53		0,53
Laying hens	0,7	0	0,70	0,1	0,6
Broilers	0,36	0	0,36		0,36
Other birds	0,825	0	0,83		0,825
Fur	4,1	0	4,10		

Table 5 Nitrogen excretion factors for grazing and hosing for year and head and for manure management system

* excluding grazing

0: the animal is not considered by grazing

- The animal does not produce or does not produce manure or slurry

Source: Data Ispra 2011 and Technical Report 85/2008

12.3.4 Rice cultivation

Anaerobic decomposition of organic material in flooded rice fields produces CH_4 .¹ The amount emitted is a function of rice cultivar, number and duration of crops grown, soil type and temperature, water management practices, and the use of fertilisers and other organic and inorganic amendments (EEA, 2009). Italy is one of the 5 member states of UE-15, that reports emissions from this source category. Emissions from rice cultivation are estimated only for an irrigated regime, as other categories suggested by IPCC are not present. CH_4 emissions, represent two water regimes with different emission factors: for 2009 Dry-seeded (single aeration) EF is 24,96 (g CH4/m2*year) and Wet-seeded classic (multiple aeration) EF is 33,67 (ISPRA, 2011).² To obtain CH_4 emissions from rice cultivation, each EF should be multiplied for UAA cultivated with rice.

12.3.5 Agricultural soils

Nitrous oxide is produced naturally in soils through the processes of nitrification and denitrification.

One of the main driver of this reaction is the availability of nitrogen (N) in the soil. Hence, N_2O emissions are estimated separately for the main anthropogenic input pathways of nitrogen to the soil: use of synthetic fertilisers; manure application, biological nitrogen fixation; nitrogen returned to the soil by the process of mineralization of crop residues; N from manure deposited by grazing animals on pasture, range and paddock and indirect emissions from atmospheric deposition, leaching and run-off (see Table 2).

 $^{^{1}}$ N₂O emissions from fertilisation during cultivation are estimated under direct soil emissions - synthetic fertilizers, in the category 4D-Agricultural soils.

² For the estimation of CH₄ emissions from rice cultivation ISPRA followed a detailed methodology implementing the IPCC guidelines (IPCC, 2006) and considering country-specific circumstances. The quality of the Italian rice emission inventory was verified with the Denitrification Decomposition model (DNDC) founding a high correspondence with the EFs used for the Italian inventory (ISPRA, 2012).

Use of synthetic fertilisers

Emissions from the use of synthetic fertilizers are obtained multiplying the N content of the fertilizer with the parameters used to estimate the direct emissions of N_2O , as follows:

$$N_2 OF_{sn} = N_{tot} \times (1 - FRAC_{gasf}) \times 0.0125 \times 44/28$$
⁽²⁾

where:

 N_{tot} = total nitrogen content in fertilizers.

 $FRAC_{gasf}$ parameter is calculated according to the IPCC Guidelines (dividing total emissions of NH_3 -N and NO_x-N for total nitrogen content in fertilizers).

The main difficulty for estimating this kind of emissions using FADN is concerned to the data on fertilizers used in the farm. Nowadays in Italian FADN fertilizers quantities are not a compulsory field, hence, some farms do not report it. Besides, N₂O emissions from synthetic fertilizers are often underestimated, but FADN future improvement will allow the reporting of data for all farms included in the sample.

Moreover, IPCC and FADN classification of fertilizers are quite different, so to have data on N content in each fertilizers type, a reclassification based on N content, or expert judgment, has been made.

Animal waste applied to soil

The N manure applied to soils is obtained by nitrogen excretion corrected for nitrogen lost by volatilization of NH_3 -N and N-NO and the proportion of nitrogen excreted on pasture (Condor et al., 2008), using the following equation:

$$F_{AM} = N_{an_soil} \times (1 - (FRAC_{graz} + FRAC_{gasm}))$$
(3)

where:

 N_{an_soll} is the nitrogen excreted per livestock category; FRAC_{graz} is the fraction of nitrogen excreted on pasture compared to the total excreted; FRAC_{grasm} is a 'country specific' parameter which in Italy is equal to 0.292 (ISPRA, 2011). The F_{AM} parameter is then multiplied by animal number for each category.

Animal category	N excreted kg (head ⁻¹ yr ⁻¹)	FRAC _{graz}
	Housing	-
Other cows	47,77	0,019
Dairy cows	110,2	0,05
Buffalo	90,34	0,029
Other pigs	12,92	0
Sows	28,13	0
Sheep	1,62	0,9
Goats	1,62	0,9
Horse	20	0,6
Other horses*	20	0,6
Poultry	0,53	0
Rabbits	1,02	0

Table 6 Parameters used for the estimation of N2O emissions from grazing animals

* including donkeys and mules

Source: Ispra, 2011.

Biological nitrogen fixation

The input of nitrogen in the atmosphere due to the N-fixing crops (legumes and fodder crops) is calculated from the nitrogen fixed by the individual crops (listed in Table 7). Emissions from N-fixing crops (N-f) (N_2O_{N-r}) are estimated using UAA cultivated with N-fixing crops (UAA_{N-f}), the N content fixed by each species and fixed conversion factors of N emissions as follows:

Table 7 N content fixed by each species (kg N ha-1 yi-1)	
N-fixing crop	N fixed
Bean	40
Fresh pea	50
Dry pea	72
Chickpea, lentil, wolf	40
Vetch	80
Soy	58
Medical grass	194
Clover	103

Table 7 N content fixed by each species (kg N ha-1 yr-1)

Source: ISPRA.

Crop residues

The N that returns to the soil with crop residues is calculated both for nitrogen-fixing and other crops, correcting through the coefficients $FRAC_{burn}$ to take into account the share of residues burned. The amount of by-product (dry matter) is estimated for each crop from annual production; or cultivated area; then N content factors are applied for each culture. Using the harvested production, crop residues (F_{cr}) are calculated applying coefficients of ratio residual/production and content of dry matter production. Then, N₂O emissions are calculated as follows:

$$N_2 OF_{cr} = F_{cr} \times (1 - FRAC_{burn}) \times (6.25 \times 0.0125 \times 44/28)$$
(5)

Where $FRAC_{burn}$ is the fraction of crop residues burned rather than left on the field = 0.1 (kg N / kg crop_N). The coefficient 6.25 is used to convert the protein content in dry matter and obtain N content.

Histosols

To estimate emissions from this source category, soil map of Italy was extracted by the geo-database 'Badasuoli'¹. Crossing this geographic layer with that of Italian municipalities, we obtained 36 municipalities with coverage of histosols greater than 50% of their territory.

Emissions from this category will be calculated only for farms falling in these territories following the next equation:

$$N_2 O_H = h a_H \times (8 K g N - N_2 O) \times 44/28$$
(6)

Where ha_{H} are the hectars of histosols. As in Italian FADN there are no information about ha of histosoils, they have been approximated to the UAA, for all municipalities having more than 50%.

Sewage sludge

The amount of nitrogen contained in the sludge is estimated from the amount of sludge scattered on the ground (expressed as dry matter) by the average nitrogen content (between 4% and 5%) of sludge. The emission factor used is 0.0125 kg N-N₂O/kg N and the volatilization factor is 20% for N-NH₃+ NO_x emissions (IPCC, 1997). This emission category has not been estimated for this first stage of implementation, as in FADN there no information about sewage sludge applied to soils.

94

¹ Developed by CRA-Research Institute for the Study and Protection of the Soil, Florence.

N from manure deposited by grazing animals on pasture, range and paddock

The share of emissions resulting from manure excreted by grazing animals, must be considered among the emissions of agricultural soils (4D). These emissions are obtained through the multiplication of the nitrogen excreted per head for grazing livestock, by livestock population category, by a factor of 0.02 kg N excreted N- FRAC_{burn} /kg (see Table 5 column 3).

Indirect emissions

To estimate indirect emissions due to N inputs from atmospheric deposition nitrogen contained in fertilizers and the total nitrogen excreted by animals are taken into account.

Losses due to volatilization of mineral fertilizers and livestock manure, are calculated using respectively $FRAC_{east}$ factors. The equation used is the following:

$$E = \left[(N_f \times FRAC_{gasf}) + (N_l \times FRAC_{gasm}) \right] \times 0.01 \times 44/28$$
⁽⁷⁾

where:

 N_{f} = total nitrogen fertilization

 N_{I} = total nitrogen livestock (housing and grazing)

Emissions from leaching and runoff derive from total nitrogen excretion and nitrogen in fertilizers corrected for the parameter $FRAC_{leach}$ which quantifies the amount of nitrogen brought to the ground by percolation and surface runoff.

$$N_2 O_{leach} = (N_f + N_l) \times FRAC_{leach}(0.3) N / Kg \times 0.025 Kg N_2 O - N \times 44/28$$
(8)

12.3.6 Energy

The methodology proposed estimates also emissions due to the direct fossil fuel use in agriculture, mainly to produce mechanical energy. To obtain GHG emissions connected to the use of fossil fuels, the methodology takes into account the emission factors used for the transport sector, multiplied for the quantity of fossil fuel used. The EF¹ used were taken from APAT (2003).

12.3.7 LULUCF: an example with grassland

Agro-ecosystems as meadows and grassland play an important role in terms of balance of GHG in ecosystems. In fact, while there are source of direct emissions in terms of CO_2 (animal and plant respiration), CH_4 (enteric fermentation) and N_2O (nitrification and denitrification processes), they also generate flows providing organic carbon sequestration and temporary sink.

The estimation of emissions of LULUCF category using FADN brings several difficulties, because of the timing of accounting of actual physical emissions (e.g. how to count relatively immediate land-use change emissions over time) (Dick et al., 2008). However, the aim of this paragraph is to propose a simplified methodology adapted from IPCC guidelines (IPCC, 2006), to estimate carbon (C) sequestered into soils at farm level using the FADN database.

¹ The EF used were the following: 3.109 kg CO_2/kg burned for gasoline; 3.138 kg CO_2/kg burned for gas oils and 2.994 kg CO_2/kg burned for LPG.

According to IPCC guidelines, the first step to calculate the annual C stock variation in inorganic soils is the typological identification of soils based on the content of organic matter (OM), distinguishing 'organic' from 'mineral' soils.¹

The estimation of C stock, according to the Stock-Difference Method (IPCC, 2006), is based on the rate of annual change in carbon stocks in soil (ΔC_s) given by the change in organic carbon in OM (ΔC_o) and the change stock of inorganic C (ΔC_i) in mineral soils, minus the losses for degradation of organic matter (L_o) by microbial in organic soils, that is:

$$\mathsf{D}C_s = \mathsf{D}C_o + \mathsf{D}C_i - \mathsf{L}_0 \tag{9}$$

The IPCC methodology is based on two assumptions: first, the C in the soil reaches (after a defined period) a stationary equilibrium spatially defined under certain climatic conditions and management and second, the transition of the stocks of Soil Organic Carbon (SOC) towards a new equilibrium, is a linear process. We focused on mineral soils because they represent the most common category among Italian agricultural land. The content of C in this type of soil depends, besides to climatic conditions, from the management practices that significantly affect the ability of atmospheric C sequestration through changes in agricultural production (i.e., fertilization, irrigation, etc.).

The annual stock changes of organic C (ΔC_o), in a certain period of time (t), can then be calculated as the difference between the content of the last period considered SOC (SOC_t) and the baseline (SOC_{to}), all compared to the time (D) of the transition period in years between two equilibrium points of SOC:

$$\mathsf{D}C_0 = \frac{SOC_t - SOC_{t0}}{D} \tag{10}$$

The fraction of organic C in soil, is determined by the product of the baseline C stock (ton/ha) and specific stocks variation factors, as follows:

$$SOC = \mathop{a}\limits_{c,s,i} SOC_{REFc,s,i} \times F_{LUc,s,i} \times F_{MGc,s,i} \times F_{Ic,s,i} \times A_{c,s,i} \times A_{c,s,i}$$

where c is the specific climate zone; s the type of soil; i the set of land use systems and in the geographical area (e.g. region, country, etc.). The coefficient F_{LU} is factor of variation of C according to the land use system of; F_{MG} is the factor of variation on the system management; F_{I} is the factor of variation of inputs of organic matter applied to soil (e.g., organic fertilizer); A is area analyzed with the homogenous biophysical conditions (same climatic conditions) and management history. All these factors represent changes occurring in a given period (D) which can vary according to the agricultural systems taken into account and were calculated and classified by the IPCC. In this context, the reference stock (SOC_{REF}) is the estimated values under native vegetation in the first 30 cm of the profile. The values are classified by IPCC on the basis of global climatic regions, according to the type of soil soils. In the case of organic soils, the annual losses of SOC (L_o) depend on the draining processes which imply the gradual degradation in CO₂ due to the oxidation kinetics of OM. The IPCC (2006) estimate this fraction based on an emission factor (EF) in tonnes of C per hectare per year, which varies according to climatic zones as described in the equation:

¹ The organic soils have a content of OM variable between 12% and 20%, and are typical of wetlands with poor drainage (e.g. peats), while minerals soils generally have a relatively low content of OM and are typical of ecosystems less humid and with good drainage conditions.

$$L_0 = \mathbf{\mathring{a}}_c (A \times EF)_c$$

Starting from reference values and related factors, one can estimate the average annual change in the stock of organic C according to the type of soil and climate, the farming system and management practices. The values are reported, for each case study, in the IPCC guidelines (2006).

Table 8 summarizes all the various steps that should be analyzed to estimate C stock variation in inorganic soils, at farm level using FADN dataset.

However, there are several critical issues to consider when applying the methodology described using information available in FADN dataset. These relate mainly to the soil management practices history over the last 20 years, since farms sample varies both in sampling and in information analyzed. However, it is possible to make some assumptions. For example, the contribution of the carbon stock variation could be assessed even in shorter periods (e.g. 4 years) using non-linear calculation models available in the literature, assuming the maintenance of agricultural practice for the remaining years (e.g. 16 years). Some management aspects, besides, could be detected through indirect indicators from FADN; for example, fertilizers and other technical means costs, the use of subcontracting, the machinery, irrigation expenses, etc.

1. Identification of the type of soil	Mineral or organic
2. Definition of the time horizon	Represents the interval at which one wants to study the annual C change and depends on data availability and on farm history; generally is around 20 years
3. Identification of the geographical area	Represents the area in which the farm operates, defined by appropri- ate spatial scale (NUTS 2, NUTS 3 and municipality).
4. Identification of the climate zone	The climate zone is identified according to geographical area and Kop- pen climate classification. Most of the Italian territory falls within the climatic region 'C' (temperate climate of middle latitudes).
5. Identification of the type of farming system	Use of IPCC guidelines to calculate C stock into the soil in different ecosystems (such as forest soils, agricultural land, meadows and grassland, wetlands and marshes, settlements, other soils - i.e. bare soil, rock formations, glaciers)
6. Distribution of utilized agricultural area (UAA) at farm level	Detectable in FADN database
7. Soil classification (soil type)	Types of minerals soils on which to compute the SOC reference of na- tive vegetation are defined by the International Soil taxonomy-based system WRB (World Reference Base for Soil Resources) or by the USDA. Usually, the information can be found directly from local ser- vices of geo-pedological monitoring (i.e. regional office)
8. Reference SOC value under native vegetation	IPCC manual
9. Identification of conversion factors based on man- agement practices	Depends on the type of system (arable, meadow and pasture, etc.) and the level of management intensity (derivable from FADN database)
10. Computation of the annual change in stocks of organic carbon in minerals soils	Use equation (10) based on the time horizon and the information available on the farm history
11. Computation of annual losses of C in the case of organic soils	Use equation (12) after detecting the IPCC emission factor based on the climate zone
12. Calculation of the inventory of carbon stock in the soil according to the annual change in total SOC	Apply equation (9)

 Table 8
 Steps to estimate C stock variation in organic soils according to IPCC guidelines

Table 9 shows the basic information necessary to approximate the calculation of the change in SOC that can be derived from the FADN database.

Table 9Scheme of main data required for the calculation of the approximate change in SOC that can
be derived from FADN database

Data	Unit / type of information
Geographic Zone	Municipality
Agro-ecosystem	Permanent crops / herbaceous /forage
Management intensity	Conventional/Minimun tillage/no-till/etc.
Manure	Yes/No
Irrigation	Yes/No
UAA	Hectares

To make an example of how to apply these steps at farm level, we selected a farm from the FADN database of Veneto region (2007). The utilized agricultural area (40.75 ha) is allocated for approximately 80% to pasture (32.7 ha), while the remaining 20% is allocated to arable land for cereals cultivation (8.05 ha). The land is located in Padua Province, in the municipality of Veggiano that, according to provincial mapping system, belongs to the order Inceptisoils, following USDA classification. Climate is temperate, with hot summers ('Cfa' class, according to Koppen classification). Assumptions on management practices were made according to expenditures for fertilization, pest management, irrigation and mechanization, to get a suggestion on intensiveness of management, in order to correctly define the coefficients necessary for the calculation of C flows.

The annual flows have been calculated for the period 1995-2007, assuming that in 1995 the entire area was allocated to the cultivation of cereal with medium degree of intensiveness. The calculations are summarized in the table below.

	Ge- ogra phic zone	Cli mat ic Zon e	Pedological tipology	TI me ho ri- zo n (Y ea rs)	Agr o- sys- tem	U A (h a)	SO C _{REF}	FLU	F _{MG}	F,	SOC (t C/h a year)	∆CO (t C/ year)	
Data	War War			20 07	Per ma- nent Gras slan d	3 2, 7	38	1	1, 1 4	1,1 1	1.57 2		
	giano (PD)	tem per- ate dry	tem per- ate dry	HAC (Eutrochrepts - Inceptisoil)		Ce- re- als	8, 0 5	38	0,6 9	1,0 2	1	215	58
					19 95	Ce- re- als	4 0, 7 5	38	0,6 9	1,0 2	1	1.09 0	
Source	FADN		IPCC Guidelines - http://tornado.provincia.padova.it/ Web- Sit/viewer.aspx?id_applicazione=b3 2667db-9141-4cde-be63- df4b535ad41a	FA DN	FAD N	FA D N	IPC C Guid elin es (vol 4)	IPC C Guid elin es (vol 4)	IPC C Guid elin es (vol 4)	IPC C Guid elin es (vol 4)	Au- thors Elab ora- tions	Au- thors Elab ora- tions	

Table 10 Example of annual variation of C edaphic at farm level in a soil mineral type

Source: elaboration on FADN Data, 2007.

12.4 Initial Tests of the Methodology

One of the main objectives of this research project is to apply the methodology to all FADN regional online database, obtaining emission data for all farm in FADN through an automatic procedure.

By now, a very first attempt of estimation using the methodology described has been made with Veneto Region FADN dataset, that consists of 695 farms in 2010. For this exercise there is number of emission categories that have not been included due to the lack of data availability (sewage sludge applied to soils and pasture). LULUCF sector emission estimation is still improving because the changing FADN sample doesn't allow to count relatively immediate land-use change emissions over time. Besides, at present, FADN information does not include data on rice cultivation method, so one cannot distinguish between rice field cultivated with single or multiple aeration. To overcome this problem the multiple aeration EF was used, even if, this assumption could represent an overestimate of the related emissions.

Resulting GHG emission values are aggregated in different ways to enable more detailed analysis at farm and production level. The main aggregates obtained are: total emissions in CO_{2e} and by gas; emissions from animal husbandry and agricultural soils, emission related to energy sector.

Total emissions calculated till now for Veneto region FADN sample, amount to 168,248 tons of CO_{2e} . Of course, as IPCC methodology is based on a linear relationship between activity data and EF, the scale effect is predominant when comparing different farm levels of emissions. This reflects in a linear relationship with GHG emission and standard output classes. Besides, the effects of GWP on the level of emissions, makes some activity more emission intensive than others. Generally speaking specialist pigs, poultry, cattle-dairying rearing and fattening combined, have a high importance in terms of GHG emissions. In these cases, also when compared to UAA, a scale effect is still predominant, mostly as a result of intensive livestock farming system.

12.5 IT Tools

As specified, the carbon footprint methodology can also be applied to any generic farm, not included in the FADN sampling. In fact any Italian farmer could be interested in determining what is the level of emissions of GHG for the crops or livestock in his farm, or to analyse different scenarios with a diversified mix of production processes. It has been decided therefore to make the calculator freely available on the web, in order to provide an easy and fast way to determine the carbon footprint using data input by any user, even anonymously.

Target users for this web-based carbon footprint calculator can be: single farmers, not included in the FADN sample; consulting agencies or farmers' organizations, interested in developing analysis for their members; students in agricultural or environmental sciences; agricultural economists or policy experts, wishing to make some kind of analysis on new policy instruments to mitigate agricultural emissions.

The web-based tools still under implementation, and shares most of the routines developed for the FADN component. The user will have to fill a set of forms on farm structure and location, crops and live-stock, inputs (including fertilizers) etc. The final result can be either displayed or sent to the user, in case he provides his email.

This service will be totally free and will also be used to fine tune the whole set of algorithms implemented so far. Figure 2 shows the first page of the web tool, that, till now, is available only in the Italian version (not only because of the language, but also for the use of country specific EF).

	Figure 2 V	Veb page	harding #	the second second second	- and	- Dimension		÷ (-10	100
	• • G		n in fr			(a+ c) (+ lionga		P 1	D
Institute Capi Past (b) Window Coll two/fool Variere da terre Coll two/fool Variere da terre Coll two/fool Ab- two Coll two/fool Ab- two Coll two/fool Carset	1	CAAI	Gircon Agixola	ca della tolane				IN	E /	A
Restlarme Beaution Coltina Alcost Value Alson Value Alson Ab Image Bardine Image Sudde Image Caste Image Bardine Image Sudde Image Caste Image Sudde Image Caste Image Value Image Sudde Image Value Image Sudde Image Caste		-					N	- 11	ï	*
Maximum Cogir Part (db) Value Abi Value Abi Abi Data		Bastland	2	Callbades	1					
Viel Viel Viel Viel Viel Viel Viel Viel		Busineris Capi	Fanado	These In						
Valmer A la lista Abi loca de Dis mesica Dis mesica Dis mesica Ite Viringia Pearse Casas Ca		VMB	10	fave di						
Aller lawers Defended in Defended in Peser Peser Defended in report Peser Canad Aller Aller Aller Aller Aller Aller Aller Canad Cana		VALLEY IN STR.	1.0	508 H						
Carret in Francesco Carret		Abilition	18	Drite medice: H						
Testra Caudi II Asse and II Caudi II Caudi II Caudi Asses Abit ass Called Asses Abit ass Called Asses Abit ass Called Asses II Called Asses III Called Asses II Called Asses II Called Asses I		0.fs(m)	12	Council II						
Cond II Asso 6 m.d Cong Diana de uso evel de cerve Altro galerie Concol II Reset		Factory	12.	forege R						
Assy + m.A E Comple North Anther state California (complete and the servery Attribution (complete) California (complete) Califori		Capit	120	7,041 (1						
Carlin de corres Datin de corres Altro planet Calconta de corres		design of	1.00		2					
Portofic Antina de course Portofica de course Portofica de course Altrip politione CAUCIDIA RESIDET		Carie	177							
After and the second se		32.41	5							
Calles de sours institue carrei Abro polarrei Calcona de sours		Abt sub-								
Aby polared CARCOLA RESET		Galles de save	20							
Altro planete CALCOLA Reserve		Pell da came	-81							
CALCHA REPORT		vito high and								
		1.69	COLA.	sever .						

12.6 Concluding Remarks

Mitigation of GHG emissions is becoming an increasing issue also in the agricultural sector, although, in Europe, they have already achieved a significant reduction. However, by 2050, according to estimates of the staff working documents for the roadmap for 2050 (SEC(2011) 289 final), agriculture is projected to represent a third of total EU emissions, tripling its share compared to today. The importance of agriculture in terms of climate policy is, therefore likely to increase, but as there is some potential risk of carbon leakage, the dual challenges of global food security and climate action need to be pursued together, in order to avoid undermining global reduction of emissions.

In other words, it is not only the amount of GHG to be reduced that matters, but the possibility to do it in cost-effective way. In some cases, savings may be made relatively easily at minimal (or no) cost. In other cases, savings may be prohibitively expensive. Thus, as stated by Dick et al. (2008), improving measurement of farm scale emissions should be accompanied by attempts to also improve understanding of the costs of mitigation.

A methodology based on FADN could allow an integrated assessment of GHG mitigation in a cost effective manner, as FADN data are collected for economic analysis. This seminal work is a first step into this direction, but there are still several issues to consider. The following SWOT analysis tries to highlight some of these issues, by clarifying what are the strengths, weaknesses and threats of the proposed approach, and trying to look forward to further improvements or opportunities of future work, in view of enhancing the representation of local environmental conditions and proper management practices, to make the methodology more suitable for inform and develop national agricultural policy, while still allowing harmonisation between national and international data requirements.

Table 11 SWOT analysis

	STRENGHTS	OPPORTUNITIES
•	System boundaries: only direct emissions at farm gate	Fully exploit FADN information and integrate them with other
	of which farmer has a direct control	sources in order to describe local environmental conditions and actual management practices
•	Policies implemented at farm level can be better evalu-	
	ated	Accounting for all processes within the boundaries that could
•	Few input data and simple methodology	be neglected an national scale, but relevant at farm scale (i.e. carbon sink for each cultivation)
•	EU level dataset	Measure the possibility of reducing emissions in a cost-
•	Comparable to UNFCCC estimates (could allow harmo- nisation between national and international data re- quirements)	effective manner

	WEAKNESSES	THREATS
•	National average emission factors can hidden some lo-	 Sustainability assessment of agricultural production should
	cal/farm level improvements and so allow to estimate	not be related only to GHG estimation
	only gains from few mitigation measures	
		 Even an improved calculator, could ignore adaptation
•	Incomplete set of FADN information to estimate agricul-	measures and synergies between mitigation and adaptation
	tural GHG emissions (i.e. land use change practices	options
	need to be monitored for longer periods. Need for a	
	dynamic approach)	Some experts claim that for complete assessments to be
		undertaken a full cradie to grave LCA may be required
•	Emission timing: how to account for different times of	
	actual physical emissions (how to count relatively im-	
	mediate land-use change emissions over time)	

Source: authors' elaboration and Dick et al., 2008.

12.7 References

APAT, 2003. *Analisi dei fattori di emissione di CO₂ dal settore dei trasporti.* Technical Report 28/2003, APAT, Rome.

Cóndor R.D., E. Cristofaro and R. de Lauretis, 2008. *Agricoltura: inventario nazionale delle emissioni e disaggregazione provinciale.* Technical Report 85/2008. ISPRA, Rome.

De Cara, S., M. Houzé and P.A. Jayet, 2005. 'Methane and nitrous oxide emissions from agriculture in the EU: A spatial assessment of sources and abatement costs.' In: *Environmental & Resource Economics* 32, pp. 551-583.

Dick, J., P. Smith, R. Smith, A. Lilly, A. Moxey, J. Booth, C. Campbell and D. Coulter, 2008. *Calculating farm scale greenhouse gas emissions*. University of Aberdeen, Carbon Plan, the Macaulay Institute, Pareto consulting, SAOS Ltd, Scotland, UK.

European Climate Change Programme, 2003, *Can we meet our Kyoto targets?* Second ECCP progress report. European Commission, DG ENV, Brussels, Belgium.

European Commission, 2010. *The CAP towards 2020: Meeting the food, natural resource and territorial challenges of the future.* Communication from the Commission to the European Parliament, the Council, the European Economic and Social Committee and the Committee of the Regions COM (2010) 672 Final.

European Commission, 2011. *A resource efficient Europe*. Communication from the Commission to the Council, the European Parliament, the European Economic and Social Committee and the Committee of the Regions COM (2011) 21.

European Commission, 2012. *Proposal for a decision of the European Parliament and of the Council on accounting rules and action plans on greenhouse gas emissions and removals resulting from activities related to land use, land use change and forestry.* COM (2012) 93 final.

European Parliament, 2009. *Decision No 406/2009/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of 23 April 2009 on the effort of member states to reduce their greenhouse gas emissions to meet the Community's greenhouse gas emission reduction commitments up to 2020.* 406/2009/EC.

European Environmental Agency, 2009. *Annual European Community Greenhouse Gas Inventory 1990-2007 and Inventory report 2009.* Submission to the UNFCCC Secretariat, Technical report No 4/2009, EEA.

IPCC, 1997. *Revised 1996 IPCC Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas Emission Inventories. reference manual, reporting manual, reporting guidelines and workbook.* IPCC/OECD/IEA. IPCC WG1 Technical Support Unit, Hadley Centre, Meteorological Centre, Meteorological Office, Bracknell, UK.

IPCC, 2000, *Good practice guidance and uncertainty management in National Greenhouse Gas Inventories.* IPCC National Greenhouse Gas Inventories Programme. Technical Support Unit, Hayama, Kanagawa, Japan.

IPCC, 2006. *2006 IPCC Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas Inventories*, prepared by the National Greenhouse Gas Inventories Programme. H.S. Eggleston, L. Buendia, K. Miwa, T. Ngara and K. Tanabe (eds). Published: IGES, Japan.

ISPRA-Istituto Superiore Protezione e Ricerca Ambientale, 2009. *Italian Greenhouse Gas Inventory 1990-2007.* National Inventory Report 2009, Technical Report 98/2009, ISPRA, Rome.

ISPRA-Istituto Superiore Protezione e Ricerca Ambientale, 2011. *Italian Greenhouse Gas Inventory 1990-2009*. National Inventory Report 2009, ISPRA, Rome.

Pérez Domínguez, I., W. Britz and K. Holm-Müller, 2009. 'Trading Schemes for Greenhouse Gas Emissions from European Agriculture - A Comparative Analysis based on different Implementation Options'. In: Review of Agricultural and Environmental Studies 90(3), pp.287-308.

Wang, J., L.M. Cardenas, T.H. Misselbrook and S. Gilhespy, 2011. 'Development and application of a detailed inventory framework for estimating nitrous oxide and methane emissions from agriculture.' In: *Atmospheric Environment* 45, pp. 1454-1463.

13 Sustainability in the Pig sector

Hans Vrolijk

Exploring variation in economic, environmental and societal performance among Dutch fattening pig farms

Pacioli 20, october 2012, Presentation by Hans Vrolijk Researchers: M. Dolman, I. De Boer, H. Vrolijk



Context

- Quantifying environmental impacts based on FADN data using LCA: Bottom-up approach, Dairy and pig farms
- What about societal and profit aspects?
- HOT! Life Cycle Approach
- Objective:
 - Quantify economic, environmental and societal performance...

Profit

- and identify the 'best practice'
- Which factors determine performance?
 People Planet



Introduction (context)



Material & Method (Data)

- Farm Accountancy Data Network:
 - 2009
 - Sample 1,500 farms
 - 150 pig farms
 - 50 fattening pig farms
 - 27 used in this study
 - no other production
 - Farm specific
 - excretion applicable



Material & Method (economic/societal)

- Economic performance
 - Net farm income (Euro / AWU)
 - Labour productivity (hours / 100 kg slaughter weight)
- Societal performance
 - Use of antibiotics (DDAY)
 - Mortality rate (# / 100 kg SW)



Material & Method (environmental)

- Environmental performance
 - Life Cycle Assessment
 - Cradle to farm gate
 - Functional unit: 100 kg slaughter weight
 - Impact
 - Land occupation
 - Non-renewable energy use
 - Climate change
 - Eutrophication
 - Acidification

System & system boundary



Material & Method (best practice)



105

Results (descriptive)

Farm characteristic	unit ^{a)}	mean	st.dev
Average no. fattening pigs	number	2,712	2,075
Traditional animal places	number	2,050	1,941
Low-emission animal places	number	1,164	1,608
Labor	awu	1.3	1.0
Average piglet weight	kg / piglet	23.9	1.8
Average slaughter weight	kg / fattening pig	92.4	2.1
Slaughter weight delivered	kg / year	730,225	551,187
Dry feed intake	kg DM / 100 kg SW	210.6	48.3
Other feed intake	kg DM / 100 kg SW	39.6	46.7
Gross N excretion	kg N / 100 SW	4.6	0.8
P excretion	ka P / 100 SW	0.8	0.2



Results (economic)



Results (environmental)



Results (environmental)



Results (societal)



Results (best practice)


Results (best practice)

Farm characteristic	unit4	average	best performing	(B ₂)	
Average no. fattening pigs	nümber	2,712	4,087		
Share of low emission a. places	96	36	28	ns	
Labor	awu	1.3	2.0	**	
Share of unpaid labor	96	76	63	.*	
Level of education	0-10 scale	5.3	5.3	ns	
Farmers age	year	52.2	51.8	ns	
Average piglet weight	kg / piglet	23.9	23.1	ns	
Average slaughter weight	kg / fattening pig	92.4	93.3	ns	
Slaughter weight delivered	kg / year	730,225	1,092,871	**	
Share of other feed intake	96	10	23	**	
Feed intake	kg DM / 100 kg SW	250	248	ns	
Feed intake adjusted	kg DM / 100 kg SW	235	229	*	



Discussion

- Differences in variation:
 - High variation in economic performance
- Choice of indicator:
 - Societal require animal based indicators
 - Some sustainability aspects can not be quantified at farm gate
- Best performing farm:
 - Subjective method
 - What about the farmer?

Conclusion

- FADN gives insight in variation in 3P performance
- Feed is important, it highly affects the environmental impact and influence the farmers income
- We need better societal indicators
- The 'farmer' needs to be quantified...



14 Investments in dairy farming

Pieter Willem Blokland



Aim of the study

- The aim of the study is to gain understanding in the relation between investments and financial results of dairy farms

Investments of Dutch dairy farms (2001-2009)





Investments of Dutch dairy farms (2001-



Farm income of growing Dutch dairy farms



Farm income of growing Dutch dairy farms

- Relation between growth and financial results
- Focus on growth in milk production
- Selection of farms
 - Farms with minimal 500.000 kg milk production
 - Minimal 25% growth in milk production since 2001
 - Maximum 30% quota investments of total quota investments in last 2 years
 - Selection of 48 dairy farms
 - Three groups: 25% worst, 50% centre and 25% best farms (based on income)

Farm income of growing Dutch dairy farms



Farm income of growing Dutch dairy farms



Farm income of growing Dutch dairy farms

	worstgroup		1	best group		
	2001/02	2008/09	mutation	2001/02	2008/09	mutation
milk production (1.000 kg)	497	787	+291	526	817	+29
Long term loans (1.000 €)	419	1.263	+844	431	920	+490
Results (€ per 100 kg milk)						
Revenues	42.25	41,75	-0,50	42,75	43,05	+ 0,3
	34,45	31,65	-2,85	34,25	31,70	-2.6
Costs	28,80	41,15	+ 12.3	37,15	33,85	-3,3
direct costs	10,45	13,85	+ 3,40	12.50	13,20	+ 0,7
posd interent	3.95	6.90	+ 2.90	4,80	4.35	-0.43
depreciation	4,50	9,00	+ 4,50	7,00	5,60	-1,40
othercosts	9,90	11,45	+ 1,60	12.85	10,70	-2.2
Farm income from operations	13.45	0.60	-12.85	5.00	9.20	+ 3.6

Farm income of growing Dutch dairy farms

No specific reason why the best are the best

- Debt capital has influence on income (interest and depreciation)
- Age, farm size and production intensity do not show a relation with the financial results
- Capability and qualities of the farmer play a crucial role in the financial results
- Modernity of durable goods is important

Characteristics of growing dairy farms in the EU

- Selection of EU farms based on FADN data
 - Minimal 200.000 kg milk production
 - 20% growth in milk production between 2001-2007
 - Growth in milk production in last 2 years lower than 25% of total growth in 2001-2007
 - Only specialised dairy farms
- Eccusion cash flow instead of income
 - Differences in depreciation methods between countries
- Netherlands, Germany, France, UK and Ireland

Characteristics of growing dairy farms in the EU

endrates of strong growers					
	NL	D	P.	GB	IRL
Milk production and investments					
Milk production 2007 (±1000 kg)	791	623	448	809	39
Growth since 2001 (%)	53	47	52	57	4
hvestments per 100 kg growth 2000-2007 (€)	342	171	243	151	14
	60	٥	2	10	2
		7	3	6	3
	24	ж	43	36	
machinealwatellations (%)	16	56	61	47	3
		1	2	10	

Characteristics of growing dairy farms in the EU

	NL	D	F	GB	IRL
Subsidies	3,4	7,3	9,0	3,7	7.1
	40,1	43.5	48,8	33.9	37.6
	32.3	32.1	30,1	27,9	28,2
Depreciation	4.8	6,4	9.7	4,8	4.8
Paid Interestilabour/rent	6,7	4,6	6,2	3.5	3,8
Other costs	8.9	11,0	14,0	5,6	6.0
Direct costs	11,8	15,3	16.9	14,3	13,5
Farm income from operations	11,3	13,4	11,0	9,4	16,6
Cash flow	16,1	19,8	20,7	14.2	21,4
Growth with regarding period 2000-2003 (%)	14	n	1	8	1

Characteristics of growing dairy farms in the EU

 Differences between successful and unsuccessful growers based on cash flow (€/100 kg milk)

	Unsuccessful gro	wers.		Successful grow	Successfulgrowers				
	Cash flow 00-03	Cash flow 04-07	Difference	Cash flow 00-03	Cash flow 04-07	Difference			
Netherlands	15,7	15,0	-0,7	12,7	17,0	4,3			
Germany	18,4	18,2	-0,2	17,1	21,7	4,7			
France	21,3	17,7	-3,6	19,0	23,2	4,2			
United Kingdom	14,2	13,1	-1,1	12,3	15,2	2,9			
Ireland	19,4	18,6	-0,9	19,1	24,3	5,2			

Characteristics of growing dairy farms in the EU

Investments per kg growth (€)											
	Unsuccessful growms (a)	Successful growers (b)	b in % of a								
Notherlands	3.6	3.3	93								
Germany	:1,6	1,9	119								
France	2.3	2,6	114								
United Kingdom	1.4	1,6	119								
ireland	1,4	1,4	98								

Characteristics of growing dairy farms in the EU

 Investments per k 	g growth (€)		
	Unsuccessful growers (a)	Successful growers (b)	bin%ofa
Notherlands	3.6	3.3	93
Germany	:1,6	1,9	119
France	2.3	2,6	114
United Kingdom	1,4	1.6	119
Ireland	1.4	1,4	98

Financial results are dependent of:

- Capabilities and qualities of farmers
- Modernity of durable goods
- Differences between countries in investing behaviour

15 Machinery and equipment in Italian agriculture

Concetta Cardillo

15.1 Introduction

Over the centuries, agricultural sector has undergone profound changes, but it was only with the invention of the combustion engine in the late nineteenth century, the foundations were laid for the mechanization of agriculture. At the beginning of the twentieth century it was used for the first time the word 'tractor'.

The invention of the new combustion engine has made possible the intensification of crops which has become to meet the dietary needs of a growing world population.

It follows that the mechanization of agriculture has affected and transformed over the years, the technical and economic efficiency of farms. In particular, farmers, given the nature of land, organization and management of their farms prefer buying a machine rather than resorting to the work performed by third parties and/or a more use of workforce.

Given the importance and the development of mechanization in Italian agriculture the goal of this work is to investigate this phenomenon through the use of the data of the Farm Accountancy Data Network (FADN). In particular, since, the database FADN has never been used to analyze agricultural mechanization, we want to verify both, the possibility to use the information contained in the database FADN for the analysis of the mechanization of Italian agriculture, and the definition of a methodology for analyzing the characterization of the mechanization of agriculture through the Italian FADN.

15.2 The methodology and the database

To analyze the various aspects that characterize the level of mechanization of Italian farms were used information contained in the FADN data for the accounting year 2010, that for each machine and registered tool, makes available a variety of information on technical and economic. Moreover, the FADN is the only harmonized source at European level of microeconomic data on the business operation and the economic and structural dynamics of farms operating in the agricultural sector.

Among the farms that take part in the FADN sample (11,156 farms), for the analysis have been considered only those that have agricultural machinery and UAA greater than zero hectares. In addition, they were considered only those groups that included at least 5 observations (farms). Were thus identified 11,025 farms on which the analysis of mechanization was performed.

Among the various information contained in the database FADN those considered for the analysis performed were (Table 1): the number of farms, the Utilized Agricultural Area (UAA), the economic size, the crops, the number of machinery for farm, the value of machinery, the farm net income, the farm capital, the power of machines, etc.

Number of Farms	Number of machinery per farm
Type of crops	Value of machinery (€)
Economic size	Costs of gasoline per farm (€)
Utilized Agricultural Area (ha)	Age of machinery
Farm Net income (€)	Power of machines (HP)
Farm capital (€)	Utilized machinery per crops (hours/ha)

Table 1 Variables utilized for the analysis

For machines were considered the categories related to tractors and self-propelled (Table 2). The category of the tractors contains, 4 different types of machines, while that of self-propelled operating contains 18 different types.

Machines		Tools			
Tractors	Operator self-propelled	Groups of activities			
crawler	Self-propelled atomizer	tillage			
with isodiametric wheels	harvester	sowing/transplant			
with 2 wheels drive	cultivator	fertilization			
with 4 wheels drive	forklift	irrigation			
	combine self-leveling	phytosanitary treatments			
		pruning			
	Other operator self-propelled	harvesting			

Table 2	Machines	and	tools
	ivia crimico	ana	10013

The tools, however, have been grouped into nine homogeneous types: equipment for tillage, sowing equipment and transplantation, equipment for fertilizing, irrigation equipment, equipment for treatments, equipment for support/protection, equipment for pruning and collection of tree crops, equipment for the collection of herbaceous crops, and, finally, equipment of transport. Subsequently, farms were grouped according to types of farming (arable crops, horticulture, permanent crops, herbivores, granivores, poly-culture, Mixed livestock, mixed crops and breeding) and classes of economic size.

The economic size classes have been redefined and, therefore, were not used size classes provided by the FADN. In particular, have been defined 4 groups:

- From 4.000 € to less than 8.000 euro;
- From 8.000 € to less than 16.000 euro;
- From 16.000 € to less than 50,000 euro;
- More than 50,000 euro.

For each group thus identified were defined Machinery and equipment. For the latter, it has been calculated, then, the average value.

The analysis of the FADN information on the economic value of agricultural tools and machines required the use of a procedure that would allow the identification of observations considered 'abnormal' for the purposes of work. Therefore, it has been carried out a preliminary analysis of the data for identifying the shape of the distribution of the subpopulations of the sample according to the criterion of poststratification adopted for the analysis (pole and Economic size class). This allowed us to adopt the 'best' procedure for the identification of outliers. In fact, outliers can affect many indicators. In our case, the average value is an indicator sensitive to extreme values of the distribution, and will be conditioned by them, thus being a not effective synthesis of observations.

After verifying the asymmetry in subpopulations of the sample, using either the graphical analysis of box-plot that the asymmetry index of Skewness, an index which provides a measure of its lack of symmetry, it was decided to use a procedure based on median, which is an index of synthesis less influenced by the presence of the average of these values.

The procedure for identifying data 'abnormal' (outliers) has been set on the variable replacement value of machinery and equipment using the 'Diagrams Box and Whisker Plot', presented for the first time in Tukey in 1977. The graph is built considering the three quartiles of the distribution: Q_1 (first quartile), Q_2 (median), and Q_3 (third quartile) and the values of maximum and minimum. Is also considered the interquartile range (IQR = $Q_3 - Q_1$) to determine the threshold values of the distribution of FADN:

The Lower Adjacent value (LAV), defined as the smallest observed value (minimum) that is greater than
or equal to:

$$LAV = Q_1 - 1,5 x (IQR)$$

The Upper Adjacent Value (UAV) defined as the largest observed value (maximum) that is less than or equal to:

$$UAV = Q_3 + 1,5 x (IQR)$$

The interval of 1,5 has been proposed by Tukey without special properties. In fact, it is his choice based on his statistics 'common sense'.

If the two extreme values are contained within the interval between LAV and UAV in the data collected there are no outliers. After the identification of outliers, these were replaced with the minimum or maximum value of the distribution of values without outliers (values in the range of LAV - UAV) depending on the outlier itself was less than the LAV or greater than the UAV.

Once the FADN database has been identified and corrected from the outliers we proceeded to the definition and calculation of a set of structural and economic indicators to measure and characterize the mechanization of Italian agriculture.

15.3 Results

The technical and economic analysis of the mechanization of Italian farms, as already said, was achieved through the construction of various structural and economic indicators.

In our case the structural indicators built and adopted are aimed at both defining the technical and structural characteristics of the mechanization, and the identification of the degree and / or level of intensification of the same in the different farms.

In particular, the structural indices used are as follows:

- Economic size: shows for each cultural group identified the classes of economic size into which have been divided different farms;
- Number of farms: expresses the number of farms in the different groups;
- Average Utilized Agricultural Area (UAA): expressed in hectares. Indicates the average UAA of farms in the different groups;
- Value of machines per farm: Indicates the value of the machine for each group. It is expressed in euro;
- Value of machines/Farm capital: it expresses the percentage of the value of the machines on the corporate capital;
- Farm net income per hectare: represents the net farm income per hectare. It is expressed in euro;
- Value of machines per hectare: it expresses the value of machinery per hectare. Although this index is expressed in euro;
- Power of machines per hectare: indicates the power of the machines used per hectare. It is expressed in horsepower per hectare;
- Cost of gasoline per farm: represents the cost that the farmers face up for the purchase of fuel. It is expressed in euro.

The following table presents the results of the calculation of structural indices only for crops. The analysis allows us to state that most of the farms used mechanical means of properties to perform various farming operations.

Type of Crops	Arable land											
Economic Size (€)	4,000-8,000	8,000-16,000	16,000-50,000	more than 50,000								
Number of Farms	292	501	957	1,152								
Average UAA (ha)	8,4	12.6	25.1	80.6								
Value of Machines per farm	37,782	48,973	77,888	185,423								
(€)												
Value of Machines/ Farm capi-	26.5	19.2	19.9	15.6								
tal (%)												
Farm Net Income per hectare	591	717	691	1,036								
Value of Machines per hectare	4,498	3,875	3,103	2,301								
Power of machines (HP) per	11	9	7.3	4.9								
hectare												
Cost of Gasoline per farm (€)	952	1,550	2,925	10,793								

Table 3 Machines - Structural indexes for 'arable land'

Furthermore, the analysis of the table shows a particular trend in some of the indexes analyzed. In particular, some indexes, as it was obvious to expect, they grow in value with increasing size class of enterprises, but in the case of the value of machines per hectare, the power of machines per hectare and the Value of machines / Farm capital seems that the situation is opposite. That is, the value of these indices decreases with the increase of economic size of the farms. This would seem to be due to an over-sizing of the gear of machines as well as to their 'bad' use.

Instead, economic indices calculated for each group (identified for crops group and for economic dimension) and differentiated according to the type of machines that are used in the analysis are:

- Numbers of machines for farm: is the number of different types of machines in each group identified;
- Value of machines: expresses the average value of the machines for group. This index is expressed in euro;
- Power of machines: indicates the average power of the machines in the various farms groups. It is expressed in horsepower;
- Age of machines: is the average age of machines on farms. It is expressed in years.

Table 4 shows the values of economic indicators in the case of tractors. Analysis of the table shows how in several cases we have no information. This is due to the fact that several groups have less than five observations and, therefore, it has been not possible to proceed to the calculation of the relative indices.

Table 4	/lachi	nes	- ECO	nomic in	ue	exes	101	u ac	1015									
Type of	Arab	Arable land																
Crops																		
Economic	4,00	0-8,0	000			8,00	0-16	,000,)		16,0	00-50	0,000)	more	than	50,00	00
Size (€)																		
	Ν	Ave	rage	per		Ν	N Average per N Average per		Average per		Ν	Ave	rage	per				
		mac	hine				mad	:hine	•			mac	hine			mac	hine	
		Α	Ρ	v			Α	Р	v			Α	Р	v		Α	Р	v
Crawler	56	23	63	21,627		114	21	70	25,340		289	20	76	27,208	355	19	89	34,194
Isodiametric											1				1			
wheels																		
2 wheels drive	169	20	60	26,600		295	22	63	26,062		617	21	65	26,208	1,240	19	74	29,416
4 wheels drive	124	19	80	33,099		334	18	81	33,945		967	16	93	38,147	2,429	14	106	44,173

 Table 4
 Machines - Economic indexes for 'tractors'

Legend: N = number of machines per farm; A = Age of machines (years); P = Power of machines (HP); V = Value of machines (€)

Furthermore, the other information that emerges from the table is, in general, the high age of agricultural machinery and, as already said before, the little difference that exists between the different groups, both as regards the power and for the value of agricultural machinery.

In Table 5, however, are presented the results of the economic indicators related to self-propelled machines. Even in this case the farms have been divided into groups identified on the basis of the type of crops and the class of economic size.

Type of Crops	Ar	able	land														
Economic Size	4,	000-8,000			8,	8,000-16,000			16,000-50,000			more than 50,000					
(€)																	
	Ν	Ave	erag	e per	Ν	Av	erage	per	Ν	Average per				Ν	Ave	rage	per ma-
		machine			ma	chine			machine					chir	ne	-	
		Α	Ρ	v		Α	Ρ	v		Α	Р	v			Α	Ρ	v
Atomizzatore se-					2				5	21	23	6,670		8	11	64	13,063
movente																	
Carrello elevatore	1				1				8	19	34	6,581		23	12	45	12,183
Mietitrebbiatrice	4				15	21	125	80,039	87	20	164	98,324		295	15	185	113,536
autolivellante																	
Motocoltivatori	67	20	15	4,613	80	20	16	5,175	163	18	15	4,482		203	16	17	5,203
Motofalciatrice	21	28	14	2,838	38	27	13	4,039	97	27	15	3,898		120	27	13	2,954
Motoranghina-tore					3	35	13	3,500	5	27	21	4,700		10	20	16	4,655
Motozappatrice	22	18	11	2,507	40	15	13	2,578	90	17	11	2,561		59	17	13	2,758
Piattaforma se-														5	15	24	11,800
movente																	
Raccoglitrice ge-	2				1				10	12	29	8,745		35	10	73	43,745
nerica																	
Scuotitore se-									1					1			
movente																	
Altre macchine	22	15	35	15,686	19	18	36	16,427	58	15	51	23,426		152	12	65	43,442
operatrici se-																	
moventi																	
Spandimangime	1				1									5	12	48	22,800
semovente																	

Table 5 Machines - Economic indexes for 'operating self-propelled'

Legend: N = number of machines per farm; A = Age of machines (years); P = Power of machines (HP); V = Value of machines (€)

The structural indices were calculated also for self-propelled machinery but, with the exception of some index such as the cost of gasoline per farm, are substantially similar to those calculated for the machines. So, in this paper, they have not been examined.

Furthermore, for self-propelled machinery we can apply the same considerations as in the case of tractors. Even in this case there are several missing information, because there are several groups that have a number of observations less than 5. In general, it can be said that the self-propelled machines are old on average and, for those types present in the 4 groups identified on the basis of economic size the analysis shows a value of the same almost equal. This confirms, once again, as the Italian agriculture is characterized by the presence of an oversize of the rolling stock. This is particularly true especially in the case of groups with an economic size small.

Type of Crops		Permanent Crops	Permanent Crops					
Operations	Tools	Tools per farm	Age (years)	Value (€)				
Fertilization	Spandiconcime	1.334	15	1.682				
	Spandiletame	133	20	4.884				
	Spandiliquame	31	26	5.401				
Tillage	Aratri	1.846	20	2.649				
	Erpici	1.934	18	2.324				
	Fresatrice	1.333	16	2.869				
	Sarchiatrice	103	18	2.992				
	Vangatrice/Zappatrice	406	17	3.159				
Pruning	Braccio scuotitore	166	9	8.584				
	Cimatrice-spollonatrice	377	9	4.218				
	Forbici pneumatiche	356	8	1.191				
	Trinciasarmenti	979	12	3.176				
Harvesting field crops	Barra falciante	239	15	2.202				
	Falciatrici	215	14	3.094				
	Imballatrice	58	24	5.041				
	Ranghinatore-voltafieno	182	20	1.844				
	Rotoimballatrice	64	14	10.230				
	Varie raccolta colture erbacee	152	17	5.872				
Sowing/transplant	Seminatrice a righe	317	20	3.394				
	Seminatrice a spaglio	58	18	2.782				
	Seminatrice di precisione	101	17	6.290				
	Trapiantatrici	6	11	10.053				
Phytosanitary treatment	Atomizzatore portato	779	13	3.865				
	Atomizzatore trainato	1.520	13	5.501				
	Barra per diserbo	274	15	2.120				
	Varie attrezz. Trattamenti	1.002	14	2.419				

Table 6 Tools - Economic indexes for 'permanent crops'

Subsequently, we have determined the economic indicators for the tools (Table 6).

Before proceeding to the calculation of economic indicators, tools have been grouped according to the type of operation carried out (fertilization, tillage, pruning, harvesting field crops, etc.) and divided between different cultural groups.

The economic indicators used for tools were: the average number per farm, the average age of each tool, and finally, their economic value.

In this case, what is clear from the start is the fact that all types of tools are enhanced. In particular, we note the presence of a high number of gears for the groups related to the fertilization and soil tillage. Once again, also in this case the average age of equipment particularly high.

After the economic indices it has been calculated the number of hours of work (employment) of machines per hectare, divided by type of crops for the 4 groups identified (Table 7).

	Economic Size (€)												
TYPE OF	4,000-8,000			8,000-1	8,000-16,000			16,000-50,000			more than 50,000		
CROPS	Machi-	UAA	Hours/h	Machi-	UAA	Hours/h	Machi-	UAA	Hours/	Machi-	UAA	Hours/	
	nes		а	nes		а	nes		ha	nes		ha	
Field	227	754	41,27	518	2,293	24.11	1,356	10,577	20.19	2,222	41,929	22.35	
Crops													
Oil Seeds	10	50	31,18	23	109	16.06	80	582	25.42	179	2,869	26.08	
Horti-colture	55	21	223.47	176	80	285.50	479	386	168.41	1,144	5,137	88.58	
Fodder	118	510	40.53	305	2,048	20.23	818	9,448	14.40	1,535	36,890	14.08	
Permanent	50	40	96.43	97	97	140.12	430	804	137.40	641	3,586	100.50	
Crops													
Vineyards / Olives	177	240	93.27	361	689	72.39	937	2,455	67.44	1,275	11,909	76.58	

Table 7 Machines - Working hours per group of crops and per hectare

The analysis of the table shows that the smaller size classes show higher values than all the others. This is probably due to the adoption of a cultural technique not efficient and to a not efficient scheduling of work.

Horticulture is the group of crops which accounts the high value, but it was natural to expect these results if we consider the type and the characteristics of this crop.

Finally, to complete the work proposed it was made a comparison between the Italian and the agricultural mechanization in other EU countries (Tables 8a - 8b).

The comparison is made using the average value of the machines in the different EU countries divided among the various type of crops.

Country	Field Crops	Horticulture	Permanent Crops	Grazing live-	Granivore
				stock	
Austria	1,358		3,528	2,143	2,552
Belgium	1,254	10,836	5,858	1,097	2,339
Bulgaria	321	2,155	1,389	178	5,020
Cyprus	931		3,317	1,834	
Czech Republic	807	13,929	2,144	570	11,349
Denmark	1,573	8,747	2,912	2,411	3,473
Estonia	446	751	150	431	2,433
Finland	1,049	16,841		1,576	2,419
France	756	5,433	1,673	657	1,747
Germany	703	9,243	3,418	1,160	1,724
Greece	1,611	5,028	2,295	1,164	1,440
Hungary	503	2,134	1,068	381	995
Ireland	895			603	
Italy	1,291	6,564	2,461	1,010	2,306
Latvia	398		389	268	5,004
Lithuania	706	2,573	970	808	
Luxembourg			6,830	2,066	
Malta		9,239	6,722	15,513	59,760
Netherlands	2,630	56,497	10,492	2,758	10,257
Poland	953	5,639	2,442	1,186	1,537
Portugal	669	3,913	902	282	930
Romania	402	3,639	1,251	579	4,961
Slovakia	316			231	
Slovenia	3,074		2,935	2,144	
Spain	226	1,318	466	251	755
Sweden	810	2,248		962	967
United Kingdom	747	4,889	2,693	415	2,578

 Table 8a
 Mechanization of Italian agriculture versus mechanization of European Union for the specialized type of farming

Source: European Commission

The analysis of the values of the machines in the EU shows that agricultural mechanization in Italy is similar to the mechanization present in the other EU countries. However, if you make a comparison between Italy and Spain, with Greece and, in part, with France, as countries that are similar to the Italian agriculture it can be seen as the farms in Italy have a gear slightly higher than in other countries.

Country	Mixed Cropping	Mixed Livestock	Mixed Crops-Livestock
Austria	1,768	2,290	1,883
Belgium	1,843	1,569	1,279
Bulgaria	461		568
Cyprus	1,405		
Czech Republic	958	799	806
Denmark	1,569	2,586	1,927
Estonia			493
Finland			1,377
France	854	946	773
Germany	929	1,260	884
Greece	1,766	1,327	1,404
Hungary	572	673	440
Ireland			1,090
Italy	1,666	1,560	1,543
Latvia	230	243	256
Lithuania	846	889	691
Luxembourg		2,911	2,124
Malta	4,906		
Netherlands	2,279	3,540	2,416
Poland	817	925	838
Portugal	696	285	265
Romania	429	466	478
Slovakia	293		329
Slovenia	2,155	2,019	2,063
Spain	259	198	182
Sweden			956
United Kingdom	739	728	636

Table 8b Mechanization of Italian agriculture versus mechanization of European Union for the mixed type of farming

Source: European Commission

Before completing the examination of the results obtained in this work, we must make some considerations on FADN data. That is, the FADN database is represented by a random sample of farms that is based on a sampling design stratified by region, type of farming and classes of Economic size. To each unit collected (farm) is assigned a coefficient for the calculation of the estimates of the variables in the domain of strategic estimate planned, for the FADN they have been defined at regional and national level. The weight indicates the number of units of the population that this sampling unit represent and, therefore, allows the extension to the reference universe of information related to strategic variables (or those related to them) with a certain reliability level fixed at design time of the sample design.

However, in this work it was not possible to use the coefficients to extend the results of the analysis to the Universe of reference. In fact, the statistical unit is represented by machinery and agricultural equipment of the farms and not by the farms for which the weights are determined. So, the only measure of 'reliability' of the estimated average is given by the sample size. Precisely for this reason it was chosen to show only the results for sets with a number of observations greater than or equal to 5.

15.4 Some conclusions

The study developed showed that the FADN database contains a great number of information, with a high level of quality, which allow the characterization of both technical - structural and economic mechanization of Italian agriculture. Moreover, it seems that the method of analysis adopted corresponds to the objectives that we had set in this work. Thus, it can safely be proposed for further in-depth analysis on agricultural mechanization.

The analysis of agricultural mechanization and agricultural tools in the holdings has highlighted as Italian farms are characterized by the presence of a large number of machines, both tractors and agricultural tools, which in many cases leads to an oversizing of the agricultural mechanization. This is apparent, in particular, by observing both the number of tractors and the average power used per hectare of UAA. Since the agricultural mechanization, particularly through the work of the land, often has a significant negative impact on the environment. In particular, the negative aspects of mechanization are:

- The reduction in the content of organic matter;
- The degradation of the physical and chemical fertility;
- The preparation of the land slopes to erosion;
- The alteration of the composition of weed flora.

We must not also forget the role played by the mechanization on the agro biodiversity: hedges, intercropping, the traditional hydraulic - agricultural, are an obstacle to mechanization, as the tractors need space to move without any problems. It follows that, with the passage of time the mechanization induced a simplification of rural landscape elements with consequent reduction of biodiversity.

On the other hand, though mechanization has led to an increase in the productivity of agricultural labor, we must not neglect the social implications of the same.

It was therefore decided to continue the study proposed, in order to analyze both the environmental implications of agricultural mechanization, and the macroeconomic aspects of mechanization and finally, work accidents related to agricultural machines that take place in the agricultural sector.

16 Impact of differences in applying the SO-typology on FADN-farms in FADN and in FSS for the weighting of farms

Ann Marie Karlsson





FADN and FSS a comparison of the applied SO-typology on FADN and FSS-data 2010

Background

In Sweden a holding in FSS and in FADN should have the same identifier. In cases were the variables are defined the same a comparison between the two surveys can be made. Typology is such a case

Aim

- Type of farms
- Size
- OGA



Why differences between FADN and FSS?

- Methods for calculating and defining. For example animals are asked for in June in FSS and in FADN an average of the number of animals during the year is used.
- Different methodology for collecting data. For example OGA asked for in FSS-template and calculated based on accountancy material in FADN. Different time, different data-collectors, different staff.
- The concept of holding might differ due to how the accountancy is organized
- Mistakes







Comparison SO value for one of the holding

FSS			FADN	
Type	151		Туре	166
Size	23666			57400
B_1_1_1	22,36	Höstvete	120	2240
B_1_1_5	15,28	Råg	124	1530
B_1_12_2	12,9	träda	146 (code 3)	1294
			149	838,01
B_1_12_2			146 (code 3)	
B_1_12_1			147 (code 8)	



149 prepared for sowing leased to others (B.1.11)





The SO value in FSS compared to FADN i.e FSS value divided with FADN-value

	FSS-SO divided with FADN-SO												
	<50	50-90	90-110	110-150	>150	empty	Total						
15 Specialist cereals, oilseeds and prot.	1	1	6	75	7	3	93						
46 Special ist dairying		71	117	6		3	197						
51 Special ist pigs	15	57	21	19	3	5	120						
Totalsumma	16	129	144	100	10	11	410						

Type15: Systematically higher SO in FSS compared to FADN

Types 46 and 51: Systematically lower SO in FSS compared to FADN

Other types of farming OK



Other gainfull activities

	OGA FSS					
OGA FADN	No match	0-10%	11-50 %	51-100 %	Total	
0-10 %	28	680	97	26	831	18%
11-50 %	6	92	89	11	198	55%
51-100 %	2	3	15	7	27	74%
Total	36	775	201	44	1056	
		12%	56%	84%		

In FSS asked for in template

In FADN calculated based on accountancy material



Conclusion: Neither FADN or FSS approaches give relaible information on holdings were OGA are important



Conclusions

30-40 identifiers needs to be adjusted

Type of farm

- Something is wrong for types 15 and 16
- If classified as 15 or 16 seems delicate. How IACS codes are used should be examined.

Size

Three type groups need further checking 15, 46, 51
OGA

· Seem unreliable for holdings with important OGA



17 Random sampling - does it really improve representativity?

Andreas Roesch





Data Quality

✓ Data quality much better than in first test phase

owing to:

- > Electronic (survey) questionnaire
- Extensive quality check
- Improved design of questionnaire
- Completion of form preferred by accountancy office
- Additional questions allow for 'harmonisation' of various bookkeeping software packages

Andrew Rowch | Mikewarch Station Agroscope Reckenholz-Tenikon ARI 20th Pacial Workshop, Rome, 30 Sep - 3 Oct 2012

Ð

Ø

Ø

Structural Characteristics

Sample II (Census in brackets), weighted means

6

	Dai	Special Crops					
	UAA	Livestock	UAA	Fruit	Vineyard	Vegetables	
	[ha]	[LU]	[ha]	[a]	[a]	[a]	
Sample II	21.8	28.9	11.8	128	343	139	
	(21.3)	(28.2)	(12.5)	(138)	(296)	(176)	
Group 1	19.0	24.4	11.5	122	339	158	
Group 3	23.6	31.0	11.7	68	360	39	
	CV=0.63	CV=0.49	CV=0.66	CV=0.25	CV=0.33	CV=0.61	

Dairy farms:

Size and livestock nos. distinctly smaller in Group 1 ('Failed Recruitment') than in Group 3 ('Respondents')

Andrew Rowsh | Mikewarch Station Agroscope Reckenholz-Tenikon ARI 20th Pacial Workshop, Rome, 30 Sep - 3 Oct 2012



Andrews Roewch | 10 Research Station Agroscope Redenholz-Lanskon ARI 20th Pacial Workshop, Rome, 30 Seg - 3 Oct 2012





Andrews Hower's 10 Mewarch 10 Main Agrowcope Nedwinholz-Fenikon AKI 20 h Pecial Workshop, Rome, 20 Sep - 2 Cct 2012

11

18 Farm Data and Monitoring System in Azerbaijan

Namig Shalbuzov



ESTRABLISHMENT OF FDMS

- · Phase 1 (2006-2009)
- Get familiar with the issues related to the establishment of FADN;
- Development of Questionnaire and FDMS Software;
- Formation of Farm Data Unit (FDU).
- Phase 2 (2010-1012)
- Revised versions of farm survey questionnaire and new FDMS software;
- Sample plan (including representative sample size and distribution of sample farms by regions and type of farming categories) using agricultural census database at farm level developed;
- Managerial and organizational capacity in IEOA is developed:
- Appointment of Deputy Director for FDMS
- Establishment of departments for FDMS
 - Department of Organization of Farm Data Collection Department of Information and Organization of Monitoring System
- Recruitment of out posted data collectors in 4 regions (14 data collectors)
- Concept for the establishment of country-wide FDMS in Azerbaijan
 - developed



Source: On the basis of TCP/AZE/3001(A) Farm Business Management training manual/guidelines

Gross Margin data collection vs. Farm level data collection

Gross Margin approach:

Pro:

- Easy to understand the results on enterprise level.
- Provides direct information for the sectoral agricultural policy
- Strong statistical background is not needed.

Kontra:

More difficult data collection

The net farm income is difficult to calculate

- Accounting year vs. Calendar year (winter crops problem)
- Take account of fodder production (internal use)

Farm level approach:

Pro:

- Clear results on farm level.
- Commonly used in Europe for policy analysis (FADN)
- Simpler data collection

Kontra:

 Strong statistical background is indispensable (Census, farm typology, weighting scheme).

 Provides only indirect information for the sectoral agricultural policy (Farm types only)



FARM SURVEY QUESTIONNAIRE

FARM SURVEY QUESTIONNAIRE



FARM SURVEY QUESTIONNAIRE



FARM SURVEY QUESTIONNAIRE



FDMS SOFTWARE



SAMPLE PLAN - Representativness: population and sample



Farm typology results

		Agricultu	ral area	Livestock Unit		
Lower threshold	Farm number	ha	%	head	%	
>2000 AZN SO	224 744	1 148 142	60,3%	1 839 396	61,9%	
>1000 AZN SO	419 152	1 511 264	79,4%	2 474 466	83,3%	
>500 AZN SO	588 536	1 707 668	89,7%	2 728 857	91,9%	
All individual farms	1 266 297	1 903 254	100,0%	2 970 521	100,0%	

Source: Agricultural Census, 2005

Number of farms in different farm types

		U	NIVER	SE	P	OPULATI		SAMPLE		
Farm types used in FDMS sample plan			l indivi farm	dual s :	Ind 1000 AZ	lividual fa N Standa	tput	FDMS farms (0.5%)		
Field crop farms			216 650			106 3		513		
Vegetable fa	ms		27 672			27 2	33		131	
Perennial fa	ms		224	452		128	67		62	
Livestock fa	rms		295	431		1366	42		659	
Mixed farms	lixed farms 243 2		229		131.8	45		635		
	Number of farms by ec				mic region Farm typ	s (0,5% of	total)			
	Economic regi	ions	Field crop	Vegetable	e Perennial	Livestock	Mixed	Total		
	Guba-Khachn	a a z	52	6	22	45	63	188		
	Lankaran		46	16	13	82	63	220		
	Aran		179	2-12-	20 -	256	279	776		
	Shaki-Zaqati	ila –	59	al		70	74	225		
	Daghlig Shirv	an	40	1~	1	32	53	129		
	Ganja-Gazal	ch 👘	110	27	3	105	63	308		
	Tukhari		13	3	0	13	18	47		
	Bakı		0	1	0	2	0	2		
	Absheron		1	1	0	11	11 1		_	
	Nakhchiva	•	12	14	2	41	22	90	-	
	Total		513	131	62	659	635	2000	1	

COUNTRY-WIDE COVERAGE



Conceptual framework for functioning of FDMS



ANNUAL C	OST BREA	AKDOWN	(AZN)	
	2012	2013	2014	2015
Personnel	76,632	86,832	97,032	101,112
Travel	45,720	56,520	67,320	71,640
Trainings to data collectors	6,000	6,000	6,000	6,000
Equipment and software	10,500	13,000	15,500	16,500
Reporting and analysis	3,000	3,000	3,000	3,000
General operating expenses	7,600	7,600	7,600	7,600
Grand Total	149,452	172,952	196,452	205,852
Sample size	1,203	1,562	1,911	2,000
Cost per farm	124	111	103	103



19 Development of FADN in Turkey

Cemre Ozcanli





"Establishment of Pilot Turkish Farm Accountancy Data Network" Project was implemented between August 2007 and January 2009. Within the project;



* "Extending the Pilot FADN Project and Ensure Sustainability" project started in May 2011

Objective:

- To extend the Turkish FADN system within 12 Regions at NUTS 1 level and ensure its sustainability.
- Twinning partners are Holland, Germany and Sweden consortium.





IMPLEMENTATION OF FADN

- Data have been collected from 600 holdings
- * Trainings were organized for data collectors
- * 350-farm-data were sent to RICA1 system



IMPLEMENTATION OF FADN








DATA COLLECTION Logbook

	COSTS-PURCHASES										
Transaction code	Data	Type of transactions	Amount and unit (head, m ² , Ton vb)	Total amount (TL)							
	05.05.2011	Hoeing (For cotton)	10 persons-45 TL	450							
	17.08.2011	20x20 fertlizer was bought .	700 kg	518							
	18.08.2011	Buğday taşıma ücreti	1 time	150							
	27.09.2011	Repairs	300 TL for equipment, 250 TL for labour	550							



DATA COLLECTION Logbook

		REVEN	UES-SALES	
Transaction code	Date Type of transactions		Amount and unit (head, m ² , Ton vb)	Total amount (TL)
	22.10.2011	Wheat was sold	5 Ton	4650
	24.10.2011	Plowing	25 da/14 TL	350
	27.11.2011	Insurance compensation	19 da grain maize	1350
	31.12.2011	Olive was sold	750 kg olives	2650
	5			

14

13



20 Status of FADN in Kosovo

Hakile Xhaferi



FADN(Farm Accounts Data Network)in Kosova

Hakile Xhaferi Chief of Statistics Division Department of Economic Analysis and Agriculture Statistics MAFRD

> 30.09-03.10. 2012 Rome



Short overview of the presentation

- I. Organisational structure of the FADN system of Kosovo II. Background
- III. FADN sampling
- IV. FADN data collection, New development activities
- V. Summary
- VI. Plans for the future



- Out of this number only 5,000 farms are above 1 European Size Unit which forms the field of observation of the FADN.
- Recent FADN data collection collects data from 300 farms which give a 6% selection rate.



Continuation

- After the finishing of the calculation of SO coefficients the classification of FADN sample farms have been accomplished.
- This has revised the true structure of agriculture of Kosovo for the first time by using EU methodology.
- Data collected and processed from the sample farms will represent the agricultural sector of Kosovo.



IV. FADN data collection, & development activities

- For further testing and for the validation of the new questionnaire farm visits have been organised.
- The questionnaire was performing considerably well, however it will take time for the enumerators to get familiar with it.
- We tested the software by entering the freshly collected data.
- Although data entry was fairly simple, at the same time few deficiencies were detected



- Based to the results farms with grazing livestock (mainly dairy cows) and the mixed crops and livestock farms are the most important segments of the agricultural sector of Kosovo.
- According to these results Kosovo has about 192 thousand agricultural farming units * (farms) of which about 49%, (93 thousand) is above the 2000 € SO, forming the field of observation.
- They produce the 82% of the total production value.

"Last Agriculture Census In Kosova was conducted in 1960



- All farms in total in 2008 have produced an estimated production value of 573 million Euro.
- Farms below the threshold (51% of the total population) have produced 18% of the total production value while farms above the threshold level produced the 82%.
- The selection plan of Kosovo needs to be revised as some of the types like mixed animals are not represented



•By this method we are able to reconstruct the structure of the agricultural sector of Kosovo.

•This will serve as the universe of farms forming the basic population of farms of Kosovo until the Agricultural Census will take place and the original structure of agriculture will be revised.

•Managing to calculate the total Standard Output for Kosovo for 2008 estimating the potential of the sector and at the same time identifying the key branches of agriculture.



Concertitions		_		Ecor	nomie	c size	e clas	sses	_			T-4-1
General type	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11-14	TULA
Arable crops	3	6	3	6	5	7	4					34
Horticulture	1		4	9	7	3	4	2		1		31
Permanent crops		1	1	1	1	2						6
Grazing livestock		1	7	18	26	26	13					91
Pigs and poultry						2	2					4
Mixed horticulture and permanent crops		1	1	6	3	6	1					18
Mixed animals												
Mixed crops and animals		4	19	21	15	11	2	3				75
Total	4	13	35	61	57	57	26	5		1		259





Farms in the agricultural household survey, 2008

Conoraltura				Eco	nomi	c siz	e cla	sses				Total	Above
General type	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	13	Total	hold
Arable crops	330	38	16	11	13	23	18	8	4	1		462	132
Horticulture	37	8	15	22	23	20	2	1				128	91
Permanent crops	24	4	7	13	4	1						53	29
Grazing livestock	479	496	342	129	50	44	13	3	1			1557	1078
Pig and poultry	27	1	1	2	1	2	3	3	1		2	43	16
Mixed horticulture and permanent crops	182	66	72	45	19	18	7	1				410	228
Mixed animals	113	135	71	14	1	1						335	222
Mixed crops and animals	290	573	398	109	19	19	5	3				1416	1126
Total	1492	1321	922	345	130	128	48	19	6	1	2	4414	2922



Total Number of Farms

-		Economic size classes											
General type	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11-14	Total	hold
Arable crops	20,487	1,128	507	351	230	231	162	53	4	1		23,153	2,666
Horticulture	2,672	519	672	748	210	118	25	1				4,960	2,288
Permanent crops	1,385	181	143	185	14	1						1,909	524
Grazing livestock	31,787	22,148	10,606	2,337	699	153	51	3	1			67,783	35,996
Piq and poultry	1,886	107	55	142	1	2	3	3	1		2	2,202	316
Mixed hort. and perm. crops	12.204	3.038	2.270	1.016	201	119	7	1				18 856	6 652
Mixed animals	7.687	6.331	1.899	346	1	1						16.265	8.578
Mixed crops and animals	20.089	24 393	9 958	1 932	317	174	18	2				56 862	36 793
Total	98,733	57,841	26,108	7,056	1,674	798	265	64	6	1	2	192,547	93,814

FADN	Total production (mill							lior	า				
FAUN	Euro)												
Consultant				Econ	omic	size	class	es				Tetel	Above
General type	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11-14	Iotai	thres- hold
Arable crops	11.8	3.3	2.8	3.8	4.7	8.4	11.8	5.7	1.5	0.7	0.0	54.4	42.6
Horticulture	1.5	1.5	4.3	7.8	4.1	3.8	1.5	0.1	0.0	0.0	0.0	24.7	23.1
Permanent crops	1.3	0.6	0.8	2.2	0.2	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	5.1	3.9
Grazing livestock	40.6	61.1	58.0	24.8	13.6	5.0	3.2	0.4	0.4	0.0	0.0	207.1	166.5
Pig and poultry	0.6	0.4	0.4	1.7	0.0	0.1	0.2	0.5	0.3	0.0	4.0	8.2	7.6
Mixed hort, and	0.7		12.2	11.0	27	2/	0.5	0.1	0.0	0.0	0.0	40.1	20.5
Mixed animals	11.8	17.9	9.6	3.4	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	43.1	31.0
Mixed crops and	27.0		52.7	40.2	<u>с</u> о	5.0	1.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	404.0	452.0
Total	105.2	161.8	141.8	74.0	32.3	26.1	18.2	7.2	2.2	0.0	4.0	573.3	468.1



Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry and Rural Development

VI.Concrete plans for the future

- After the classification of the types and economic size of the sample farms, has become clear that the existing sample farm structure does not represent all the farms in the AHS.
- · The revision of the sample has to take place
- 1. Elaboration of a Selection Plan on the basis of the population data.
- 2. Incorporation of the control algorithms into the new data processing software.
- · 3. Training of the enumerators

21 EU conformity of the Croatian FADN

Kristijan Jelakovic



CONTENT

- starting point
- Croatian agriculture in figures
- institutional framework
- FADN pilot surveys
- development of FADN IT solutions
- first results
- state of the art
- future challenges





INTRODUCTION

- benchmark for negotiations with EU
- implementation of the EU acquis in statistics
- Iack of experience in similar surveys
- technical assistance (WB project)
- institutional co-operation
- organization of Laision Agency
- data collection preparation





OBJECTIVE

- implementation of EU FADN methodology
- collection of structural, economical and financial farm data
- ensure the confidentiality of individual farm data
- development and maintaining of data base
- data transmission to the EC
- data analysis for national stakeholders
- preparation of (standard) results and reports
- fully functional Croatian FADN system





ASSUMPTIONS

- creation of the legal base
- institutional co-operation
- building questionnaire and manual for data collection
- SGM/SO coefficients calculation
- education of data collectors
- development of IT solutions





RISKS

- old administrative sources (Agricultural Census 2003)
- Farm Structure Survey not conducted
- voluntary participation of farmers
- accountancy approach on farm level
- Farm Return content
- data quality issues
- Iack of human and financial resources



* *



CROATIA IN FIGURES

total surface:	87 661 km²	
continental surface:	56 594 km²	
sea surface:	31 067 km²	Al a second
sea coast length:	5 835 km	- 38.
islands, cliffs and reefs:	1 185	
population:	4 290 612	
rural population:	47,6%	÷* •
GDP per capita:	10 682 €	FADNIng



CROATIAN AGRICULTURE facts & figures

number of holdings: average size:	181 252 5,4 ha	eurostat
utilised agricultural area: arable land: kitchen gardens:	978 671 ha 729 080 ha 1 940 ha	
permanent grassland: permanent crops:	173 950 ha 50 010 ha	
forest area:	92 100 ha	
total standard output: total livestock:	1 372 655 € 861 700 LSU	HADN.hr



INSTITUTIONAL FRAMEWORK





Liasion Agency for croatian FADN Croatian Bureau of Statistics (CBS) clasification of farms, sampling activities



Faculty of Agriculture (FA) data analysis



FADN PILOT SURVEYS 2008 - 2011



EU conformity of the Croatian FADN

CROATIAN FADN IT SYSTEM

- offline software tool with online connection for uploading data
- programming language is PHP with some extensions so the user interface is build in Glade builder
- data files are saved locally in XML format
- DBMS is MySQL
- web application for generating reports on server
- all scripts are written in PHP

Contraction of the local division of the loc	
(m. 94)	
2 2	A A A A A A A A A
Martin Martin Martin	ten 1
111	
Laboration in the laboration of the laboration o	high a
Long of the local division of the local divi	Turner M
Manager and	Analyzed and the second s
Sales Barrison Sales	Transmission 0
Approx.	Table 14th option process Table
1222	Anton physicals parts 47
Langer	March Inc.
Table 10 Built	April and any
No.	fact particular and a second s
FRAME	
	4 📷 📮 🗃 📷 📷 🖬 🖬 🖬 🖬



FADN FIELD OF OBSERVATION

Type of far									
Type of fair	m								
			- 111	IV	v	VI	TOTAL		
 Specialist field crops 	4.817	1.821	1106	398	154	28	8.324		
2. Specialist horticulture	435	390	61	78	11	0	976		
3. Specialist permanent o	rops 6.827	1.862	101	18	25	14	8.847		
4. Specialist grazing lives	tock 13.50	9.715	2.741	756	150	27	26.892		
5. Specialist granivores	3.980	1.095	241	55	82	20	5.473		
Mixed cropping	5.946	1.380	253	37	11	9	7.635		
7. Mixed livestock	12.70	1 7.474	696	125	7	2	21.006		
8. Mixed crops - livestock	23.32	2 6.199	832	267	74	3	30.697		
TOTAL	71.52	9 29.936	6.031	1.735	514	103	109.849		



FADN REPRESENTATIVE SAMPLE

	Turne of farm					lasses		TOTAL
	type of faith	1	н	ш	IV	v	VI	TOTAL
1.	Specialist field crops	30	36	38	42	66	28	240
2.	Specialist horticulture	25	22	15	11	11	0	84
3.	Specialist permanent crops	32	29	10	7	22	14	114
4.	Specialist grazing livestock	42	47	52	56	51	27	275
5.	Specialist granivores	24	28	18	15	29	20	134
6.	Mixed cropping	36	31	15	11	11	9	113
7.	Mixed livestock	25	27	19	12	7	2	92
8.	Mixed crops - livestock	55	45	34	31	28	3	196
	TOTAL	269	265	201	185	225	103	1.248



SELECTION PLAN 2012 % % % ES6 UAA TSO LSU farms (inv.) (inv.) (inv.) (inv.) 71.403 100,00% 53.487 100,00% 61.336 100,00% 47.648 0 100.00% 71.529 60,61% 217.629 94,53% 307.032 95,53% 199.616 94,60% I 29.936 21.14% 264.874 72,30% 400.790 73,16% 255.543 Ш 71.99% Ш 6.031 4,63% 52.630 45,23% 207.676 43,97% 125.454 43,05% 1.735 1,30% 96.892 29,64% 28,84% N 113.384 28,84% 61.152 514 0,34% 66,783 19,74% 20,58% 43.321 21.92% v 84.476 VI 103 0,06% 126.376 12,91% 197.961 14,42% 150.178 17,01% TOTAL 181.252 882.912 978.67 1.372.655 🖕 🖄 🎪 FADN 109.849 farms FADN 1.248 € 925.184 ha * *





CURRENT SITUATION

- data collection for accounting year 2011 conducted on 753 returning holdings
- data processing in place

implementation of the Twinning Light project: "Verification of EU conformity of the Croatian FADN" with purpose of strenghtening of existing FADN system in accordance with EU requirements (assessment, monitoring and enhancement)



EU conformity of the Croatian FADN

FUTURE CHALLENGES

- usage of RICA 1 and CIRCA systems
- full harmonization with EU requirements
- EU accession on 1 July 2013
- FADN representative sample based on FSS
- question of FADN regions/divisions
- transmission of the first FARM RETURN in 2014
- implementation of NEW FARM RETURN
- 🍨 data use



22 FADN in Macedonia

Alexander Musalevski



Institutions included in the Macedonian FADN

- Ministry for Agriculture, forestry and water economy;
- National committee for FADN;
- FADN Unit within Ministry for Agriculture, forestry and water economy (Liaison agency);
- Body for collecting of data National Extension Agency;
- State Statistical Office.

Ministry for Agriculture, forestry and water economy

- Single State Authority which have competence for establishing and implementation of Macedonian FADN and is the only user of the FADN data;
- Approves the Selection Plan;
- Approves the contract for collection of data;

National Committee for FADN

- Constituted by Government, proposed by Ministry for Agriculture, Forestry an Water Economy
- Gives opinion to the Minister concerning to collecting, processing and usage of the data
- Gives opinion for the Selection Plan
- Gives opinion for Report the Selection Plan.

National Committee for FADN

- National Committee has 10 members:
- · 2 members appointed from Minister,
- 2 members appointed from Minister of finance,
- 1 member from the Faculty of agriculture and food Institute for Agro economy,
- 1 member from FADN Unit,
- 1 member from SSO,
- 1 member from NEA,
- 1 member from cooperatives and farm associations,
- 1 member from economic chambers.

Liaison Agency – Unit for FADN

- Defines FADN Region,
- · Prepares SO coefficients,
- · Approves the Selection Plan,
- · Prepares report for realization of Selection Plan,
- · Verifies the data in the Farm Return.

Liaison Agency – Unit for FADN

- Prepares and publishes the data in publications,
- · Communiction and delivery of data to EC (Rica),
- Delivers the data to the other institutions,
- On request of Liaison Agency, National Committee, NEA and SSO are obliged to deliver all required information's and data.

Body for collection the data - NEA

- NEA have role of body for collecting of data,
- Make contracts with farmers which are included in FADN system,
- Helps on farmers for preparing of data,
- · Collects data and insert the data into the software,
- · Send the data to the Liaison Agency.

State Statistical Office

- SSO has role in section of farms (preparing of the Selection Plan) based on data from Agriculture Census,
- On request on Liaison Agency prepares Selection Plan,
- Liaison Agency and SSO are responsible for establishing typology of farms.

Collecting of data

- Data from farm are collected by advisors in NEA;
- 93 advisors are collecting data from 600 farms according to Selection Plan for 2012;
- 6 visits per year.

Problems, solutions and status of the problems in the FADN system in the R. Macedonia

- · Farmer are afraid to provide data for FADN system;
- <u>MAWFE will promote the FADN system among farmers</u>, <u>farmers union and the economic chambers (on going)</u>;
- Lack of financial recourses for data collectors;
- <u>Financing of the system to be in the MAFWE budget (on going);</u>
- Lack of IT specialist in the FADN Unit;
- <u>Contract with IT company which will satisfy the needs of</u> the FADN system (finished) and IT specialist to be <u>employed in the Unit (future action);</u>

Problems, solutions and status of the problems in the FADN system in the R. Macedonia

- Procedures of controlling the data collection by FADN Unit in order to improve the quality of the data;
- <u>It is recommended to control at least 5% of advisors</u> <u>every year (on going);</u>
- Introducing the data management (quality control, calculations and reporting);
- In the next phase it is planed to introduce data management in the system (future action);

Problems, solutions and status of the problems in the FADN system in the R. Macedonia

- Payment of the data should be made upon error free electronic files and upon a list of signed farm reports.
- <u>Contract with NEA (on going);</u>
- FADN data set must be error-free in the Rica 1 control system;
- <u>We have Rica 1 training password system and we</u> are testing the 2011 data set (on going);

23 Changes in the EU farm return

Piotr Bajek and Eva Nagy



New FADN Farm Return regulation

Commission Implementing Regulation (EU) No 385/2012 of 30 April 2012 on the farm return to be used for determining the incomes of agricultural holdings and analysing the business operation of such holdings

(OJ L 127, 15.5.2012, p. 1-55)

Tergese Commun We dem ear Ver dem ear

Contents of the presentation

- Main changes in comparison with the current farm return regulation
- Elements which will be included in the manual/instructions to the farm return regulation
- · Important technical changes



Table A – General information of the holding

- PDO/PGI (voluntary)
- Approximate location of farm rounded to nearest 5' latitude and longitude
- In practice 15' will apply when only 1 farm in a 5'x5' rectangle. Rectangle 5'x5' is about 9.2x5.2 km (15'x15' is about 28x16 km). This data is NEVER disclosed and will be used only for grouping farms. Some MS have derogation to the rules if confidentiality could be compromised.
- Irrigation system

 surface / sprinkler / drip / other / not applicable (when no irrigation on the farm)

20th PACIOLI workshop

Table B – Type of UAA

Kitchen gardens in the UAA: <u>only</u> the area – no further information wanted



Table C - Labour

- Share of OGA labour in total work: share of work for Other Gainful Activities directly related to the holding (OGA) in % of annual work units (an estimate)
- Gender
- Agricultural training of the manager



Table D (ex-G) – Assets

- Use of the most applicable valuation methods (fair value, historical cost, book value)
- More details for current assets (cash, receivables) and intangible assets (tradable, non-tradable)
- Application of International Accounting Standards (IAS) and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) where needed
- If some data are not available a proxy would be used and communicated



Table F (ex-H) - Debts

- Instead of recording purpose, focus on the source of debt:
 - commercial standard,
 - commercial special,
 - family/private loans,
 - other liabilities,
 - payables.
- Family/private debt could also be reported in "other liabilities".

Table G (ex-l) - VAT

20th PACIOLI workshop

- Simplified
 - only two VAT systems
 - VAT balances for investment/non-investment reported for one system only



Table H (ex-F) - Inputs

- · Veterinary costs separated
- Quantity of N, P2O5 and K2O in used mineral fertilisers
- · Value of bought manure
- Specific costs for OGA: for processing crop products, milk of cows, buffalos, ewes, goats, meat and other

20th PACIOLI workshop

S.A.

11



Table J (ex- D, E, N) - Livestock

- · Destination of sales:
 - for slaughtering,
 - for further rearing or breeding,
 - unknown destination.
- Weight of animals sold with a destination of slaughtering : collected at "regional" level and transmitted as a complementary file.

Auch

Table K (ex-K) - Animal products and services

- New variables:
 - buffalo's cows' milk,
 - manure (value of sales only),
 - quantities of opening, closing, sales, farmhouse consumption, farm use.



Table L (ex-K) - Other Gainful Activities (OGA)

New item: production of renewable energy

The farm products used for further processing

- In the Tables for production (Crops, Animal and Animal products) : recorded under farm use
- In the Table for costs: in the relevant categories of costs for OGA.

The purchases of agricultural product or agricultural processed products:

 In the Table for costs: in the relevant categories of costs for OGA.

20th PACIOLI workshop

16

Table M (ex-J, M) - Subsidies

- Distinguish between sources of financing:
 - EU,
 - co-financed,
 - national.
- Cooperation with the paying agency should be a convenient solution

20th PACIOLI workshop

Important technical changes ...

- A decimal point is now accepted in all data: financial, average number, labour units, areas, etc.
- The format of the farm return is completely variable: there are no more fixed positions to respect. This is a huge change in the transmission of data.
- The formats used until now will not be possible anymore: no more delimited txt, no more binary fixed length.

Annual Commission Annual Commission Annual Commission		
	20th PACIOL I workshop	18

... Important technical changes

- XML is already accepted by and used extensively in RICA and today is the preferred format for data exchanges in most systems (e.g. Eurostat)
- The new XML format is not yet finalized but the MS have to be prepared for the collection and transmission of their data with this technique
 - a FADN committee working group has been created to help coordinate these IT issues (first meeting on 9 October 2012).



Starting from the accounting year 2014

- Reasons for 2014
 - 2014 starts with the new CAP,
 - discussions to agree changes long,
 - time needed to prepare the new system.
- 2014 data to be delivered to the EU FADN by the end of 2015 and published for all EU in 2016
- Quantity of N, P2O5 and K2O in used mineral fertilisers – a transition period till accounting year 2017 possible

24 Cost and profitability analysis for wheat, barley and maize

Stijn Jourquin



Introduction: cereals in Flanders

- · 26 000 farmers, 620 000 ha agricultural land
 - 45% sand
 - 34% sandy silt
 - 11% clay
 - 10% silt
- Cereals:
 - 14 000 farmers
 - 149 000 ha or 24% agricultural land
 - 48% wheat, 40% grain maize, 8% barley
 - Cultivated on the different soil types

	з В	⁷ Lavitsong 次言
Me	ethodology	
1	Taxes, social security and subsidies not included All costs: operating costs and other farm costs	
•	Rentability indicator: • family labour income (FLI) • =revenue - all costs except (unpaid) familiy labour costs	
•	Variation indicator: • mean of 50% highest – mean of 50% lowest	
•	Outliers removed • Outlier = outside the range <mean *="" +-="" 4="" standarddevia<br="">• Variables: family labour income (euro/ha) and yield (tor</mean>	ation> 1/ha)

4

🖉 Landboorg 🕉 🗄

Mean results 2006-2010 (euro/ha)

	Wheat	Grain maize	Barley
Yald (ton/ha)	6,3	11,5	7,6
Revenue"	1.639	1.365	1.330
Srain Sales	1.222	1.299	1.047
Other (Straw, Inventory difference)	217	76	262
Operating costs"	716	***	609
leede	90	154	
Fertilizers	120	85	114
Drop protection	210	103	155
Contract labour	213	254	174
Other operational costs	66	70	63
Sross margin ^{ers}	923	699	721
Other farm costs"	636	612	589
Rant pald	167	156	140
Det own land	50	62	4
Kachineny upkeep	61	62	5
Depreciations	199	175	163
Cost of own capital	99	84	94
2ther	64	71	65
Total cost (family labour costs excluded)***	1.352	1.279	1.199
Family labour income (FL1)"**	297	97	122
Family labour costs*	204	275	272
Net economic margin	-17	-299	-241
Difference FLI S0% farms highest and S0% farms lowest FLI	722	695	717

5

🖌 landboort 🖄

Methodology: Lineair Regression Model

- · What explains the variation in rentability (FLI)?
- Independent variables:
 - Year: 2006, 2007, 2008, 2009, 2010
 - Agricultural area used: 0-20, 20-40, 40-60, 60-80, >80ha
 - Soil type: clay, silt, sandy silt and sand
 - · Type of farm: specialized in arable farming or not
 - Use of own products (grain or straw): yes or no
 - Age/succession farmer: <45 year, >45 year + successor, rest
 - Agricultural education farmer: yes or no

6

🖌 lavitsson 🔊

Lineair regression results

- Percentage of variation explained:
 - Wheat: 53%
 - Grain maize: 43%
 - Barley: 52%
- Year: significant differences because of pricevolatility
 Good years 2007 and 2010 ⇔ 2006, 2008 and 2009
- Agricultural area used: bigger farms perform better
- Soil type: significant differences for wheat and barley
 Better yield on clay and silt

	7 de la tradissert 究言
Lin	eair regression results
1	Type of farm: not-specialized farmers + users of straw and grain for own cattle perform better • The `other farm costs' are lower
1	Wheat growers using own grain for seed perform better.The operating costs are lower
•	Young farmers obtain higher yields for wheat and barley
•	Agricultural education: not significant

8

🖉 larvitssary 🖄 🗄

25 Economic analysis with Turkish FADN data

Murat Aslan







TR-HOL Comparison

- First the results of both Turkish and Dutch arable farms are looked at. The goal is selecting a group of similar Dutch and Turkish farms.
- The selection criteria are set on: total area bigger than 20 hectare and % cereals in total area > 40%
- The weighting factors are calculated with statistical matching (program Stars). Only the Turkish farms who have the most similarities with the selected Dutch farms are getting a weighting factor.



TR-HOL Comparison

Selecte	d Turkis	n farms		
Number	Corcels_he	Cereals_Sha re_area	UAA_he	Sherc_totel_output
141	10	40	25	
312	45	41	109	=
177	44	41	105	3
346	11	42	28	2
169	157	43	362	4
151	11	43	28	3
368	15	43	35	2
8	22	43	50	3
302	12	44	28	-
343	39	44	33	3
280	19	44	42	-
165	75	45	165	4
265	15	45	29	3
154	100	45	223	4
282	45	45	100	
178	202	46	440	=
323	20	48	43	3
182	28	47	80	4

TR-HOL Comparison

Farmstructure		
	Netherlands	Turkey selected farms
Number of farms	53	75
Fotal utilised area (ha)	85,1	84,6
% cereals in total area	53,8	53,7
% output cereals in total output	16,9	40,5
% oilseeds in total area	<u>_</u>	24
% potatoes in total area	20	0
% sugarbeet in total area	12	1

REPUBLIC OF TURKEY MINISTRY OF FOCO AGRECUTURE AND DUVISTOCK

TR-HOL Comparison

Holland Turkey

11

12

	Standard results		
Code	Name	euro	euro
SE430	Farm Net Income / FWU	59.210	20.41:
SE270	Total inputs euro	249.919	80.945
SE131	Total output euro	297.784	122.70
SE605	Total subsidies excluding on investments	35.009	10.18
SE420	Farm Net Income	77.776	47.52
SE020	Paidlabour AWU	0,2	2,-
SE015	Unpaid labour FWU	1,3	2,
SE340	Machinery & building costs (upkeep e.o.)	21.254	4.07
SE360	Deprediation	45.786	7.97
SE455	Machinery euro	203.713	47.49
SE436	Total assets	3.325.769	766.12
SE485	Total liabilities	550.371	19.34



TR-HOL Comparison

Calculated ratios		
	Netherlands	Turkey selected farms
Income / FWU as percentage of total costs	4	4
Subsidies / (total output + subsidie)	11	8
(total output + subsidies) / total input	133	164
Subsidies / Farm net income	45	21
Family labour AWU/ total labour	0,9	0,5

13

Support structure of FADN farms in Turkey Aim:

> Reviewing the impact of subsidies in Turkish Agriculture.

After checking consistency of data and removing outliers, data of 506 farms were used in the statistical analysis.

REPUBLIC MENASTRY OF FO AND UM	OF TURKEY COD AGRICULTURE VESTOCX	Su
1.	_	N

upport structure of FADN farms in Turkey

Farm Type	Number of observations (r=506)	Total Utilized Agricultural Area (SE025)	Total Output (SE131)	Total Subsidies (SE805)	Subsidies per ha	Subsidies per AWU
	n	ha	n.	n	TLha	TL/AWU
Arable	248	45.0	194,768	21,940	488	5,928
Horticulture	3	32.9	125,570	1,332	41	400
Permanent crops	128	21.7	118,920	22,558	1,041	3,118
Grazing livestock	47	23.6	120,939	12,128	514	3,724
Mixed crop	43	40.0	144,569	15,735	394	4,724
Other mixed	37	28.9	106,871	13,478	488	3,768
Average		35.4	157,619	21,891	618	4,710

16



гапптуре		Share of subsidies in				
	farm income (SE420)	output (SE131)	GVA (SE410)			
	%	%	%			
Arable	24.9	10.7	19.7			
Horticulture	2.3	0.8	1.6			
Permanent crops	38.1	24.7	25.9			
Grazing livestock	21.0	29.8	16.2			
Mixed crop	21.7	9.4	16.2			
Other mixed	68.6	13.2	18.3			
Average	30.7	16.0	20.4			

176



Microsim Application in Turkish FADN

CASE STUDY: INTRODUCTION SAPS IN TURKEY WITH A FLAT RATE OF 182 EURO/HA AND TOP UP OF SUBSIDIES ON LIVESTOCK AND ENVIRONMENT

- The model is based on farm level FADN data in Turkey, and each farm is modeled individually.
- Therefore it is ready to take various market situations, currency rates, and subsidy scenarios, including specific subsidies based on quotas, area, animal head count etc.



Following policy issue is simulated:

Introduction of Single Area Payment System (SAPS) in Turkey with a flat rate (fixed premium per hectare) and additional top up of subsidies on livestock and environment.

With the model the effects are simulated on the influence on family farm income for the years 2011 - 2013.

Data from Turkish FADN on accounting year 2010. In this year 577 farms are included

> Implementing available price index for some input and output

>€182/Hectare in 2013

Microsim Application in Turkish FADN

- In the model the firm will receive the maximum payment of 182 EUR/Ha in 2013. Due to the phasing in the flat rate, the subsidy in the model is calculated in 2011 on 80%, 2012 on 90% and in 2013 on 100% of the amount of 182 EUR/Ha.
- We used an exchange rate (EUR/TL) of 2,3134 (exchange rate of 3 may 2012). So SAPS is 421 TL/Ha in 2013.
- Besides the introduction of SAPS we made, in consultation with the FADN-team, the assumption that the following subsidies are maintained for the period 2011-2013 at the amount the farmers received in 2010.

Total subsidies on livestock
Subsidies dairying
Subsidies other cattle
Subsidies sheep and goat
Other livestock subsidies
Environmental subsidies
LFA subsidies
Rural development subsidies

Impact Assessment of new subsidy scheme (TL)

		Turkey is a new EU Member State			State
INCOME		2010	2011	2012	2013
Total output	SE131	171.364	184.551	192.761	204.529
Total intermediate consumption	SE275	70.648	75.029	78.787	83.090
Gross farm income	SE410	109.117	117.854	123.768	132.697
Farm net value added	SE415	102.873	111.235	117.024	125.828
Total external factors	SE365	23.211	24.706	25.907	27.401
Family farm income	SE420	80.134	87.001	91.590	98.900
Total income: %19					

Net margin: %23



26 Spouse's involvement - effects on net income and family income

Anna Milford and Torbjorn Haukas

Abstract

Family farming has dominated the Norwegian agriculture through decades. The constitution from 1814 state clearly the allodial right acquired by inheritance for the oldest boy in the family for farms above a certain size and farms been in the family for at least twenty years. This law was changed in 1975, and now the oldest child, boy or girl, has the same allodial right to the farm.

In spite of the intensions of this law, most of the farms are still owned by men (85 per cent), and among the participants in the Norwegian FADN only 9 per cent are women (2010). The difference in gender distribution between the farmer and the owner is caused by the requirement in the Norwegian FADN to use the manager of the farm as the main farmer. This is historically based on most working hours in the production and management of the farm. In the annual survey registration of labor input is important. Many of the performance measurements are connected to results measured by labor input, like earning capacity per hour and return on labor and per working year. The labor input is registered for farmer, spouse, children, paid and unpaid labor. The farmer's gender is registered in the database and in the survey we assume that the spouse has opposite sex.

The role of the spouse has changed during the last decades. Some decades ago the farmer and the spouse used all their labor on the farm, and often other family members were involved in the farm work. The farm was the live project for the family, and the income from farming kept the whole family alive. The Norwegian farms are small compared to farming in the rest of Western Europe. Modern technology and more efficient ways of farming combined with fewer and bigger holdings have led to less need for labor on the farms. The distant family labor like uncles and aunts and other unpaid labor were the first people to leave the farm. Then the spouses started to work outside the farm in addition to farming, and during the last years also the farmer has some work outside the farm. The development is caused by many factors, but less profitability in farming compared to other sectors and new technology are the main courses in addition to the need for a social life outside the farm.

In this project we have studied the development of the spouse's participation in farm work during the last twenty years and we have tried to investigate if there is any connection between spouse's involvement and farm net income and family net income.

26.1 Introduction

The pilot project «The importance of partner involvement in farming» is a collaboration project among KUN (Centre for gender equality), Bygdeforsk (Centre for Rural Research, Norway) and NILF (Norwegian Agricultural Economics Research Institute). The aim of the project is to get knowledge on how involvement of spouses in farming influences economy, well-being for the whole family and recruitment for the farms. The project has an economic and a social dimension. NILF's part of the project was to study the economic dimension and the development over time.

Spouse involvement in farming has to be defined. There are many ways to be involved in farming, like participation in farm work, take part in decision making and support the farmer in different ways. It can be to involve the children in the farm work, take part in the management of the farm or support the farmer in administration. The different ways of involvement of the spouses are taken care of by the three partici-
pants in the project. NILFs contribution is the analysis of quantitative data of spouse's participation in farm work and farm economy.

26.2 Data Source and Methodology

NILFs part of the project has used FADN data from 1991 to 2010. The FADN data contain a lot of information on working hours on the farm. The participants in the annual survey register all their working hours weekly classified on person and activity. The different persons in this case are farmer, spouse, children, paid labor and unpaid labor outside the nuclear family.

The activities are classified in five different parts, agriculture, forestry, other gainful activities, other businesses outside the farm and employed work. The farmers also register own work on investments on the farm.

We have used the FADN data to make visible the development of working hours of the farmers and the spouses during the last twenty years. The average labor input is used to make the development visible.

The development of working hours related to region, farm size and production is also presented.

Simple regression analysis is used to study if there are any correlations between the spouse and the farmer's labor input and farm net income and family net income.

The farms without spouse are excluded from the project. About ten per cent of the farmers are excluded for that reason.

26.3 Results

26.3.1 Working hours farmer and spouse - development from 1991 to 2010





The average working hours for the farmer in agriculture from 1991 to 2010 has been quite stable through the period. The level is between 1800 and 1900 the whole period but there has been a decline the last decade with an exception for the last year.



The figure shows an evident decline of spouse's working hours in agriculture during the period. The decline has been smooth the whole period from 607 working hours in 1991 to 412 working hours in 2010.

Figure 3 Working hours spouse relative to spouse in per cent



Figure 3 shows the relative labor input of the spouse to the farmer during the period. The contribution of the spouse has declined from one third in 1991 to one fifth in 2010.



Figure 4 Working hours in agriculture of the spouse when the farmer is man or the farmer is a woman

Figure 4 shows an interesting difference of working hours in agriculture when the farmer is a man and when she is a woman. In the FADN data 91 per cent of the farmers are men (2010). In cases the farmer is a woman, the average level of working hours of the spouse is much higher than the case where the farmer is a man. The difference is significant for the whole period and has been increasing the last years. The data set cannot explain the difference, but we assume the finding is caused by the distribution of work in the family where the woman has the main responsibility of house work.





Both spouse and farmer have increased their working hours in employed work outside the farm during the period. The increase is largest for the spouse who has nearly doubled working hours from 526 in 1991 to 1026 hours in 2010. Employed work for the farmer has increased from 258 hours in 1991 to 454 hours in 2010.



Combining the number of hours worked for both farmer and spouse in all activities, we see that both have had an increase in total hours worked from 1991 to 2009. The figure shows that while the curve for the farmer has leveled off after year 2000 to approximately 2300 hours annually, the curve for the spouse is still on the rise.

The analysis of trends over time shows that there have been major changes in the partner's involvement in the farm work from 1991 to 2009. Both the farmer and the spouse have reduced their effort on the farm and increased the number of hours spent on employed work, but it's for the spouse we see the most significant developments. This is probably related to that in the same period there has been an increase in the profitability of employed work compared to farming.

Total working hours for both spouse and spouse have increased from 1991 to 2010.



26.4 Present situation

Figure 6 Spouse's working hours relative to farmer in different productions in per cent

We have looked into the present situation to see if there are any differences in the spouse's involvement according to age, production, region and farm size. Data from 2010 is used to illustrate the present situation. Working hours for the spouse is highest for vegetables and mixed productions and lowest for grain production. Labor input on grain farms is generally low with about 850 hours on average for all participants.

There were no differences in spouse's working hours related to age. We expected to find higher involvement among the oldest spouses, but the level was the same for all age groups.

We did not find any relationship between the spouse's working hours in agriculture and farm size. The farms were grouped by size of farm land (hectares), and the participation of the spouses in farm work was about the same in all groups. On the other hand working hours for the farmer were correlated to the farm size.

In Norway the country is divided into 8 regions mainly based on natural conditions for producing farm products. Grain production is located in the best climatic zones in the lowlands. Dairy farms are located in the grassland area all over the country. The analysis of the regions show results related to productions with most working hours for the spouse in regions with livestock farming and fewest working hours in regions dominated by grain production.

26.5 Effects on farm net income and family net income related to working hours of the spouse and the farmer

An important aim for this project was to study the effect on farm net income and family net income in relation to labor input from the spouse and the farmer.



Figure 7 Farm net income and working hours in agriculture farmer

The figure shows a clear positive correlation between the number of hours spent by the farmer and farm net income.



Figure 8 Farm net income and working hours in agriculture spouse

The correlation between the number of hours spent by the spouse on the farm and farm net income is less clear for the spouse, although the custom curve shows a slight positive trend.



Figure 9 Family net income and workings hours in agriculture farmer

If we look at the correlation between the number of hours worked on the farm and family net income, and total income both on and off the farm, the correlation was slightly negative. This means that the more hours spent on the farm, the lower the family net income is. This relationship is strongest for the partner.

This negative correlation can be explained by the difference in profitability in different sectors. The profitability outside the farm is much higher than for agriculture.



The disadvantage of such a bitmap is that important factors such as the farm size and location are not controlled for. A regression analysis permits such control. These are statistical methods that estimate correlations between variables, and by means of these methods it is possible to say how the labor input affects economic profit, independent of other factors.

We start with a regression made of data collected in 2010 for the following model:

Farm net income = β + pj + $\beta_1 \beta_2$ bj + ij + $\beta_3 \beta_4 A$ + γD + δR + ϵ

The dependent variable is farm net income, and we will see how this is affected by pj which are spouse's labor input on the farm, bj is the farmer's working hours on the farm, ij is the number of hours of paid labor on the farm, A is area, D are dummy variables for pure productions measured against mixed productions, R is regional dummy, ε is the error term.

The results of the regression show that both the spouse, the farmer and paid labor has a positive, significant effect on farm net income. According to the analysis an hour of work from the spouse gives an increase in farm net income of 45,66 NOK, for the farmer this is 109,92 NOK while for paid labor it is 24,23 NOK. The low value of paid labor is because this implies salaries, which reduce income.

OLS regressions look only at 2010. If we instead use the entire data set back to 1991, we get a larger selection. If we use fixed effects regression, we also control for characteristics that most likely will not change over time. Examples are geographical and climatic conditions at the farm or farmer's level of education, work, etc. In such an analysis, we adjust the money amounts for inflation by using the consumer price index.

The results of this regression shows that the results are similar to those for 2010, but the difference in the effect of the spouse and the farmer's labor input is less: A working hour from spouse provides increased income of 37,90 NOK, while the farmer's labor input income increases by 47,70 NOK.

We repeat a similar analysis to see which factors affect family net income of farms in Norway, here defined on the total income from all sources minus paid interests. We use the same model as before, but add two variables: pl spouse's working hours employed work and bl for farmer's working hours in employed work.

Family net income = β + β [] _1 pj + β _2 bj + ij + β _3 β _4 pl + β _5 bl + β _6 A + γ D + δ R + ϵ

The results of OLS for 2010 show that neither the spouse's nor the farmer's working hours on the farm has any significant effect on family net income, while the paid labor has a positive effect. However,

the analysis shows that the spouse's employed work increases income of 148 NOK, the equivalent of farmer is 95 NOK.

Then we conduct the same regression with the entire panel and fixed effects. The results show that both spouse's and farmer's working hours on the farm leads to reduced family net income, respectively, 0,20 and 21,70 NOK, but the result is not significant for the spouse. This result is somewhat surprising, since we have controlled for income from employed work. But the reason may be reverse causality, that in times of recession and low wages, the farmers spend more time on the farm. For paid labor the is effect positive and 51,30 NOK respectively. Reversed causality may be the cause, meaning that farms with high family net income use more paid labor. As expected employed work has a positive effect on family net income, this amounts to 80,70 NOK for the spouse and 71,80 for the farmer.

Regression analysis shows that spouses working hours on the farm has a positive effect on farm net income, while the effect is non-significant or negative on the family net income, even when controlling for wages.

26.6 Conclusion

Through the analysis of FADN data, we have made the following findings:

- Spouses participate with most working hours in mixed farms, vegetable farms and livestock farms, fewest hours in grain production.
- Working hours increase with farm size for the farmer, this does not apply for the spouse.
- There are small regional differences in the spouses' involvement in farm work
- Female farmers have more participation of spouse than male.
- Working hours of farmer and spouse in agriculture has declined over time, most for spouse.
- The difference in profitability of employed work and farming has more than quadrupled since 1991.
- Number of working hours in employed work has increased over time, most for the spouse.
- Both farmer and spouse have more working hours in total in 2010 than in 1991, the largest increase for the spouse.
- Spouse's involvement in farming is positive for farm net income, but has no detectable effect on family net income

In our study we only looked at the direct economic impact of the spouse's involvement in agriculture as measured by the number of working hours and farm net income or family net income. Within the framework of this project it has only been room for relatively simple analysis, while a more thorough treatment of the material might leave some insight. For example, you could put various groups against each other, compare with farms without a spouse, use other financial measures such as output per hour worked.

26.7 References

Fostervold, M. (ed.), 2011. *Jo mere vi er sammen, jo rikere vi blir? Betydningen av partners involvering i gårdsdrift*. <u>http://www.kun.nl.no/filer/Sluttrapport%20partners%20involvering.pdf</u>

NILF Account statistics in agriculture and farm forestry 2010. 2011. Norwegian Agricultural Economics Research Institute, Oslo.

27 Exploring agricultural data using self-organizing maps

A Mika Sulkuva

27.1 Introduction

Profitability of farm enterprises is very important, because it makes it possible for the farms to stay in the business in the long run and thus, be a part of stable food supply chain. For example, farm profitability in Finland has been fluctuating rather vigorously during the recent years [1]. This may complicate the farmers' planning of the future.

In this paper, the use of self-organizing map (SOM) is presented for analyzing financial data of agricultural and horticultural enterprises. The data is collected from a sample of bookkeeping farms. This data is a source of many figures characterizing Finnish agriculture in the EconomyDoctor service of Agri- food Research Finland [2]. The goal of the SOM-based approach is to discover interesting interrelations between financial variables in the data.

The SOM has been successfully used in financial analysis, e.g., benchmarking of industrial companies [3]. A SOM-analysis of the relationships within book- keeping farm data will be published at the end of 2012 [4]. The data has been analyzed with the aim of understanding input substitution and technological development of farms [5] and finding changes in productivity [6, 7]. In addition, neural networks have been used in predicting the sufficiency of internal financing of farms [8].

The organization of the rest of the paper is as follows: in the next section we present the data, in Section 3 the SOM and related parameters are explained, the results are shown in Section 4, and conclusions drawn in Section 5.

27.2 Profitability bookkeeping data

Annual profitability figures for Finnish agricultural and horticultural enterprises showing the average results of over 60 000 enterprises are calculated from the profitability bookkeeping organized by MTT Agrifood Research Finland. Profitability of Finnish farms is monitored using a sample of approximately 1 000 farms yearly. Data from year 2010 is used in this study. In 2010 there were 940 bookkeeping farms. The original aim has been to represent the 40 000 largest enterprises of Finland. Therefore, the sample still contains only a few small farms.

The form of bookkeeping data is similar to the data in the Farm Accountancy Data Network (FADN) [9]. There are thousands of variables in the bookkeeping data bank. An expert selected the variables used in this study. The aim was to select variables that have potential of providing a diverse picture of the economic performance - especially solvency and profitability - of farm enterprises.

In this example, the following variables are used to characterize each book-keeping farm i: economic size e_i , utilized arable area a_i , livestock units, profitability ratio, and debt-%. Wage cost of own labor in 2010 is calculated using hourly wage claim of 14 e. The interest cost on equity is calculated on the basis of a farmwise interest rate, which is the sum of risk-free interest rate and a farm-wise risk premium. When the compensations of labor input and own capital are deducted from entrepreneurial income, we obtain the entrepreneurial profit. The profitability ratio is defined as E/(w + I), where E is the entrepreneurial income and W and I are the wage and interest claims, respectively [10]. When the profitability ratio is 1, all production costs have been covered and the en- trepreneur's profit is zero [2]. Areas are reported in ha in the data and the currency unit is e. Livestock units are defined as grazing equivalents of dairy cows, i.e., small animals count for less than one livestock unit. See [11, 2, 8] for more information on calculation of financial variables.

27.3 Self-organizing map

The self-organizing map (SOM) [12] is a useful tool in exploratory data analysis. It projects multidimensional data into a low-dimensional grid, which is easy to visualize. The SOM has been used successfully in numerous applications [13, 14].

The SOM consists of a regular, usually two-dimensional, grid of map units. Each unit i on the twodimensional grid also has a d-dimensional prototype vector m_i , where d is the dimension of the observations x_j , j = 1, ..., n. Thus, the SOM defines a nonlinear projection from the d-dimensional data space to the two-dimensional grid. The SOM is trained to represent the original data by adapting its prototype vectors according to the distribution of the data set. The observations are mapped to map units with the closest prototype vector (the best-matching unit). Thus, in addition to nonlinear projection, the SOM also performs vector quantization. This representation can be used for visualization, clustering, and exploration of data [12].

Before training, the number of map units and the structure of the grid in the SOM are defined. The dimension of the prototype vectors is determined by the dimension of the data set. After initializing the map randomly or along the two greatest eigenvectors of the data, the training proceeds iteratively. At each training step t an observation x_j is first mapped to a map unit by looking for the best-matching unit c_j using a Euclidean distance measure between the observation and the set of map units.

$$c_j = \arg \min \|x_j - m_i(t)\|$$
(1)

Second, the prototype vectors are adapted to better represent the distribution of the data

$$m_{i}(t + 1) = m_{i}(t) + \alpha(t)h_{c_{j},i}(t)[x_{j} - m_{i}(t)], \qquad (2)$$

where $\alpha(t)$ is a learning-rate factor and $h_{c_j,i}(t)$ is the neighborhood function. It is often a Gaussian function - also in this study

$$h_{c_{j},i}(t) = \exp\left(\frac{\|r_{c_{i}} - \hat{r}_{i}\|}{2\sigma^{2}(t)}\right),$$
(3)

where r_i is the location of the map unit i on the grid and $\sigma(t)$ corresponds to the width of the Gaussian function. Both $\alpha(t)$ and $\sigma(t)$ decrease during training. The original sequential training algorithm adapts the prototype vectors after each observation, whereas the batch training algorithm adapts the prototype vectors after all the data have been gone through [12].

The map units are connected to neighboring units on the grid by the neigh-borhood function. Therefore, the mapping from the original data space to the two-dimensional grid tends to preserve topological relationships. This means that observations close to each other in the data space tend to map to the same or close-by map units in the grid. Without the neighborhood function the SOM algorithm reduces to k-means clustering algorithm [12].

Conceptually, the SOM and its map units form an elastic net in the data space. This makes visualization of the grid useful in exploring the relationships of variables and the possible cluster structure of the data. The map can be visualized using component planes, each of which shows the values of one of the original d variables as colors on the grid. In addition, the map can be visualized with the unified distance matrix (U-matrix) [15], which shows the within-unit distances and distances between neighboring units on the grid.

Training and analyzing the SOM was performed in this study with the SOM Toolbox for Matlab [16]. Before training, the number of map units and the structure of the grid in the SOM are defined. The number of map units was chosen based on the default setting of SOM Toolbox, i.e., 5 sqrt (N). We used hexagonal grid sheet structure and the default ratio of the side lengths: $sqrt(\lambda_1/\lambda_2)$ where λ_1 and λ_2 are the two largest eigenvalues of the autocorrelation matrix.

The observations were normalized linearly before training, e.g., so that the mean of each variable is 0 and the variance is 1. The method used to normalize the data defines the distance between multidimensional vectors. For example, how should a change in debt percentage be related to a change in utilized area measured in hectares. Normalizing all the variances to unity solves this problem by defining that changes in different variables are equal if they are in equal proportion to their standard deviations. As a result, all variables have equal weights in this sense.

The map can be visualized using component planes, each of which shows the values of one of the original variables as colors on the grid. In addition, the map can be visualized with the unified distance matrix (U-matrix) [15], which shows the within-unit distances and distances between neighboring units on the grid.

27.4 Results

An economic map of the bookkeeping farms was produced with the SOM. The U-matrix and component planes of the SOM are show in Figure 1. The U- matrix suggests that there may be cluster structure in the data, but the possible cluster boundaries are not very sharp. However, farms characterized by extreme conditions can be found separated from other farms in both top and bottom left corners of the map as well as in the middle of the left border.

Different economic types of farms can easily be spotted using the map. The top left corner corresponds to the largest farms with the highest utilized arable areas, and the most livestock. The profitability of these farms is average, mainly below 1. The debt-% of these farms is rather low.

The top right corner of the SOM represents large farms with little utilized arable area and few livestock units. Similar to the previous group of farms, the profitability is average and debt-% low.

The farms with the highest utilized arable areas are in two locations in the top part of the map. High utilized arable area has no clear connection to the other variables studied in this paper. In the mid-left part of the map there are economically small farms with aver- age utilized area and small amount of livestock. These farms are not profitable, since the profitability ratio is typically

negative. The debt-% of these farms is the highest. The bottom left corner of the SOM also has low-profitability farms. They are small farms in the sense of economic size, utilized arable area, and livestock units. They have the rather low debt-

sense of economic size, utilized arable area, and livestock units. They have the rather low debtpercentages. The other farms falling between the areas of the SOM described above have intermediate proper-

ties with respect to the measured variables. Thus, the distributions of the five variables and interconnections between them can be easily seen in the figure.

27.5 Conclusions

Using self-organizing map makes it possible to analyze effectively interconnections between the variables characterizing the performance of agricultural en-terprises. In the example case of Finland, different kinds of farming could be easily distinguished on the map.

We studied four groups of farms with different profiles of size of operation, profitability, and debt. Consequently, we came up with the following hypotheses concerning financial status of Finnish farm enterprises. 1. Large economic size does not necessarily result in high profitability. 2. Farms with the highest debt- % have very low profitability. 3. Economically small farms with little utilized arable area and few livestock units also have very low profitability. 4. High profitability is not connected to extreme values in economic size, utilized arable area, livestock units, or debt-%. Analysis of the hypotheses above - as, e.g., in [17], cluster structure in the data, and temporal behavior of farm profitability are left as subjects for future research.

Figure 1 U-matrix and component planes of the SOM trained with farm book- keeping data U-matrix ⁵ x 10 economic size





utilized arable area



27.6 References

[1] Rantala, O. and J. Tauriainen, 2011. 'Development of results and profitability of agriculture and horticulture.' In: J. Niemi and J. Ahlstedt (Editors), Finnish agriculture and rural industries 2011, volume 111a of Publications, Chapter 4.1, pages 52 - 56. MTT Economic Research, Agrifood Research Finland.

- [2] MTT EconomyDoctor. June 2012. http://www.mtt.fi/economydoctor.
- [3] Eklund, T., December 2004. *The Self-Organizing Map in Financial Benchmarking*. D.Sc. thesis, Abo Akademi University, Turku, Finland. .
- [4] Sulkava, M., M. Yli-Heikkilä and A. Latukka, December 2012. 'Analysis of farm profitability and weighted upscaling system using self-organizing map.' In: *Proceedings of the 9th Workshop on Self-Organizing Maps (WSOM 2012), Advances in Intelligent Systems and Computing.* Santiago, Chile, 2012. Springer. Accepted for publication.
- [5] Ryhanen, M., 1994. 'Input substitution and technological development on Finnish dairy farms for 1965 - 1991: Empirical application on bookkeeping dairy farms.' In: Agricultural Science in Finland 3(6), pp. 525 - 601.
- [6] Myyra, S. P. Pihamaa and Timo Sipilainen, 2009. 'Productivity growth on Finnish grain farms from 1976 - 2006: a parametric approach.' In: *Agricultural and Food Science* 18 (3-4), pp. 283-301, 2009.
- [7] Kuosmanen, T. and T. Sipilainen, 2009. 'Exact decomposition of the Fisher ideal total factor productivity index.' In: *Journal of Productivity Analysis* 31(3), pp. 137-150.
- [8] Arto Latukka. Maatalousyritysten tulorahoituksen riittävyyden ennustami- nen neuroverkkomenetelmällä - Summary: *Predicting Financial Distress of Farms using Neural Network Application.* Lic.Sc. thesis, University of Helsinki, Department of Economics and Management No. 22, Production Economics and Farm Management, Helsinki, Finland, December 1998. In Finnish.
- [9] Farm accounting data network. June 2012. http://ec.europa.eu/agriculture/ rica/index.cfm.
- [10] Rantala, O. and J. Tauriainen, 2012. 'Development of results and profitability of agriculture and horticulture.' In: Jyrki Niemi and Jaana Ahlstedt, editors, *Finnish Agriculture and Rural Industries 2012, volume 112a of Publications, Chapter 4.1.* MTT Economic Research, Agrifood Research Finland. In press.
- [11] Community Committee for the Farm Accountancy Data Network. Typol- ogy handbook, October 2009. Technical Report RI/CC 1500 rev. 3, European Commission - Directorate-General for Agriculture and Rural Development, Brussels, Belgium.
- [12] Kohonen, T., third edition 2001. 'Self-Organizing Maps.' In: *Volume 30 of Springer Series in Information Sciences.* Springer, Berlin, Germany.
- [13] Kaski, S., J. Kangas and T. Kohonen, 1998. 'Bibliography of self- organizing map (SOM) papers: 1981-1997.' In: *Neural Computing Surveys* 1: 102-350.
- [14] Oja, M., S. Kaski and T. Kohonen, 2003. Bibliography of self- organizing map (SOM) papers: 1998 2001 addendum. In: *Neural Computing Surveys* 3:1-156, 2003.

- [15] A. Ultsch and H. P. Siemon, July 1990. 'Kohonen's self organizing feature maps for exploratory data analysis.' In: *Proceedings of International Neural Network Conference (INNC'90)*, pages 305 -308. Kluwer, Dordrecht, Netherlands..
- [16] Vesanto, J., J. Himberg, E. Alhoniemi and J. Parhankangas, 2000. SOM Toolbox for Matlab 5. Report A57, Helsinki University of Technology, Laboratory of Computer and Information Science, Espoo, Finland.
- [17] Sulkava, M., J. Tikka and J. Hollm en, January 2006. 'Sparse regression for analyzing the development of foliar nutrient concentrations in coniferous trees.' In: *Ecological Modelling* 191 (1), pp. 118-130.

28 Farm profile - system for improving management and farm database

Vesna Ilievska, Borje Dernulf, Zoran Bardakoski, Zhaneta Ilievska

28.1 Introduction

This paper aims to show the integration of recent developing activities based on existing conditions and needs in the efficient functioning of the NEA, which improves database for farmers. Thus created a database of direct and indirect data arising on a farm and farm environment, are a precondition for creative user and multipurpose analysis available for practical application to the farmers. Organizational structure of the NEA for farmer's availability.

28.2 Organizational structure of the NEA for farmer's availability

NEA was established by Law, with support from the World Bank project, in accordance with the Agricultural Development Strategy of the Republic of Macedonia. With the implementation of the reform, NEA aims to enable the transfer of knowledge and information and their implementation in agricultural holdings (farms) to improve the quality and quantity of agricultural production with economic viability, competitiveness of Macedonian markets in EU, sustainable development of agriculture in rural areas, and support the development and implementation of agricultural policy by maintaining a database of farms through field visits on the farms.

Established organizational structure in NEA, enables a combination of centralized decentralization with autonomy in decision making in the planning process and implementation of activities on the field, with the ability to monitor and evaluate the results of the activities according to the relevant indicators of success, applied on several hierarchical levels and implementation of mandated becoming more 'bottom - up'.



Figure 1 Scheme of organizational structure for farmer's availability

28.3 Communication and relationships between the advisor and the farmer

NEA is responsible for providing high quality expertise advisory support on the field to the farmers in order to improve the quality, quantity, and profitability of agricultural production with the introduction of economic and management skills, and optimization in the use of available resources in rural areas, supporting the government's development programs in agricultural production. For successful implementation of the objectives, it is necessary availability of additional realistic field data, whose quality depends very much on the established communication between NEA advisors and farmers.

- Continued communication between NEA Advisors and farmers, is based on: Mutual long-term cooperation with advisors
- Mutual trust,
- Realization of common goals,
- Continuing motivation for the development of the farm business
- Recognition of clear and achievable indicators of success etc. .

Profile farm sub-system incorporates all kinds of data resulting from established communication.

Table 1 Record of the data from the established cooperation contained in Farm profile								
Record of the	e data from the established cooperation contained	d in Farm profile						
 Basic data for the farmer Personal data Basic data for the farm Location Staff Family Resources on the farm Human Material Natural Business Data Cost of production Yields Incomes Inventories (stock) Workforce Investments Other data 	 Implemented advisory services Training Technical advisory economic packages Education Informing Demonstrative trials Advisors - Consultants farm By specialty Territoriality (region, municipality, community) Data for certificates for successfully completed training for farmers Made analyzes and reports for the farm Production Costs (farm, product) Comparative analysis with other farms Resources Calculations and others. Submitted advisory services Submitted recommendations, suggestions Implemented techniques, technologies, knowledge, skills 	 Data for state support Subsidies Donations IPARD National programs Data for the environment (data obtained under PRA method) Used / Unused Resources Human Material Natural Data infrastructure Road network Access to water Irrigation System Health services Surveys Satisfaction of users Needs and requirements of farmers Opinion of Advisors Proposals and suggestions from the community 						
Figure 2 Data sets in the Far	gies, knowledge, skills m profile							
What FARM Infe I conget from the System 2	SEMPA	Farm & Advisor						



28.4 Cycle of stakeholder participation in maintenance of the sub-system Farm profile

Each subsequent cycle affect the outcome intended for participants in the cycle as a motive more for their participation in the cycle and building farm profile.



Figure 3 Cycle of participation of stakeholders in updating the database

28.5 Integration of existing subsystems

Integrating existing subsystems in the system Farm profile set up a database that covers the following subsystems: SEMPA, PRA, FMS/FADN, FAM, SMS

28.5.1 SEMPA - Subsystem for evidence, monitoring and planning activities of the NEA advisors

In order to increase efficiency and effectiveness in the realization of annual working plans, SEMPA system is implemented in NEA. System defines concrete projects and sub-projects related to specific employees, customers, the claimant of services, needed resources, used procedures and instructions, time records of the assignments and conditions of the project entries (lists, photos, etc.). Overall activity is monitored and assesses according to performance indicators at different levels of access and responsibilities. Consequently, opinion and customer satisfaction for services is recorded.

One strategic approach towards this objective is implementing a software solution. On a higher level, the solution is a tool that:

- Speed ups the process of establishing more efficient organizational and working procedures
- Alleviates the implementation of the immature processes that are in the early beginning
- Provides better control over established working processes as well as decentralized approach in coordination, control and implementation of working activities.
- Supports the determination of the strategic plans, annual working plans, as well as finances, based on concrete parameters of activities with indicators of success and evaluation.
- Replaces the hard copy evidence of some processes and thus alleviate the process of reporting and decision making on a higher levels.
- Facilitates the process of determination of the NEA's services real costs as a step toward improvement of the NEA's services.

All subsystems are part of the hierarchical levels of access to the system SEMPA.





28.5.2 PRA - Subsystem for Participative rural appraisal

Represents Assessment of rural areas with the participation of residents themselves. It's an approach that includes a variety of participatory techniques and tools for collecting data that allow stakeholders to analyze their problems and then plan, implement and evaluate progress and success of the agreed solutions. PRA is a fundamental activity that is regular work obligation and duty of every advisor for diagnosing problems and finding a solution with the participation of people in rural areas.

It consists of two activities: implementation and analysis. The implementation is done by collecting data on the field in rural settlements, while the analysis is performed in office. Data are collected and analyzed using a set of tools that allow representation of reality in a different form of reports. PRA consists of the following tools:

- Mapping;
- Seasonal calendars;
- Conversations with key informants;
- Transect Tour Information;
- Time diagram of the community;
- Focus groups.

The purpose of this activity is participatory collection of physical, socio-economic and agro-economic information of the population living in rural areas, information that further benefit employees in NEA of making programs, planning and management, as well as managing the work programs in dispersed offices. This activity represents the auxiliary tool of the advisors in NEA in the preparation of detailed analysis of

agricultural knowledge and information systems within each dispersed office. This is achieved through the implementation of a participatory approach to collecting data sharing with the local population.

28.5.3 FMS/FADN - Subsystem for farm monitoring/Farm accountancy data network

Supports ongoing activity of each advisor in NEA, its importance is accentuated by Law for establishing a farm accountancy data network from agricultural econimies (Official Gazette No.110/07). For successful implementation of the activity are defined forms for data collection, built IT software, manuals for collecting and input data into the system, defined programme with approved budget. This activity includes at least 600 farms with records of their basic data, available resources, proceeds, revenues, expenses, labor, investments, other income and so on.

The system provides records for representative and non representative samples of the Macedonian farms. The data have multy user approach:

- FMS is a tool for development of the advisory service
- Represents a basis for handling updated database of the farms
- Provides opportunities for analysis, research and so on
- Linking physical and economic parameters in the business of farm as a condition for development of profitability of the farm
- The database is used nationwide, FADN, statistics, insurance companies, banks, donors, research activities etc..

The basis for successful FMS/FADN activity is good cooperation and trust between the farmer and the advisor, the expertise of advisors, collection and processing of timely and accurate data, compatible multi user IS software, uninterrupted flow of information between the farmer-advisor, implementation of modern and quality services on the farm and primarily responsible approach of the advisors to this activity.

28.5.4 FAM - subsystem for analysis and farm monitoring

NEA's core business is providing advisory packages for farms which cooperate with NEA. The advisory packages are products/services of NEA which are being prepared in order to improve the quality of the farm's products and thus to increase the farm's productivity. The advisory packages are prepared by NEA experts, based on the current state of production in a particular farm or farms, respectively, but based on data collected on the field as well.

Based on data collected from the field, NEA experts conduct analysis and propose measures translated into advisory packages.

Farm's data are used for many purposes. Through further processing, they might be used to assess the state of production by region, for different products of crop or livestock origin and like. These analyzes are carried out for the needs of the various institutions that cooperate with NEA and their purpose is for planning and setting the strategies on macroeconomic level.

Based on the above, accuracy, timeliness and quality of data collected on farm, directly affects the quality of the work and the results of many entities involved, ranging from farm, advisors, NEA as a whole and all external entities that cooperate with NEA. In other words, the processes of these entities along with the related results of operations are mutually connected in a cycle.

Currently, data on farms that are collected and processed in NEA's information system, are grouped into three main areas:

- Data related with planned and implemented activities by the Adviser while implementing of advisory services for farm, including the necessary resources, material costs, equipment and other inputs that are necessary for their activities Modules of SEMPA system Administration, Recording of activities, Evaluation and Monitoring
- Data related to farm resources and finance

- Integrated data for Farm and advices on that Farm.

The software solution provides a straightforward and intuitive way of entering and updating data on the farmer. By integrating of the data for advice and data from the farm, a smooth flow of information in the cycle processes that include farmers, advisors and NEA as the main entities in the process, is achieved. This subsystem incorporates and controls for data quality and allows external and internal data user approach, applying the principle of protection of personal data.

Integration of the controls on data entry and controls after the final entry, are by using the definitions and needs of national and FADN aspect.

To summarize, the purpose of the FAM subsystem is obtaining efficient, an accurate and better data entry quality in general. It helps the advisers to analyze and manage more accurately data and to rely on data with a better quality. In turn, this helps NEA in implementation of its own policy and in decision making on micro and on macro level on time and efficiency.



Figure 5 Diagram for Derived Farm Profile thru Projects cycles

28.6 Application of new technologies for data collection and their integration in the system

28.6.1 Mobile application for farmer data entry 'in situ' (Using PC tablet)

When Advisor is preparing for work on field, it is necessary to take the file for farmer(s) to be visited, with all the records for that farmer(s) currently at NEA. It is also necessary to prepare additional documents for entry of new data related to the farm to be visited, and which have not been already introduced in the information system of NEA. Similar is the procedure when visiting and making an agreement with a new farmer. The Advisor needs to bring all blank forms/documents that are filled out on the field in order to be included into the farmer's file.

This process does not end here because the next step is to convert documents into electronic form i.e. to be entered into the system. The updating of such documents should be done manually during the entire operation of the farm which collaborates with NEA.

According to the above described two-phase process for farm's data collection: in paper format (while the adviser is on the field) and then input of the data into the system, as a second phase, in direction for improvement and optimization of the procedure, in NEA is developed an portable application that (mobile application, designed for work on field). By use of the mobile application on the field, double entry/update of farm's data (first on paper and then in electronic form) is avoided. Recorded field data on the mobile devices is automatically transferred to a central location in NEA's Central Database.

The benefits of using a mobile device application are multiple. Namely, while realizing the activities for collecting data for farm, the Adviser uses the application to take the info about the farmer(s) with whom plans to work at a particular visit. Accordingly, by using of the mobile device, one step of the current process is saved and avoided., i.e. there are no more need for manual paper data entry and entering the paper data into the electronic system. In addition, with the new approach, the process becomes more transparent, i.e. the Farmer can directly follow and influence the activity of recording the related Farm information into the mobile device, i.e. the NEA information system.

In general, the functionalities provided with the mobile application, provide a permanent, stable, simple and fast input/change of the farmer's data while the Adviser works on the field. This results in further improvement and enhancement of the quality of services provided by NEA for farmers.





It should be emphasized that the mobile application offers new opportunities. Besides the above functionalities for data entry for farm according to the prescribed form by NEA, the mobile application and the mobile device provides as well:

- Automatically retrieving of the location of the farm with the help of GPS coordinates

When using the functionality for automatically retrieve the location of the farm, the map of Republic of Macedonia along with the farm location can be displayed on the mobile device, by using geo-location services. Later, these data could be analyzed in the web application through a visual display of aggregated data for farms on the map, by using different criteria that are of interest for the analyzes.



The following criteria for filtering and presenting farms can be set in the web application: by region, municipality, type of farm, culture/crop, reared livestock on appropriate farm and on the map of the Republic of Macedonia can be displayed, visually all farms (according to their geo-coordinates) that satisfy the previously selected criteria.

- **Taking pictures on the farm.** While on the field, an adviser is able to make a gallery of photos from the farm, which will then be entered into the farmer's record for later observations and analyze.
- **Input of the electronic signature of the** farmer (confirming the validity of the collected 'in situ' data).
- Assent of the Farmer. The assent of the farmer that his/her data might be used by NEA, currently is verified with his/her signature within the appropriate documents for compliance, in electronic form.
 With the mobile application, the signature can be provided directly on the mobile device (tablets).

28.6.2 SMS info

One of the primary objectives of NEA is to encourage the development of agriculture and thus the maximum support in the development of the farmers with whom it have a permanent cooperation. Activities conducted by NEA are of a different nature, and primarily consulting.

In this regard, informing to maintain various educational meetings and conferences is one part of the spectrum of activities of the organizational character. Especially important is the effectiveness and efficiency of the process of informing, which includes informing of a preventive nature which usually is of mass character.

The latter is the motivation for automation of the process for informing by implementing a Web-based management solution for sending bulk SMS messages to one or more farmers who cooperate with NEA as part of an integrated solution for recording the activities of the NEA employees - SMS module.

In accordance with the aforementioned needs, with functionality that provides SMS messaging module it provides a permanent, stable, simple and fast communication between Advisers and the cooperating farmers, and it results in enhancing and improving the quality of services provided by NEA to farmers. Communication achieved through SMS messaging is the most reliable way for permanent communication between advisers and farmers, given the fact that the activity of farmers takes place in the field and the only way to communicate with them in real time is via their mobile phones. Besides the permanent availability, this mode of communication is characterized by:

- High speed
- Safety
- Simplicity
- Efficiency
- Convenience

In other words, the basic usage of the SMS module is informing and notifying target group for organizing various appointments, meetings, trainings etc., as well as informing about the activities of NEA and cooperating institutions, in relation to: conducted analysis, surveys, questionnaires and their results, various programs and subventions, benefits, procedures and regulations etc.



Figure 8 Utilizing Text message (TM) in the process

28.7 Types of analyzes, reports and benefits

Complete picture of the situation of micro and macro data from farm and surrounding of the farm in the rural areas enables comparison of geographical locations and time periods.

From the analysis that can be prepared from Farm profile, an essential part is practical application of the analyzes and reports directly to customers in the form in accessible and understandable way of showing, in particular:

- Advisors
- Farmers

- Research
- Education
- Processing industry
- Input Suppliers
- Rural Community
- Associations of farmers
- Producer Groups

Data in the direction of building policies, comparative analysis at the international level, scientific research purposes and so on, are available in the system with appropriate access.



Figure 9 Improved services and data quality for Stakeholders

Different categories of data from Farm Profile allow various analyzes according to various criteria and by different stakeholders: Farmers, NEA, Government, Science, FADN, each from its own angle. The benefits of these analyzes are shared and multiple whereby, directly or indirectly, the ultimate benefit is on the side of the Farmer.

- Use of Accountancy data for Farm (General Info, Production Data, Resources, Finance)
- Use of Data beyond accountancy data for Farm Advises, List of Advisers, Questionnaires
- Use of Combined data Advises & Accountancy Data for Farm

The Accountancy data for Farm encompasses the following categories of data:

- General Info for Farm (Location, type, name, Farm Owner/Associations of Famers...),
- Production data (Yield, Income, Costs,..),
- Resources (Material, Human, Natural),
- Finance (Debts, Investments, Subsidies,..)

Farm Profile accountancy data could be analyzed per different criteria (per Product, per Farm or Farms, per Region and/or Locations, per years...) and for plenty of objectives.

The data beyond Accountancy data for Farm encompasses the following categories of data:

- Advises
- List of Advisers
- Questionnaires



Figure 10 Various Report Types and Analyses

28.7.1 Benefits from reports and analyses

The benefits from analyses of the accountancy data and the data beyond them, are also unlimited and for all interested parties whether for NEA - Employees, Government - Institutions, Science -Researchers but in first place for the Farmer. Some of the core benefits:

- Easier finding and planning of placement for products and marketing - for Farmers, Farmer Associations and Municipalities

The reports of planted hectares in certain cultures in locations and /or regions and their analyses can help in planning of the yield and thus for marketing purposes. With these analysis, the NEA may make recommendations to farmer associations, municipalities so they can easier act in finding the placement of the products of their farmers.

 Planning the development of the agriculture sector - for Farmers, Farmer Associations and Municipalities

Based on reports of available land for farms in a particular region / municipality, especially untilled land and their analysis, the municipalities have the option of planning the development of the agricultural sector.

Foundation for micro and macro analyses -> guidance for application of new methods.
 methodologies and technologies - for Farmers, NEA, Researchers

The analysis of farm production data by region, compare the results of production by region, and in particular the analysis of the cost of production by product and per region Farmer Profile provides a basis for scientific institutes carry statements and accordingly to provide guidance on the application of new scientific and technical developments.

- Foundation for FADN surveys - for Government Institutions, Farmers

Data from Farm Profile as a nationwide data are basis from which to generate the necessary data for FADN which are primarily used to assess the need for subsidies and investment in that production that is of national interest.

- Use of data for ADVISES - BENEFITS for Adviser, NEA, FARMER

Farm Profile gives an accurate overview of WHAT services are given to the Farmer whether they are:

- Education
- Training
- Skills transfer with presentation
- Interactive sessions
- Adviser packages

The advices can be analyzed per: type of Advise, Specialty, Period,...

Use of data for ADVISERS - BENEFITS for Adviser, NEA, FARMER

Farm Profile gives an accurate overview of WHO gave services to the Farmer and that could be used for comparative analyses who is possible credited for either good or bad results of Farm, the Adviser or Farmer.

The practice show that does not mean good / bad results is credited with one hand. There are situations that same advice from a same Advisor given to two Famers does not have same effect to the Farms production. Having the Farm profile, and with comparative analyses for more farms with a same production type, the problematic side could be more easily located since the participation is mutual, and the results depend on quality of service provided by advisor on one hand and on other hand, quality of farm data collected (provided by the Farmer) along with the proper application of the service by Farmer.

Use of data for Questionnaires for Farmer - BENEFITS for Adviser, NEA, FARMER

Data for Needs and requirements of farmers for advisory services, particularly for

- **Specific areas:** Animal Husbandry, Crop, Agro economy, Gardening, Organic production, Vine Fruit, Environment
- Most convenient time: Morning/Afternoon, Workday/Weekday, Month of the year
- **Way of delivering advisory services**: Presentation, Training, Television Shows, Practical activities, Short notices (e-mail, SMS, radio, mobile phone), Use of materials (printed brochures, booklets, guides, manuals,..)

Analyses of the data are Useful for:

- Farmer for improving of his development
- Advisor, NEA for planning advisory services, time and budget

Data for Customer (Farmer) satisfaction and ratings

- Per Advisory service type: Presentation, Training, Practical realization
- Per Topics and Quality of topics: Understandability, Usefulness, Acceptability, Applicability
- **Evaluation of Advisor:** Articulated/ Conceivable, Courtesy, Communication, Interactivity, Appropriate approach, Competency

Analyses of the data are Useful for:

- Advisor - for self improvement, improving advisory services and thus for Farmer

28.8 Conclusion

The development of the EU Regulation for FADN and the development of the EU Regulation for the Advisory Services are mutually dependent and the implementation of both will contribute for improvement of the quality of FADN data.

29 Web-tool for modelling farm subsides and income in CAP 2014-2020

Szilard Keszthelyi



210



Small farmer scheme (SFS)

1000 EUR/farm is to be the lump sum

100-110 thousands farms are to be in normal system

70 thousands farms will choose SFS (based on FADN)

•Total 70 million EUR, 5,3% of total I. pillar subsidies, 3% of eligible area

- Extra 33 million EUR compared to the normal system
- Only one registration opportunity 15. October 2014, communication is key issue

Agrárgazdasági Kutató Intézet | www.aki.gov.hu Source: AKI, Agricultural Policy Department, 2012

Subsidy Calculator (www.aki.gov.hu/tamogatas)

Customized subsidy forecast

Only a few data must be provided (e.g. hectares, number of animals) and software calculates the expected subsidies for 1013 and 1014.

Further services:

- · Short description about the expected direct subsidies
- Alerts in case the farm does not meet the requirements of greening payment
- Customized introduction of new cross compliance
- · Free newsletter about the changes of new CAP
- · Personalised extension services (e.g. for credit request)

Agrárgazdasági Kutató Intézet | www.aki.gov.hu

Output of Subsidy Calculator (www.aki.gov.hu/tamogatas)

Expected direct payments

2013 - Old system	2014 - New system		
SAPS	Basic payment		
Milk premium	Green payment		
Rice	Young farmers schemes		
Suckler cows	Coupled payments:		
Beef	Suckler cows		
Ewe premium	Beef		
Cattle extensification	Milk premium		
	Ewe premium		
	Capping		

Agrárgazdasági Kutató Intézet | www.aki.gov.hu

Output of Subsidy Calculator 2 (www.aki.gov.hu/tamogatas)

Alerts

> Green payment (area bigger than 3 hectares, 3 different crops etc)

> Maintaining grass on the surfaces which were permanent grassland (5% decreasing allowed)

> Ecological focus area (EFA) less than 7%.



Agrárgazdasági Kutató Intézet | www.aki.gov.hu

olge .	AND AND AND AND A DECIDENCE		
		1000	
			4
munth Electron ter S	Stymateryte Ha. III mengint Search	webin pathanas Poosts guarts	
Air balbaline Opic is ht establish		TOZTVIJAJO je	01
Agricgiothelig Karoli folior o La institution, ai ogni lettare refinitio regionali folianna	nadelinera znaskájia za a Tarripa Riestrag znakle u kaji výz dista juli izmigatia kompdiare zosti tis a mačine izifikatajik.	ternepise algebra. A etglegeliset ar lennek elsenek. A ullendsekat matkalinas	1
	Engineer allows		
	Marriage and Avenues	Al sense	
	2011 then harmark by discoveredge	78 August	
	Automation advertige testiler	d helper	
	I many a surgerier to an and fightered a	about the complant	
	2011 Area & Clarent South Association	5	
dear the second of the second	(21)) des befanges manhantes begangebann. Recommendes allers		
1000			
100	(2011 Arts to get a companie)		
	EMAIL AND strengther		
	Richard State Georgenie Laport	3 data dare	
(N)	(P hings a More instruction and a second	a b dech alle	
	Argundum mangatist Laguer	A datab allans	
1			
12.4 1			
		and the second s	
		Borner Bandwick (# 0 Operation (# 1) Bandwick (#) Bandwick (#) Bandwick (# 1) Bandwic	Province of the second se

Z





This has been the first step ...

Future development

Benchmark and forecast the changing of income level

Providing estimation for the profitability

Basis and concepts:

- FADN based
- EU typology
- Microsim (Microeconomic simulation model)

Agrárgazdasági Kutató Intézet | www.aki.gov.hu

Output structure

For each type and size groups

Description	Unit	Farm data	Avarage	Avarage of best 25%	Avarage of worst 25%	Avarage 2013	Avarage 2014
Farm size (SO)	tHUF/farm						
Revenue	tHUF/ha						
Direct subsidies	tHUF/ha						
Total output	tHUF/ha						
Material costs	tHUF/ha						
Paid wage	tHUF/ha						
Depreciation	tHUF/ha						
Total costs	tHUF/ha						
Profit before tax	tHUF/ha						

Agrárgazdasági Kutató Intézet | www.aki.gov.hu

<u>30</u> Statistical testing of differences of means in EconomyDoctor internet service

Arto Latukka



Statistical Testing of Differences of Means Adding statistical testing to the EconomyDoctor –internet service

Anne-Mari Sepponen & Arto Latukka 20th PACIOLI –workshop Rome (Italy, 1st-3rd of October 2012)

12.4.2013

2

The purpose

- The purpose is to include statistical testing of differences between means into the EconomyDoctor Internet-service
- We compare and test the means of groups are the differences statistically significant
- If statistically significant differences are found, the differences are real not random
- Test results can be seen in the reports of EconomyDoctor



© MTT Agrifood Research Finland 12.4.2013


The presumption tests

- The presumptions of the parametric tests are tested if necessary
- If the size of group is big enough the normality can be presumed
- Normality is tested with Shapiro-Wilk test and equality of variance is tested with Levene's test
- If the presumptions of parametric tests don't come true then nonparametric tests are used



Testing of differences of means/medians



Testing differences of means

- The presumption tests define whether parametric or nonparametric test is used in testing differences of means
- Variables can be dependents or independents and it rules which test can be used
- In independent groups observations are from different observational units
- The observations in dependent groups are from same observational units in the different groups



© MTT Agrifood Research Finland 12.4.2013

6

Testing differences of means: Independent situation

- Parametric:
 - · The used method is analysis of variance
 - · The analysis of variance tests differences between means
 - The test is based on comparing differences within and between the groups
 - The statistical test is F-test which tells probability to dismiss null hypothesis



© MTT Agrifocol Research Finland 12.4.2013

Testing differences of medians: Independent situation

- Nonparametric:
 - If the presumptions of the analysis of variance don't come true then nonparametric Kruskal-Wallis test is used
 - · The Kruskal-Wallis test study differences between medians
 - · The null hypothesis is that medians of groups are equal
 - The test is based on remainder of means of rank of data and group



Independent situation: Pairwise tests

- If the tests prove that means or medians are different from each other statistically significant we also test differences of means or medians pairwise
- The pairwise tests take into account the growth of significance level caused from consecutive tests
- In the situation of analysis of variance the pairwise test is Tukey test or Tukey-Kramer test depending on if the groups are same size or not
- In the situation of Kruskal-Wallis test the used pairwise test is Mann-Whitney test with Bonferroni correction



© MTT Agrifood Research Finland 12.4.2013

Testing differences of means: Dependent situation

- Parametric:
 - The used method is repeated measure analysis of variance
 - The repeated measure anova is used when variables are dependent – values of variables have been measured more than once in same observations
 - · The null hypothesis is that means are equal in different groups



© MTT Agrifood Research Finland 12.4.2013

10

Testing differences of medians: Dependent situation

- Nonparametric:
 - If the presumptions of the parametric test don't come true then nonparametric Friedman test is used
 - Friedman test is nonparametric equivalent to repeated measures analysis of variance
 - The test studies if the treatment influences on rank distribution of variables
 - The test statistic F follows the Chi² distribution



Dependent situation: Pairwise tests

- If the repeated measures ANOVA proves that means are different from each other statistically significant we also test differences of means pairwise with Bonferroni correction
- · Bonferroni correction fixes the growth of significance level
- If the nonparametric Friedman test proves that medians are different from each other statistically significant we also test differences of means pairwise by using Wilcoxon test with Bonferroni correction

	© MTT Agrifood Research Finland	12.4.2013
--	---------------------------------	-----------

12

Significance levels in the report of EconomyDoctor

	2.00 The 0.5		26	2010		
Production Costs div	ided by milk_yield		De	ing Farms	о — с	
	54	buily_Region_C4_Set	nidy_Repics_CE S	ubsidy_Region_B	Scholdy_Region_A	Average
Farms represented		110	780	1.640	400	2.93
Farms in sample		7= <n<14< td=""><td>30×n×40</td><td>30<0<40</td><td>20<n<30< td=""><td>100<#413</td></n<30<></td></n<14<>	30×n×40	30<0<40	20 <n<30< td=""><td>100<#413</td></n<30<>	100<#413
Arable land		33.4	50.4	35.4	69,4	55,
Livestock Units		23.9	37,0	43.1	55.5	42,
PRODUCTION COSTS ()		1,180	1,101	1,084	0,947	1,08
Material costs (***)		6,271	0,234	6,169	0,164	0,38
Fartilizer, Lime ()		0.037	0.037	0.028	0.030	0.03
Other crop production costs	0	0,025	0.030	0.023	0,024	0.02
Fuel and lubricants (*)	Signific	BINCE 0.033	0.040	0.022	0.023	0.02
Electricity ()	levels	6,093	0,023	0.019	0,019	0,02
Forege costs (***)		0.143	0.107	0.076	0.065	0.05
Livestock costs ()	* = significant at t	he 0.05 level	9,032	0,056	0,026	0,03
Livestock purchasing ()	" = significant at	the 0.01 level	0,006	0,007	0.001	0,00
Other livestock costs ()	- significant a	the 0.001 level	0.044	0.049	0.026	0.04
Hachinery cost ()	- arginine arri a	tine 0.001 leve	0,715	0,177	0,143	0,10
Depreciation of machines (•)	0,115	0.135	0,091	0,060	0,10
Other machinery costs ()		0.053	0.080	0.065	0.063	0.08

31 Open source solutions in Hungarian FADN: data collection and income modelling

Csaba Pesti





Open source vs commercial softwares

Oracle / Microsoft SQL + .NET Framework

■Software licence costs (40-60,000 € per year)

High costs of upgradingSupport available

•No surprises/hidden bugs (or at least less)

 Slightly lower costs of programming

Agrárgazdasági Kutató Intézet | www.aki.gov.hu

MySQL + PhP (or Java)

No licence/upgrade costs
No database support (sometimes it would be useful)
Easy to find a programmer
Surprises/hidden bugs give extra hours/days for programming
Higher costs of programming

No need for over-capacity: FADN is a small database, only a few millions of records. A few hours downtime does not make big problems.





Data entry to MySQL server at AKI

Habalista		Tarana Allap	es 📕						
i de la comp	145470911.4566+1	unite Megidestrect-sol) Oener elementari 6,66						
Orenkód	Kiplet	Klértékelt képlet 1.	Köfetőkelt képlet II.	Allapot	Hibstornet	Magn	Hazi	Hea	1.0
a/mg	(mq180.,8**) 4)-m4019_3	(1968)974 - 414025559	14755-1-17555	milles	An addacht ar adnahrg nagyobh an arberdad geft init.	Spin .	bian kolorson sepretirgi (a) termiq kolosofi ir		
natoris	ngolo ² 200 ngolo ² 2020 ngolo ² 2020	in Shebata Shen 2 (n. Shebata Shen 2	2.32+2.02+32+4.	readien	A repos, réparapos bilaghonama a megodott határokon kövül saik (P_A, rábk)	lper	ipak on ha lett betalaritya Belviz marti		
infress.	(wreak_eg + wreak_eg +	[040+640+9	16.1 1	miles	Milyen niteriny harith at sprifs attwice scenario?	Spe.	spheispe		
os/cola	(014445_3- 014445_72- 014445_72-	(Label-(o)-(pol)-ape	4003-000	index	Rändeteine at igeorgawett en igifratienkart	lije -	an oft biden its.		
es/eete	nggak_ob/ nggak_ogsave and nggak_obcos	(asym/ico.000+ase and Oragin-ase	106-pars toraid tegress	inda	Edepik indokolja mog, kogy miert dyst traganak se u.ha ru juti kolturesk,	len.	Rapte menti labler pip ing. 40-05 e PU/ha, menikabler fi,79 e Pt/ha, vortining 12,67 e PU/ha, mitriger ath,257 e https://doi.org/10.01 ePU/ha.		
sylvate	(m?041_02+ m?041_02+	1(84.53)+(0))+0 :	84-8719	reifier	Möyen utwing kertilt at språb- nivsing avriba?	len:	nagehauger		
15/0141	minig_second and (Densig_g + Bening_si + Billing_F + Bening_F + Billing_F + Billing_F + Bil	(after)+2000 and ((); 059+0()+0()+(1, 11)+(0)+(2) (14))+od	(affault-acces and ()(a .ug)+(a)+(a)+(a. ug)+(a)+(g, ug)+(o)+(g,	miter	Mart Dyen maget at 1 he ex just distantik?	tper.	Threading borrechilden lated and/O distantings (Tokap- loggedis)		
ngfosan	afflace"Tem	l-sorti-s	-0007+0	realbea	n midring en, arvelas, nogativ, Poglalja čenen, kogo na ložot az odra	lgan	Alaccorp a Sagternoleti 3,42 1/ha hormöld. A kodvazidian kildaria követhambon 200,009 Pi/kg Sakty-en elisalitott borezidis. Alaccorp a tisaugatas mittika, az		

Explaining errors for a group of farms

Carlos Carlos de Carlos de la contra de la c		10.10		
Baustan Bas				
Adarctigilitis Elleptenis Enduatoria Indalogeles	uă 👘			FelliamálócFerti Ciaba Vertifica-ca
Agrárgazdasági Kutató Intézet AKI Tesztűzemi Adatrógzító (TEA)				Adenant service 54
Kérdőivi upomino ti			_	
A hibalista frissitésbez körnégs futtassa le az ellenőrzőst az "Ellenőrzős / Ellenőrz	ee, hibalista" menipontbeni			
Wells county block as				
Keplet storiani moanata				
Separate: 19 fb				
Képlet	Hibettomet	Correct and	Magy.	Új hozzászólás
nites_responding_repairing_rese	A malma desidentisi (Magies a megador) hatirokon kivil esik (D_A) nant 15 mint 9		tipe.	
ninty_frequentiaty_frequentiaty_free	A tecninghos intillesible idagina a megadott hatioticos idrill esik (a Pi/db) men foto men	÷.	ten i	
1. 2. 2	Namulathan level terthetek systems, Margaria, Shal singkat tertheter in to hall		time	
RIIIT, P*CAOCRIIIA, P*C	the state of the s			
nur, be	imat Nilson kertilatet Allattarti Apillana Karlenek/Custa-0	3	Que :	
(m4)(27) + m4)(277) + m4)(277)(s) mm2) [so: mm2) [so:	innii Nicos tertiinte Alamanti Apalansi suosenek? (cata, 0 Mieri suosi terus, laitto, kunto as Wiles suosi terus, laitto, kunto as	(# (#	ten : ten	
анту реколанта, рек (најбу ј + најбу ј + најбу ј)ет (најбу ј + најбу ј + најбу ј)ет	inni) Nicce kertijner Allernerti Apilane stansenki (s.t.p. 0 Miert nicce kerne, kerne-ke Ublianna kernej Shiet nicce pp.0		tgen tgen	
ուղը (»- առուղը»- ուղը (»- Ավիալ (»- հեղին, չ- հեղին, չ)» Ավիալ (»- հեղին, չ)» (»- հեղին, չ)» Ավիալ (»- հեղին, չ)» (»- հեղին, չ)» («հեղին, »- Ավիալ (»- հեղին, չ)» (»- հեղին, չ)» («հեղին, »)» («հեղին, «հեղին»)» («հեղին»)» («հեղին»)» («հեղին»)» («հեղին») («հեղին»)» («հեղին»)» («հեղին»)» («հեղին»)» («հեղին»)» («հեղին»)» («հեղին»)» («հեղին»)» («եղին»)» («հեղին»)» («հեղին»)»	innii Yihoo iertiinet Alamani apalanu aanomeki (Luku-0 Miert nuise ierne, kutto kendo se Yihikaarag kilologi 363rt nuise ga/3 Miert liyen magan ragralacemt as mengo Alohigi		lgen Igen Igen	

Agrárgazdasági Kutató Intézet | www.aki.gov.hu

TI, a FOLDTERGLETI ADATOK) saji tulajden	l+l di	i berleti jert berbe adott erület 6.)	5 Ingyen berbe terüle	esen adott t (-)	6 berfet) dört börbe vett terület (+)	7 ing berbe terule	vett rf (+)	H sorem all hasamalt ossaes berolet (-		dertek
1100 Scantoberulet	17					106	-		129	1	70
1117 Mezdigardasági terület (1300 + 1105 + 1122 + 1314)	17		.0	2		106	1		123	-	
1121 Termiteralet (1117 + 1130 + 1121 = 1123	14	-	Ď	0		166	- 24		123	-	
1125 Ozemi összes terület (1108 + 1123 + 1128)	17		5			166	1 3		113		
2001 Yulajdonni, etcivagy Azerowenio 1000 Contol and	12		1786	112500 Q	11	1953	293	1	1796	11	
2005 Csaledtagek	34		2009		10	3999	185	1	77.60	3.9	
2007 Clause ages			100	-	10	1010			-		
2020 2001-2019 OSS2ESEN	49	4	2100	112000	-	1942	-	×	1700	-	0
2050 0552ESEN (2020 + 2040)		×.	1191	113606					1356		0
TI 4 ES2ROZOK A MEZOLAZDASAU		1 targy	N	1	e elles	i év	1	5 valt	0034	1	

Data export to Pdf

Editing questionnaires and quality check formulas

	the second s				1.01
-	Contraction of the local division of the loc				
Gille G V	(a)	(1019)w/00		194.40.00	
Contraction interaction (1)	Bervezeteter - Prositivele				
All all and	AT IS IN	0			
Adatrügzlités	Elleverais Karbantartas	Hibabejelestő			Felliatznählt: Piett Cealt Verzült 1.5
AKI Agrarg	azdasági Kutató Intézet emi Adatrögzító (TEA)				Adathinia warnife 1.5
Kérdőiv: uzénia	felev2011 Tähla: t8_a				
Table annotable to					
Tabla perset	redificate adalge terminate de fechacendalaca	(CEANTOPOLIS IN			
Adatottlopokimistar 1					
Adetsorokationa: 4	4				
Magnarisasti					
Magrarianti					
Magrariant Talia metrie	Tert Nigon				
Magrarinat: Talia metrice	Test Nigwe				
Magariaan Tilla monthe Tählanaperkeesztö	Tert Nigsen				
Magrarianti Tällä mentio Tählasperkesztő	Test Nigee		34]		
Magnericant Tällä menter Tählanperkesztő 8003	<u>Turit</u> <u>Núgess</u> Búza, 10ukölybúza		3.4		
Magyaraan Tälää meetke Tälää meetke Tälää meetke Soos Soos	Terl Neper		3.4		
Megarinati Tällä mettie Tällä mettie Tällä mettie Soos Soos Soos	<u>Test</u> <u>Negen</u> Búza, tönkölybúza Durumbúza Rozs (törletíve a Játvaer	n rest is)	3.4		
Magyariant Tällä metrie Tällä metrie Soos Soos Soos Soos	Bisa, tönkölybóra Durumbisa Rozs (belöttve a kiture Kai árpa	n rest (s)	3.4		
Magnetian Tälla metle Tälla metle Tälla metle Soos Boos Boos Boos Boos	Būza, tõnkõlybéza Būza, tönkölybéza Rozs (beleittve a kétsee Gozi árpa Tavozi árpa	n rest (s)	3.4		
Tablasperioento Tablasperioento Roos Boos Boos Boos Boos Boos Boos	Bitza, tönkölybótra Durumbita Rozs (belofette a kétser Szzi árpa Tavaszi árpa 24b	n rest (s)	3.4		
Tälla mentee Tälla mentee Cählangerkonsztió 8003 8003 8003 8004 8005 8005	Bitan, tinkölyöinin Durumbitan Docki farja Rozs (terleittve a kitster Gasti árja Zab Triticale	n rest (s)	3.4		
Magnetiant Tábla suerke Tábla suerkesztő 8003 8003 8003 8005 8005 8007 8007 8009	Būza, tönkölybūza Durumbūza Rozs (beleitve a kitszer Össi árpa Tavaszi árpa Zab Triticale Szemeskukorica	n rent (s)	3.4 		

M. Antonia and	Water growth press 200		
· C >	a a the second s	5-Produced/127+H	Q • ((4) ===
Legittelasis Mugalett	👌 Brounder 🦲 Practical		
and and	≣ IIA		
Adamogainte	Elleverate Karban	tartās Hibabejelentő	Felliattable Perti Ced
AKI Agrá	rgazdasági Kutató Intézet üzemi Adatrögzító (TEA)		Adathinis versions
Logia sérv	Indut		
Tellesser:	Orchart		
Altin:	11		
trodat	Oukas 🚿		
5-Mail cinc	instant (Posistan		
	Enropek.		
Administration			
Adattebilitis	8		
Devicenti	2		
Importália	E		
(Damagyarlatis			
Adatheliele	D.		
Kinddin combernit			
Electrois societ	6 D (
(Serbendersta			
Pelliamaldi mente	to Tiril Migatz		

Lessons learned

- In open source environment we have to calculate with surprises: bugs in PhP, errors in MySQL \rightarrow forums, mailing lists etc. (add some spare man-days for these bugs)
- It's OK to survive without database support, but there is a need for well-trained staff at server maintenance level (IT Department)
- Resistance to change: much more complicated than software development:
 - Resistance of AKI's management: Why to spend money? Resistance of accounting offices: Why to change a software which works?

Have either time or money:

Time: open source Money: commercial software



AKI Agrárgazdasági Kutató Intézet | www.aki.gov.hu

32 Developing a common open source platform for internal/external FADN services

Narve Brattenborg





Program for status and administration of participants





First steps (temporary solutions)

- · On the old webserver: secure upload service
 - Accountants upload annual accounts and tax documents
 - uploaded files requires a combination of automated and manual handling
- · On the webhotel
 - LAMP (open source Linux/Apache/Mysql/Php)
 Online registration forms (with admin and export solutions)

 - Importing non-sensitive data from external sources into the database, and accessible on the Web (tor internal use, a tool for NILF accountants)
 - A forum with email notifications (for internal use, between NILF accountants)
 - References, documentations, etc. (tor internal use, a tool for NILF accountants)
- · Start planning a new platform on our own servers
 - The same solution as on the webhotel (but <u>W</u>AMP). The new apps from the webhotel will be portable when the new platform is in place and stable.

	10000	Endta antid terrai acce	n ar flat, og killer på 157	to the radigation are	and a first state						
a mintes		to her sette in systems	g vel d sette baix (set a		uphrope:						
		Date has mapped for		e laisana i manyani di		tere land				Online	registration
a distance			Tate Name	1		. Here's		these lines		on t	he webhotel
		Andrea .	Company Shighting		and and a		ince .	2410 1			in the second
APRIL PROPERTY AND		and the second			114141	that (nar	Effekter	()++ · · ·			
and any firming much	-	jundered.			(THER		PRINT	1000 P		armar	o registrations:
	Add and a second	Indian			United	tang lanta salat	1000	860 T	1	anner	a registrations.
		and an and a second			Party Sector		San Salarg	100 C	2	Labo	our input (as shown r
Distantian State	1000	LPROPERTY.			Bare		Dunar	Der r		1	
registrating	a for	Lenighted			Emplo	and the second	direction in	10053 C	-	Size	of the holding
	Same 1	(ingeneral)	Gentlers		Bula		- ihunar	2964 1"		1100	of anticultural are
Lordrober og Die	scot ner	Mapphanic 1	1 production of the Teal	water	fisior.		(natur	Dea P		0.96	or agricultural are
		(seppend)	Contenant of				Trans.	MA C		Crop	yields
Ola K. Asbe	erge (Income the first given	and some time the impact	det the studen				1.000		200	
Sogndal), Elg (Grang) og I	Elected Kelli	terms (-		1000	-	-	States and States	5	Past	ture yields and use
Hongma (Kon	and and	Andrea -	prace raid		- Duka		21			1.000	
Per la com		landered +	Jugar care		e links	_	-			Live	Stock production
supportants for	2011	to reger to a thight	connect by her card Tang	states and bard			21			Fore	strv
put real treat to	e melle									1 010	
PARTICIPAL OF	10.	Section 1	naray ray tan								
1.00		Case in	that	÷	Biruhar	25.4	F				
		Decision of the grays	or induities to begin	- per the sector							
			and a line		-	_					
				-		_					
	F C. Z			a make							James
NILL	F Nota	itbok pa	å nett	al with the							
Status	F Nota	atbok pa	å nett	tal with te		dad Vis S	st invikaça				Admin
Status Status	F Nota Int Vis data 2011:	atbok pa Madologia 233(202) 201	å nett Usi-Tserar 12:230 artali	La Twith Id-	ilia ilia non ana ana	dbd Vis S	d inkoga				Admin on the webhodel
Status Status Status Statedr I B Statedr I B Statedr I B	F Nota	atbok pa stractologica 233(202) 20 ministration	å nett Utst-Tureran 12:230 artalfe	Chaile &		dizt VaS	d mkoga				Admin on the webhodel
Example of the second s	F Nota	atbok pa ataologia 233(202) 201	å nett Usi-Soene 12:230 ertalfe	L Indi &	No. of the second	alat Va S	d.mkgp				Admin on the webnotel • Status
Example 2 Constraints of the second s	F Nota bit Vis data w 2011: w 2011: m 2012: m	attook pa attackgen 233(202) 20 minutes	å nett Usi-Towrao Usi-Towrao Usi-Towrao Usi-Towrao Usi-Towrao Usi-Towrao	i lank é. I and solid ordge i pare anne solid		dar I Va S	t.mkgp				Admin on the webnotel • Status report of
Status Status Axabele I B Vetal defakan sere de Koma sere sere sere sere sere sere	F Nota	attbok pa attadologio 233(202) 20 233(202) 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 2	å nett Us-Theraci 12:23) setal 12:23) teremen Seetan Seetan Seetan Seetan	(a) with (a)		dad Vo S	t.mkopa		-		Admin on the webnotel • Status report of incoming
Status Status datedr I B Vela detakan ser Post Post Post Post	F Nota	attook pa stractologen 233(202) 20 233(202) 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 2	å nett US-**retar 12:23) setal formal farming mark Code Test	Calvalle La Calvalle La Introd soften ordige i parent Calvalle Cal	Auronal Contractions of the second seco	atter 1 Vos S	timkga 1.				Admin on the webnotel • Status report of incoming data
Status Status Status Statedr I B Vital detakan Vital detakan	F Nota byt Vis data w 2011: second se	ttbok pi Matablogen 233(202) 20 Teaching Sector Sector Sector Sector	å nett Ubi-Taverao 12: 230 artal fo framme Ubi-tave Staverao Read Code Tavel Ame	La Landa La mend sortiers ordige i paver a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a	Ar and a second s	dee Va S	dirrekoga j. j.	* * *			Admin on the weaktotel • Status report of incoming data • Link to
Status Status in de la 1 D Vela detakor vere vere vere vere vere vere vere ve	F Nota Not	Attack province of the second	å nett List forerard (1994 forerard (1994 forerard (1994 forerard (1994 forerard)) List forerard (1994 forerard) (1994 forerar	La lavile (2)		ibet VasS	st mrkoga k k	*	100 M		Admin on the webnotel • Status report of incoming data • Link to individual
Construction Status	F Nota	ttbok pa Matologen 233(202) 20 233(202) 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 2	å nett Utsi-Timeran 12: 23) setal k riterem Inset Gable Tett Ann Lar Owner Tett Ann Inset Sample	La lavile de la contente enclação i paremente enclação e a contente e a contente enclação e a contente enclação e a contente e a contente enclação e a contente a	Des Serie		t mingge k k k		1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1		Admin on the webnotel • Status report of incoming data • Link to individual data
Status Status Anabele I I Vetel detakan were de New Stat Stat Stat Stat Stat Stat Stat Sta	F Nota	Alfabete particular Alfabete particular Alfabete Alfa	å nett US-Taveraci 12:23) setal 12:23) setal 12:23) setal 12:23) setal 12:23 1	Colorado do Colorado enclose a contente enclose a parter Armana do Colorado A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A			t melogas	*	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1		Admin on the weehodel • Status report of incoming data • Link to individual data • An execution
King and a second	F shots Nota at Vis data w 2011: see 1 data d see 12 see 1	ttbok pa atil adologon 233200 % 233200 % Instant Galan Salan Salan Salan Salan Salan Salan Salan	A nett Los horraria Los hor	(c) with (c) in most sortion ordigo (paser a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a			dirrekoga k k k		1		Admin on the webnotel • Status report of incoming data • Link to individual data • An export
Status Status Notatus	F Nota 101 Vis data w 2011 102 Vis data 102	Alf Androigen Standoogen 233(202) 20 233(202) 20 233(2	å nett US- merson 12:23) ertal k framm framm Hard Joho Hard Hollass Carl Andiass Hard Joho Hard	(a) with (a) instead sochers endigo (parent a) a) a) a) a) a) a) a) a) a) a) a) a)	BALL AND		st mrkoga k k k k k	4 4 3 1 1	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1		Admin on the webnotel • Status report of incoming data • Link to individual data • An export module
EXAMPLE STATUS	F i Nota i N	ttbok pa stadulogun 233200 20 Seite	å nett USA barrar (USA barrar (USA barrar (USA barrar (USA barrar (USA barrar)) (USA barrar) (USA barrar) (US	La Vanille Gran		dhe j Va S	A meloga	4 4 5 1 09,3	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1		Admin on the webtotel • Status report of incoming data • Link to individual data • An export module were made
Status Status Austedr I D Vela detektor Status Ser 1001 100	F I Nota It Vis data It Vis	tibok pi Statologica 233(202) 29 233(202)	å nett Usi-hinerao (22 20) ertal för versam (22 20) ertal för versam (2	A lands of a			s mitoga k k k k	4 4 4 2 2 3 3 2 3 3	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1		Admin on the webhotel • Status report of incoming data • Link to individual data • An export module were made accessible
	F Notal	Attock pa attock pa attactopor 233(202) 20 Tourses Spitala S	A nett Use metas 12:230 setals 12:230 setals 12:230 setals 12:30 setals 12:30 setals 12:30 setals 12:30 setals 12:30 setals 12:30 setal 12:30 setal 12:30 setal 12:30 setal 13:30 setal 13:30 setal 14:30 setal 14	i i i vitili i i i normed societa ordigo i paren i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i	And		st mboga k k k k k				Admin on the webhotel • Status report of incoming data • Link to individual data • An export module were made accessible for direct
EXAMPLE A CONSTRUCTION OF THE CONSTRUCT OF THE CONSTRUCTO	F Subscription F Notal Subscription Subs	ttbok pa stadologica 233(20) 20 233(20) 20 233(20) 20 20 233(20) 20 233(20) 20 23(å nett Lisk-Timerao (22:23) setal för stanstall stanstall market Sales Kan Stanstall market Sales Ann Ann Ann Ann Ann Ann Ann Ann Ann An	La Laville de . norme di societario entrigo i passer a a a a a a a a a a a a a	4 4 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5		s antropy	4 4 4 4 5 4 5 4 7 99,3 99,3 1 99,3 1 1 99,3 1 1 99,3 1 1 1 99,3 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	* * * * * * * * * *		Admin on the webnotel • Status report of incoming data • Link to individual data • An export module were made accessible for direct import
NULLY Null	E Nota in N	Attock province Attock	à nett USA merani (12:23) and fa formerani (12:23) and fa formerani (12:23) (1	A local solution productions productions a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a	10000000000000000000000000000000000000	ing the second sec	s at monoger	1 3 3 1 09,3 1 2 99,3 1 2 99,3	A & A & A & A & A & A & A & A & A & A &		Admin on the webnotel • Status report of incoming data • Link to individual data • An export module were made accessible for direct import through ou
	F Nota Not	tibok pi addulygen 233/202 20 203/202 20 20 203/202 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 2	A nett Lost-flowerger Lost-flowerger Lost-flowerger Lost-flowerger Lost-flowerger Lost-flowerger Lost-flowerger Lost-flowerger Train-kge Arge A	L. I public.	200 Articipation 200 Articipa		s at invigge	4 4 5 1 0923 4 1 1 0923 4 1 1 2 2 3	A 4 A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A		Admin on the webtodel • Status report of incoming data • Link to individual data • An export module were madd accessible for direct import through ou account
	F Nota	tibook pa standologica 233/2020 20 233/2020 20 20 233/2020 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 2	à nett Ush harran 12:23) setal k remen 12:23) setal k remen 12:23) setal k remen 12:23 rem	Le traité é.		in the second se	stimboga k k k k k	4 4 5 5 6 99,3 6 99,3 6 99,3 6 99,3 6 99,3 6 99,3 6 99,3 6 99,3 6 99,3 6 99,3 7 99,3 7 99,3 7 99,3 7 99,4 99,4 99,4 99,4 99,4 99,4 99,4 99	A		Admin on the webnotel • Status report of incoming data • Link to individual data • An export for direct import through ou account program o
KILL View	F Source and a second	Antibook province Antibook prov	à nett USS meran transmission t	L. Wild L.	10000000000000000000000000000000000000	litet Vis G	1. minorgan 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1.	1 3 3 1 1 2 2 2 3 1 1 2 2 3 3 1 2 2 3 3 2 2 3 3	A 6 A 2 A 2 A 2 A 2 A 2 A 2 A 2 A 2 A 2		Admin on the weehodel • Status report of incoming data • Link to individual data • An export module were made accessible for direct import through ou account program o the local
Control of the second s	F I Nota I to state I to st	tibook province all adological 233(20) & % 233(20) & %\\ 233(20) & %\\2	A nett Lisk-Timerapo	La Isala (Ja med action decision passes) a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a	ALC ALC ALC ALC ALC ALC ALC ALC ALC ALC	ind i Vis mind i Vis i i i i i i i i i i i i i	st.mboos 4 3 4 4 4 4 4 5 5	4 4 5 4 5 4 6 92,3 6 92,3 6 9 9,3 6 9,3 6 9,3 6 9,3 6 9,3 6 9,3 6 9,3 7 9,3 7 9,3 7 9,3 7 9,3 7 9,4 9,4 9,4 9,4 9,4 9,4 9,4 9,4 9,4 9,4			Admin on the webnotel • Status report of incoming data • Link to individual data • An export module were made accessible for direct import through ou account program o the local server
Constant of the second se	F Notal Second Seco	tibook province of the second	à nett Ush maran 22 20) artal k Maran 22 20) artal k Maran 22 20) artal k Maran 23 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 2	La traité de la traite de la tr		T P	taningga taning taningga taning tanin tanin tanin tanin tanin tanin tanin tanin tanin tanin tani tani	4 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5			Admin on the webhotel • Status report of incoming data • Link to individual data • An export module were made accessible for direct import through ou account program o the local server
	F	tibok pi atladalogia 233/202 20 203/202 20 20 203/202 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 2	A nett Lost-moverant	A link of a	4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4		stindoga s s s s s s s s s s s s s s s s s	4 4 5 6 9 9 3 9 9 3 9 9 3 9 9 3 9 9 3			Admin on the webnotel Status report of incoming data Link to individual data An export module were madd accessible for direct import through ou account program o the local server
	F	tibook province attractory and attractory and attractory and attractory and attractory attractor	Annett Lish-Three gar Lish-Three	La India (La Ind	4 4 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	ind i VoS	dankegas 	2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 2 2 2 3 2 2 2 3 2 2 2 3 2 2 3 2 2 3 3 2 2 3 3 2 3			Admin on the webnotel • Status report of incoming data • Link to individual data • An export were made accessible for direct import through ou account program o the local server

Internal server (WAMP) Database containing all internal and external

erver

- connected to the database Serving our Farm accountancy system Implementing data from received data and files (automatic/semiautor Receiving triggers from external server, transferring files and data beto

Erewall Web services

External server (wamp - reuse of scripts) containing

- login info on all external services semi-dynamic FADN data (aggregated) (o

- connected to the external database and webserver (through web services) not allowed to transfer files and data to internal server, but may send trigger-messages to the internal server to do so. On Advanced FADH output-sending input from user to internal server, which conducts on the web citats comparison oncessary detail level, and inturna sagergated data for presentation on the web (brigger response time, but more secure if external server is hakked, no sensitive data to the south).

Stage 2: Setting up a new platform

- 1 server inside the firewall
- 1 server outside the firewall
- A web services tunnel • between them
- A web browser is used as the client software for the new services on both servers
- All mdb databases are imported to the new internal • database
- All queries from existing An queries in orrestisting Access/Excel apps and docs are rerouted to the new database (other adaptions in scripts were made)

Ģ	NILF Romegian Agricultural Economics Research Insti	~			u laikk	in the second						الم <u>م</u> روم الم
				- 1	0	LF Heltyster	atuatory		Uvevildig i	ornskap om lan	dbruk og mat	
	_				Admin	Database	-	Verklayhatte	a på landbruktfor	um Opplaating	er rekerskapeller	_
					Duriel from	Toffsace:	dargere)	detations	neerine	Mid-94281 ng site	disciplinate .	
201.6.81	Mather Hager(Opphere									
a real loss	antii		0000						A segment	of a web p	age on our new	
									Internal we	ab server, on	ly accessable w	(Trian)
le regit	interdata for bruk 0426	51							NLF. II IS	showing resi	its from a datab	38e
F - with	etalina 2011								Inguilty on	one of out o	articipants, cond	permina
			1992						collected (data from fro	vitiline registers	
	in our pappe annual inter-								outside of	NLF	1. A. C. S.	
			10000							and the second second	and the second statement of the	-
140	Antelinial land	34	Jwiti .	14001.04		14081.00			8804109	Las Kett Aget	NACES LASE MARTIN	Falst hangle's sealer
1001	Kulturariteriasis melusti	н	3425	24201.00		3401.00			MEDINER	Las Halt name	KAUSEN LANSE MARTIN	Pater nangle Visiole
101	Tenuti K Sundar	H	PHUL I	21545.24		21101.04			MERINA	Las liett taget	HADER-LARE MARTIN	Pater nangle Valueter
1000	Buildhaber	24	1400	10004.00		1005.25	Dolla hole	in inegals sentil	MEDININ	Lash Harld Happy	KAGEN LARE MARTIN	. Pater narger riseste

UPD IT NAME AND	THE REPORT OF		in the second	Same and the second sec		Contras d	the second second second		
ion .	ansi-rics	tape:	Lan June	NO DIT	\$101616E	Pros.	41161	4.44	
ipi i	anaphics .	Caper .	Lan Italie	26.26.2011	01010100	free .	2741	101124	

Nortura - slakt 2011 ruja il gelia terture titega e

Deller Ballerer Barnen Ba -225 1022

Nortura - tillegg og trekk 2011



Second Illust

Driftsgranskingar på nett

20000000	the strength of the strength	-					_		_			Pring and all only interes
I Decares	And a second sec									Concession in the local division in the loca		maria on a main
		8.44					1.48.2	14	. e.	11		hand on a most
	100000000000000000000000000000000000000	10.40	31		- 55	1.22	48.		-41	1.1		noter 3 years ago.
and the second	Lookers forming Lowheren	40.998	C	- 21	12	1.2	100	- 0.	- 22			I ne computations
International Contest					- 2 -		1.00					were made on the
Andrea		8.95	444		100		- 48		44	10		source data and
_		10.40	144	- 14		1.00	189		794			the graphs/tables
_	Lineinin-Berlings (1994) parts	49.394	1.041	- 24	281	1.04	- 144	14	278	1.4		inere canarated
-		Over title	1.000				100		242			were generated
-		18	178		191				279	-		automatically
_						- 12	1.20	- 21	- 10		1.4	By importing the
	Same and Rossand Inness	-	100	- 61	10	- 21	100	- 80	111			Dest year's source
August and		Over this			100	1.1	100		101			Cate Shau mount
		44	104		211		174		201	144		uala, they would
		8.16	1.04		104	1.16	1.08		347			automatically
		10.40	- 100		172	1.16	180		585	1.1		appear in the
	Agent and Registed Direct parts		2.224	-	304	- 121	-#F	- 27	264			presentations
11				- 21		- 14	120		100	12	1.1	Liverage transmoster
-		1.14			100		1.00		140		108	repartaci, are areit
10.0		10.40	100		104	- 2	104		125			kindly asked by th
1121	Manters Barness	49.300	Care C		(Red of the set of	and Course	in Building and	and King Ka	and the second	A Destaura		webhotel manager
		20er 116	1.164		367	200120				1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.		to reduce our strail
		M	- 82	-					1			on the chared
-		8.85			128							terrorer en lite
	the second se	1.11	100							0		resources, so me
All and a local division of the		Star Star	0.22							- 1823 I		project was
			1.00		10					0.000		postponed.
NAME OF TAXABLE		a 14		180								
2008020		10.40	200	-	61							
	Transmig Diversions	49.764	264		-		h				- 0.8	With our new
		70er #16			11							server in place, th
_		_		2	20	n l						work will be
												TOTA THE DE
								-	100			resumed next year
									-	1.00		
				1			Contraction of the local division of the loc			O		
					and the second second					#1 P		

33 IT tools and target users of the Italian RICA data

M. Martino, A. Scardera, A. Bodini

33.1 Objectives

The following overview describes briefly the architecture of RICA management in Italy and its main IT tools, some of which are fully implemented while others are under development. Target users and their main information needs for each tool are described.

33.2 Italian RICA and IT management

Figure 1 shows the flow of data throughout Institutions involved in the use of FADN in Italy, namely the liaison agency INEA and its network of data collectors.

The main software implemented by INEA are GAIA (Gestione Aziendale delle Imprese Agricole) and GAI-ATest. Whereas the former has been developed to store data in an organized way, the latter is meant to check data. They are both necessary to deliver data to RICA-1 portal of Dg-Agri in compliance with the EU Regulation 868/2008 and the latest farm return (Eu Reg. 385/2012).

GAIATest is used to verify data received from data collectors by the regional coordinators. After coherence tests are run and checked by data collectors and double checked by regional coordinators, data is extracted by the software EDA (Estrazione Dati Avanzata). With this tools the Farm Return can be extracted, as well as other institutional outputs, such as the economic accounts to be sent to the national institute of statistics ISTAT.

In the following part GAIA, EDA and Area RICA are presented.



Figure 1 Italian RICA management Scheme

33.3 GAIA: aims, functionalities and utilities

GAIA has been developed for farm return, thus to store structural, technical and economic information of the sample farms. Gaia allows data registration and archives storing, and reporting for farm management, such as income statement, economic and structural index report.

GAIA elaborates and produces information in a wide range of ways. Firstly, information is directly shown in the data entry process and elaborated into reports. Secondly, GAIA includes general accountancy data, details of single production processes (gross margin included). Thirdly, information collected provide a comprehensive overview of overall farm management and single operational aspects. Fourthly, a structured system of indicators and ratios provides management results and complex information framework with regard to economic results and corporate capital's use.



With **GAIA Test**, a checking application, data checks are organized by farm and at different levels of severity (severe to warnings), in line with Eu Commission tests.

The software can be downloaded for free from www.gaia.inea.it. Once registered on the website technical (IT) support and methodological assistance are provided.

Target users can be grouped in two groups:

Firstly, INEA data collectors to keep records for the survey. Thanks to the navigation tree the information can be organized in compliance with farm return. Furthermore the tool allows Input data check and Coherence data check afterwards.

Secondly, farmers or any other external users (accountants, school teachers) willing to keep accounts in compliance with accounting standard, depreciation method and allocation of costs. By means of different reports (income statement, livestock management) the software allows to evaluate farm performance along different accounting years and to prepare documentation to RDP measures application.

Reports generated from GAIA are income statement, economic and structural index report, which are usually printed and given to the farms at the end of the survey, so that farmers can have a feedback on their accounts based on the survey.

GAIA database is based on a transational model where data is represented as relation (from graphic point of view as a table) and handled according to relational operations. The relational model allows creating a logic and consistent representation of the information. Consistency can be achieved by imposing constraints, in technical terms is called logic scheme. The access to data is managed by a Database Management system (DBMS), which in this case is SQL MS which do not always follow the logic scheme. This is a controversial issue as to improve the DBMS performance you need to modify the logic scheme.

EDA is based on the ETL ExtractTransformLoad process and involves:

- Extracting data from outside sources (i.e. Gaia)
- Transforming it to fit operational needs (which can include quality levels)
- Loading it into the end target (i.e. database uploaded into Rica 1 portal)

EDA extracts data in different file extensions, suited to Farm Return to Dg-Agri and to Agricultural Economic Results to ISTAT. Eda allows in practical terms to comply with regulation and SISTAN requirements (the Italian national statistics network).

33.4 BDR Web

Figure 3

Institutional output from EDA

There are two ways to access data. The fist, called BDR on-line, is meant for authorized users only, as access is given to individual data, however agricultural holdings are identified by an anonymous code. Among authorized users there are SISTAN users, which are those public institutions sharing sensitive data under common confidentiality policy.

The second tool, called **Area RICA**, is the public Italian FADN database, which is a virtual area accessible from http://www.rica.inea.it/public/it/area.php. Target users are analysts willing to have ready-to-use information without querying the database. In fact the DB allows to analyze the farm return a regional or national level. In this public platform access, data is presented in aggregated form (at least 5 observations) according to stratification criteria (region, farm type and ESU).

The content (variables and topics), selected among the most relevant requests received by INEA and classified according to FT and ESU, is structured as follows:

- Farm Structure and Income,
- Crop and animal specific costs and revenues,
- Olive oil and Wine as specific sectors,
- Time series: per region, per crop and animal operation,
- Sample and weighted averages.





The main value added of the public database is that by presenting specific cost structure of crop and animal operations, analysts are allowed to investigate on productivity and income related to specific productions.

Moreover the possibility to weight or not to weights results allows differentiation in the analysis, from context analysis to more sophisticated analysis (management, farm viability, forecasting).

The main advantages of such database is that it is easy to be updated, easy to insert new reports, classifiers or variables.

Reports	REPORT CARATTERISTICHE ST	RUTTURALI	DELLE AZI	ENDE			
Analisi Aziendali	ELTRI						
Carattenstiche Struttural Dati Patrimoniali	REPORT - CLASSIFICAZIONE / RISULTATI: Riportati all'universo ANNO: 2010 - REGIONE: ITALIA	ZIENDALE	E: Dimensio	ne Econoi	mica		
Risultati Economici	and the second se	Dati	medi azienda	B			
Analisi Settoriali	Dimensione 🤄	Piccole	Medio	Media	Medio	Grandi	Medi
Ocumentazione	Aziende esaminate (namero)	599 868	109.698	73.490	57.741	6.674	847.47
Sontatti	Superficie totale (ettari)	10.83	22.63	40.90	70.66	89.69	19.6
	Superficie Agricola Utilizzata (ettarl)	8.25	19.79	36,00	64,58	81,05	16.5
	Superficie irrigabile (ettari)	1,91	4,96	8,92	28,20	62,38	5,1
	Potenza motrice (KW)	67	101	135	223	385	ş
	Unità Lavoro annue (ULA)	0,9	1,3	1,8	2,8	4,7	1.1
	Unità Lavoro familiari (ULA)	0,8	1.1	1,4	1.7	1,9	1.
	Unità Bovine Adulte (UBA)	1,9	9,1	22.2	66,6	481,4	12

Figure 5	Database online: a	n example of a re	pot of structural	variables by	Economic Dimension
i igui c J	Database onince a	i champic of a re	por or structurar	variables by	



33.5 Challenges

- To develop Policy evaluation database
- To translate available tools in English
- To develop a DWH to customize query
- To develop comparison report application
- To improve knowledge and uses of FADN to external users

Participant list

Mary Ahearn Economic Research Service, USDA U.S. Department of Agriculture Economic Research Service 1400 Independence Ave., SW Mail Stop 1800 Washington, DC 20250-1800 USA mahearn@ers.usda.gov

Murat ASLAN Food, Agriculture and Livestock Ministry, Turkey Food, Agriculture and Livestock Ministry, European Union and Foreign Affairs General Directorate, Eskisehir Road 9.km, Ankara Turkey mrtaslan@yahoo.com

Piotr Bajek European Commission DG AGRI L.3. Microeconomic analysis of EU agricultural holdings Rue de la Loi 130, 3/138 B-1040 Bruxelles Belgium Piotr.BAJEK@ec.europa.eu

Zoran Bardakoski National Extension Agency Str. Kliment Ohridski bb,Pelagonka II 5/3,P.O. 18, 7000 Bitola Macedonia zoranbard@t-home.mk

Pieter Willem Blokland LEI Wageningen UR Alexanderveld 5 2585 DB Den Haag The Netherlands pieterwillem.blokland@wur.nl

Antonella Bodini INEA National Institute of Agricultural Economics Via dell Universita' 14 35020 Legnaro (PD) Italy bodini@inea.it Valda Bratka Latvian State Insitute of Agrarian Economics 14 Struktoru str., Riga, Latvia,LV-1039 Latvia valda.bratka@lvaei.lv

Narve Brattenborg NILF NILF Statens Hus PB 7317 5020 Bergen NORWAY Norway narve.brattenborg@nilf.no

Cocetta Cardillo INEA - National Institute of Agricultural Economics via Nomentana, 41 00161 Rome Italy cardillo@inea.it

Ivana Caviroska Ministry of agriculture, forestry and water economy Unit for FADN: Treta makedonska brigada bb (Makedonija tabak) second floor 1000 Skopje Macedonia ivana.guskaroska@gmail.com

Silvia Coderoni INEA - National Institute of Agricultural Economics via Nomentana, 41 00161 Rome Italy coderoni@inea.it

Rima Daunyte Lithuanian Institute of Agrarian Economics Kudirkos str. 18 Vilnius Lithuania LT - 03105 Lithuania rima@laei.lt Nathalie DELAME INRA AgroParisTech - INRA UMR économie publique 16, rue Claude Bernard 75005 PARIS France nathalie.delame@agroparistech.fr

Börje Dernulf B-J Management AB Tulegatan 3 11358 Stockholm Sweden borje.dernulf@telia.com

İsmail Hakan Erden MFAL Tarim Reformu Genel Mudurlugu (Bakanlık Yeni Bina) Eskisehir Yolu 9.km Yenimahalle -Ankara Turkey herden45@yahoo.com

Lech Goraj IAFE-NRI 01-684 Warszawa Klaudyny 12 apt 81 Poland goraj@fadn.pl

Mediha Halimi Ministry of Agriculture Forestry &Rural Development-Kosova Mother Teresa, Str. 35 Political Parties Building, Room 213 Prishtinë, Kosovo Republic of Kosova mediha.halimi@rks-gov.net

Torbjørn Haukås NILF P.O. Box 7317 N-5020 BERGEN Norway Norway torbjorn.haukas@nilf.no

Thia Hennessy Teagasc Teagasc Athenry Co Galway Ireland Ireland thia.hennessy@teagasc.ie Vesna Ilievska National Extension Agency Str. Kliment Ohridski bb,Pelagonka II 5/3,P.O. 18, 7000 Bitola Macedonia i.vesna@t.home.mk

Zhaneta Ilievska Interworks Karposh bb (direkcija na Granit) 7000, Bitola Macedonia zaneta.ilievska@interworks.com.mk

Kristijan Jelakovic Agriculture Advisory Service, Zagreb, Croatia Kaciceva 9/III HR-10000 Zagreb Croatia kristijan.jelakovic@savjetodavna.hr

Stijn Jourquin Flemish Government, Department of Agriculture and Fisheries Koning Albert II-laan 35 bus 40 1030 Brussel Belgium stijn.jourquin@lv.vlaanderen.be

Anna Kalo Statistics Sweden SCB, 701 89 ÖREBRO Sweden anna.kalo@scb.se

Ann-Marie Karlsson Swedish Board of Agriculture Ann-Marie Karlsson Statistikenheten Jordbruksverket 551 82 Jönköping Sweden ann-marie.karlsson@jordbruksverket.se

Szilárd Keszthelyi Research Institute of Agricultural Economics (AKI), Budapest 1093 Budapest, IX. Zsil utca 3-5. Hungary keszthelyi.szilard@aki.gov.hu Shingo Kimura OECD 2 Andre Pascal Paris 75016 France shingo.kimura@oecd.org

Werner Kleinhanss vTI Heinrich von Thünen-Institut (vTI) Bundesallee 50 D 38116 Braunschweig Germany werner.kleinhanss@vti.bund.de

Arvydas Kuodys Lithuanian Institute of Agrarian Economics Kudirkos str.18 Vilnius Lithuania LT-03105 Lithuania arvydas@laei.lt

Jordan Kuzmanovski National Extension Agency Str. Kliment Ohridski bb,Pelagonka II 5/3,P.O. 18, 7000 Bitola Macedonia kuzmanovskijoco@hotmail.com

Arto Latukka MTT Economic Research MTT Economic Research/ Agrifood Research Finland Latokartanonkaari 9 FIN-00790 Helsinki Finland arto.latukka@mtt.fi

Selina Matthews DEFRA Area 6C, Nobel House,17 Smith Square, SW1P3JR London England selina.matthews@DEFRA.gsi.gov.uk

Eduard Matveev Estonian University of Life Sciences Kooli 13-8 50409 Tartu Estonia Estonia edward@emu.ee Aleksander Musalevski MAFWE Ministry of agriculture, forestry and water economy Unit for FADN: : Treta makedonska brigada bb (Makedonija tabak) second floor 1000 Skopje Macedonia musalevski_alek@yahoo.com

Eva Nagy European Commission DG AGRI L.3. Microeconomic analysis of EU agricultural holdings Rue de la Loi 130, 3/138 B-1040 Bruxelles Belgium Eva.NAGY@ec.europa.eu

Paul Oljans CBS Postbus 24500 2490 HA Den Haag NL p.oljans@cbs.nl

Cemre Bahar Özcanlı Ministry of Food, Agriculture and Livestock Gıda Tarım ve Hayvancılık Bakanlığı Eskişehir Yolu 9. km Tarım Reformu Genel Müdürlüğü 8. Kat Lodumlu-Ankara turkey cemre.ozcanli@tarim.gov.tr

Henrik Bolding Pedersen Statistics Denmark Sejrøgade 11 2100 København Ø Denmark hpe@dst.dk

Csaba Pesti Research Institute of Agricultural Economics, Budapest 1093 Budapest, Zsil u. 3-5. HUNGARY pesti.csaba@aki.gov.hu Mishev Plamen University of National and World Economy University of National and World Economy St. town 'Ch. Botev' 1700 Sofia Bulgaria mishevp@unwe.acad.bg

Andreas Roesch Agroscope ART Tänikon 8356 Ettenhausen, Switzerland andreas.roesch@art.admin.ch

Namig Shalbuzov Azerbaijan Scientific Research Institute of Economy and Organization of Agriculture Baku, Darnagul 3097, Az1130 Azerbaijan n.shalbuzov@mail.ru

Mika Sulkava MTT Agrifood Research Finland MTT, Economic Research Latokartanonkaari 9 Fl-00790 Helsinki Finland mika.sulkava@mtt.fi Hans C.J. Vrolijk Dutch Agricultural Economics Research Institute P.O. Box 29703 2502 LS The Hague The Netherlands Hans.vrolijk@wur.nl

Andrew Woodend Defra DEFRA, Area 3D, Nobel Hse, Smith Sq, LONDON SW1P 3JR United Kingdom andrew.woodend@defra.gsi.gov.uk

Hakile Xhaferi Ministry of Agriculture Mother Teresa, Str. 35 Political Parties Building, Room 213 Prishtinë, Kosovo, 10 000 Republic of kosova hakilexhaferi@hotmail.com

Floriańczyk Zbigniew IERiGŻ-PIB IERiGŻ-PIB Świętokrzyska 20 00-002 Warszawa Poland florianczyk@ierigz.waw.pl LEI Wageningen UR develops economic expertise for government bodies and industry in the field of food, agriculture and the natural environment. By means of independent research, LEI offers its customers a solid basis for socially and strategically justifiable policy choices.

Together with the Department of Social Sciences and the Wageningen UR, Centre for Development Innovation, LEI Wageningen UR forms the Social Sciences Group.

More information: www.wageningenUR.nl/en/lei



LEI Proceedings 13-054